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TABLE 1: SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Years Ended December 31

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(dollar amounts in millions, except per share data)

EARNINGS SUMMARY
Total interest income ******************************** $ 2,237 $ 2,412 $ 2,797 $ 3,393 $ 3,716
Net interest income ********************************* 1,810 1,926 2,132 2,102 2,004
Provision for loan losses ***************************** 64 377 635 241 251
Net securities gains********************************** — 50 41 20 16
Noninterest income (excluding net securities gains) ***** 857 837 859 817 964
Noninterest expenses ******************************** 1,493 1,483 1,515 1,587 1,511
Provision for income taxes *************************** 353 292 281 401 431
Net income **************************************** 757 661 601 710 791
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK
Basic net income************************************ $ 4.41 $ 3.78 $ 3.43 $ 3.93 $ 4.38
Diluted net income ********************************* 4.36 3.75 3.40 3.88 4.31
Cash dividends declared ***************************** 2.08 2.00 1.92 1.76 1.60
Common shareholders’ equity ************************ 29.94 29.20 28.31 27.17 23.98
Market value *************************************** 61.02 56.06 43.24 57.30 59.38
YEAR-END BALANCES
Total assets***************************************** $51,766 $52,592 $53,301 $50,750 $49,557
Total earning assets********************************** 48,016 48,804 47,780 46,566 45,791
Total loans ***************************************** 40,843 40,302 42,281 41,196 40,170
Total deposits ************************************** 40,936 41,463 41,775 37,570 33,854
Total borrowings************************************ 4,479 5,063 5,756 7,489 10,353
Total medium- and long-term debt ******************** 4,286 4,801 5,216 5,503 8,259
Total common shareholders’ equity ******************* 5,105 5,110 4,947 4,807 4,250
DAILY AVERAGE BALANCES
Total assets***************************************** $50,948 $52,980 $51,130 $49,688 $46,877
Total earning assets********************************** 46,975 48,841 47,053 45,722 43,364
Total loans ***************************************** 40,733 42,370 42,091 41,371 38,698
Total deposits ************************************** 40,145 41,519 37,712 35,312 30,340
Total borrowings************************************ 4,815 5,624 7,725 8,782 11,621
Total medium- and long-term debt ******************** 4,540 5,074 5,763 6,198 8,298
Total common shareholders’ equity ******************* 5,041 5,033 4,884 4,605 3,963
CREDIT QUALITY
Allowance for loan losses **************************** $ 673 $ 803 $ 791 $ 637 $ 585
Total nonperforming assets*************************** 339 538 579 627 339
Net loans charged-off******************************** 194 365 481 189 195
Net loans charged-off as a percentage of average total

loans ******************************************** 0.48% 0.86% 1.14% 0.46% 0.50%
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total period-

end loans **************************************** 1.65 1.99 1.87 1.55 1.46
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total

nonperforming assets****************************** 198 149 136 102 172
RATIOS
Net interest margin ********************************* 3.86% 3.95% 4.55% 4.61% 4.63%
Return on average assets ***************************** 1.49 1.25 1.18 1.43 1.69
Return on average common shareholders’ equity ******** 15.03 13.12 12.31 15.16 19.52
Efficiency ratio************************************** 55.90 53.64 50.59 54.30 50.88
Dividend payout ratio ******************************* 47.71 53.33 56.47 45.36 37.12
Average common shareholders’ equity as a percentage of

average assets************************************* 9.90 9.50 9.55 9.27 8.45
Tier 1 common capital as a percentage of risk-weighted

assets******************************************** 8.13 8.04 7.39 7.30 6.80
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2004 FINANCIAL RESULTS AND KEY CORPORATE INITIATIVES

Financial Results

) Reported net income of $757 million, or $4.36 per diluted share, compared to $661 million, or $3.75
per diluted share, for 2003

) Returned 15.03 percent on average common shareholders’ equity and 1.49 percent on average assets

) Raised the quarterly cash dividend four percent, to $0.52 per share, an annual rate of $2.08 per share,
for an annual dividend payout ratio of 48 percent

) Repurchased 6.5 million shares of outstanding common stock

) Experienced growth between June 30 and December 31 of $744 million in loans and $1.8 billion in
unused commitments to extend credit

) Continued improvement in credit quality resulting in a $171 million decline in net chargeoffs and a
$1.0 billion decline in total nonaccrual and watch list loans

Key Corporate Initiatives

) Continued organic growth, including the opening of 17 new branches in 2004; branch expansion in
2005 is expected to be comparable to 2004

) Strengthened and built relationships by providing customers convenient access to all Comerica products
and services across all regions and platforms; completed systems conversions allowing customers to
conduct transactions nationwide and standardized deposit products to better serve customers

) Increased corporate awareness of Connectivity, a national initiative of building successful customer
relationships through cross-selling

) Focused on diversity by establishing it as a core value of the Corporation and creating a position to be
responsible for defining and driving business strategies that establish Comerica as a leader in diversity
practices

) Refined the enterprise-wide risk management program and continued to improve upon the analytics
and systems to enhance credit and operational risk management

) Held noninterest expenses, excluding severance expense, flat in 2004 compared to 2003

) Continued commitment to strong corporate governance as evidenced by the Corporation’s report on
internal controls over financial reporting

OVERVIEW/EARNINGS PERFORMANCE

Comerica Incorporated (the Corporation) is a financial holding company headquartered in Detroit,
Michigan. The accounting and reporting policies of the Corporation and its subsidiaries conform to U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles and prevailing practices within the banking industry. The Corpora-
tion’s consolidated financial statements are prepared based on the application of accounting policies, the most
significant of which are described on page 64 in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. The most
critical of these significant accounting policies are discussed in the ‘‘Critical Accounting Policies’’ section on
page 54 of this financial review.

The Corporation’s major lines of business are the Business Bank, Small Business and Personal Financial
Services, and Wealth and Institutional Management. The core businesses are tailored to each of the Corpora-
tion’s four primary geographic markets: Midwest and Other Markets, Western, Texas and Florida.

As a financial institution, Comerica’s principal activity is lending to and accepting deposits from busi-
nesses and individuals. The primary source of revenue is net interest income, which is derived principally from
the difference between interest earned on loans and interest paid on deposits and other funding sources.
Comerica also provides other products and services that meet the financial needs of customers and which
generate noninterest income, Comerica’s secondary source of revenue. Growth in loans, deposits and noninter-
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est income are affected by many factors, including the economic growth in the markets Comerica serves, the
financial requirements and health of customers, which influence Comerica’s ability to identify and provide the
types of products and services customers need, and successfully adding new customers and/or increasing the
number of products used by current customers.

Weak loan demand in the first half of 2004 resulted in declines in both loan balances and unused
commitments to extend credit. These declines were more than offset by growth experienced in the second half
of the year. Average loans in Comerica’s Private Banking and National Dealer Services loan portfolios increased
by nine percent and six percent, respectively, in 2004, when compared to 2003. These increases, however, were
offset by declines in other loan portfolios, as well as decisions not to renew (non-relationship) loans where
management believed there was no opportunity for revenues other than loan interest income. This decision to
discontinue non-relationship loans primarily affected Global Corporate Banking, where average loans declined
21 percent in 2004. Average loans in the Commercial Real Estate loan portfolio also decreased 10 percent in
2004. Average deposits decreased three percent, with a majority of the decrease attributable to certificates of
deposit issued through brokers or to institutional investors, which matured and were not replaced. Low interest
rates and narrow interest spreads during 2004 contributed to declining net interest income in 2004. Noninter-
est income, excluding net securities gains, increased two percent in 2004 compared to 2003.

The Corporation’s credit staff closely monitors the financial health of our lending customers in order to
assess ability to repay and to adequately provide for expected losses. Loan quality showed continued improve-
ment during 2004, with improving credit quality trends resulting in a significant decline in both net charge-offs
and total nonperforming assets in 2004 when compared to 2003. The tools developed in 2003 and 2004 for
evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, and the resulting information gained from these
processes, continue to help the Corporation gain operational efficiencies and reduce expenses in the credit area.

The principal costs incurred in providing financial services are personnel costs (salaries and benefits).
Management remains focused on being a cost effective and efficient provider of services. Excluding severance
expenses, noninterest expenses in 2004 remained flat compared to 2003 levels. Full-time equivalent employees
declined by approximately 300 employees from year end 2003 to year end 2004.

A majority of the Corporation’s revenues are generated by the Business Bank segment, making the
Corporation highly sensitive to changes in the business environment in its primary geographic markets. To
facilitate better balance among business segments, the Corporation opened 17 branches in 2004 and plans to
continue branch expansion in markets with favorable demographics. As part of this effort, the Corporation
standardized product platforms and delivery systems in all regions, and established a national branding and
marketing program, thus making the customer experience seamless across all markets. This will provide
opportunity for targeted growth in the Small Business and Personal Financial Services and the Wealth and
Institutional Management segments as the Corporation penetrates existing relationships through cross-selling.

For 2005, management expects the following compared to 2004:

) average loan growth in the low to mid-single digit range

) average earning assets unchanged, with a decline in short-term investments funding expected loan
growth

) net interest margin approximately four percent

) low single digit growth in non-interest income and expenses

) stable credit quality with net charge-offs to average loans of approximately 35-40 basis points.
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TABLE 2: ANALYSIS OF NET INTEREST INCOME-Fully Taxable Equivalent (FTE)
Years Ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate

(dollar amounts in millions)

Commercial loans********************** $22,139 $ 933 4.22% $23,764 $ 978 4.11% $24,266 $1,135 4.67%
Real estate construction loans************ 3,264 177 5.43 3,540 178 5.04 3,353 193 5.74
Commercial mortgage loans ************* 7,991 415 5.19 7,521 403 5.35 6,786 416 6.12
Residential mortgage loans ************** 1,237 70 5.68 1,192 73 6.12 1,101 76 6.88
Consumer loans *********************** 2,668 126 4.73 2,474 122 4.94 2,355 139 5.94
Lease financing ************************ 1,272 52 4.06 1,283 59 4.59 1,242 67 5.37
International loans ********************* 2,162 102 4.69 2,596 115 4.44 2,988 140 4.70
Business loan swap income(1)*********** — 182 — — 285 — — 361 —

Total loans(2) *********************** 40,733 2,057 5.05 42,370 2,213 5.22 42,091 2,527 6.00
Investment securities

available-for-sale(3) ****************** 4,321 147 3.36 4,529 166 3.65 4,360 247 5.74
Short-term investments ***************** 1,921 36 1.88 1,942 36 1.85 602 27 4.45

Total earning assets******************* 46,975 2,240 4.76 48,841 2,415 4.94 47,053 2,801 5.96
Cash and due from banks*************** 1,685 1,811 1,800
Allowance for loan losses *************** (787) (831) (739)
Accrued income and other assets ********* 3,075 3,159 3,016

Total assets ************************** $50,948 $52,980 $51,130

Money market and NOW deposits ******* $17,768 188 1.06 $17,359 204 1.18 $13,081 192 1.47
Savings deposits *********************** 1,629 6 0.39 1,571 8 0.50 1,643 16 1.01
Certificates of deposit(1)(4) ************* 5,962 104 1.74 8,061 139 1.72 10,376 245 2.36
Foreign office time deposits(5)*********** 664 17 2.60 618 19 3.15 771 26 3.36

Total interest-bearing deposits ********* 26,023 315 1.21 27,609 370 1.34 25,871 479 1.85
Short-term borrowings ****************** 275 4 1.25 550 7 1.20 1,962 37 1.85
Medium- and long-term debt(1)(4) ****** 4,540 108 2.39 5,074 109 2.14 5,763 149 2.58

Total interest-bearing sources ********** 30,838 427 1.38 33,233 486 1.46 33,596 665 1.98

Noninterest-bearing deposits ************ 14,122 13,910 11,841
Accrued expenses and other liabilities***** 947 804 809
Shareholders’ equity ******************** 5,041 5,033 4,884

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $50,948 $52,980 $51,130

Net interest income/rate spread
(FTE) ******************************* $1,813 3.38 $1,929 3.48 $2,136 3.98

FTE adjustment(6) ********************* $ 3 $ 3 $ 4

Impact of net noninterest-bearing sources
of funds **************************** 0.48 0.47 0.57

Net interest margin (as a percentage of
average earning assets) (FTE) ********** 3.86% 3.95% 4.55%

(1) The gain or loss attributable to the effective portion of cash flow hedges of loans is shown in ‘‘Business loan swap
income’’. The gain or loss attributable to the effective portion of fair value hedges of deposits and medium- and long-
term debt, which totaled a net gain of $97 million in 2004, is included in the related interest expense line items.

(2) Nonaccrual loans are included in average balances reported and are used to calculate rates.

(3) Average rate based on average historical cost.

(4) Certificates of deposit and medium- and long-term debt average balances have been adjusted to reflect the gain or loss
attributable to the risk hedged by risk management swaps that qualify as a fair value hedge.

(5) Includes substantially all deposits by foreign domiciled depositors; deposits are primarily in excess of $100,000.

(6) The FTE adjustment is computed using a federal income tax rate of 35%.
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TABLE 3: RATE-VOLUME ANALYSIS-Fully Taxable Equivalent (FTE)
2004 / 2003 2003 / 2002

Increase Increase Net Increase Increase Net
(Decrease) (Decrease) Increase (Decrease) (Decrease) Increase

Due to Rate Due to Volume* (Decrease) Due to Rate Due to Volume* (Decrease)
(in millions)

Interest income (FTE):
Loans:

Commercial loans*************** $ 24 $(69) $ (45) $(136) $(21) $(157)
Real estate construction loans****** 14 (15) (1) (24) 9 (15)
Commercial mortgage loans ****** (12) 24 12 (52) 39 (13)
Residential mortgage loans ******* (6) 3 (3) (8) 5 (3)
Consumer loans **************** (5) 9 4 (23) 6 (17)
Lease financing ***************** (7) — (7) (10) 2 (8)
International loans ************** 7 (20) (13) (8) (17) (25)
Business loan swap income

(expense) ******************** (103) — (103) (76) — (76)

Total loans ***************** (88) (68) (156) (337) 23 (314)
Investment securities ************** (12) (7) (19) (87) 6 (81)
Short-term investments ************ 5 (5) — (4) 13 9

Total interest income (FTE)*** (95) (80) (175) (428) 42 (386)
Interest expense:
Interest-bearing deposits:

Money market and NOW deposits (21) 5 (16) (38) 50 12
Savings deposits **************** (2) — (2) (8) — (8)
Certificates of deposit ************ 2 (37) (35) (66) (40) (106)
Foreign office time deposits ****** (3) 1 (2) (2) (5) (7)

Total interest-bearing deposits (24) (31) (55) (114) 5 (109)
Short-term borrowings ************* — (3) (3) (13) (17) (30)
Medium- and long-term debt ******* 12 (13) (1) (25) (15) (40)

Total interest expense ******** (12) (47) (59) (152) (27) (179)

Net interest income (FTE) **** $ (83) $(33) $(116) $(276) $ 69 $(207)

* Rate/volume variances are allocated to variances due to volume.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the difference between interest and yield-related fees earned on assets, and interest
paid on liabilities. Adjustments are made to the yields on tax-exempt assets in order to present tax-exempt
income and fully taxable income on a comparable basis. Gains and losses related to the effective portion of risk
management interest rate swaps that qualify as hedges are included with the interest income or expense of the
hedged item when classified in earnings. Net interest income on a fully taxable equivalent (FTE) basis
comprised 68 percent of net revenues in 2004, compared to 69 percent in 2003 and 70 percent in 2002.
Table 2 on page 25 provides an analysis of net interest income for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002. The rate-volume analysis in Table 3 above details the components of the change in net interest
income on a FTE basis for the years ended December 31, 2004 compared to 2003 and December 31, 2003
compared to 2002.
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Net interest income (FTE) was $1.8 billion in 2004, a decrease of $116 million, or six percent, from 2003.
The net interest margin, which is net interest income (FTE) expressed as a percentage of average earning assets,
decreased to 3.86 percent in 2004 from 3.95 percent in 2003. The declines in net interest income and net
interest margin were the result of the impact of high-spread interest rate swap maturities and a restructuring of
the investment portfolio in 2003, designed to achieve more consistent cash flows. Average earning assets
decreased $1.9 billion, or four percent, to $47.0 billion, primarily as the result of a $1.6 billion decrease in
average loans. The Corporation expects, on average, net interest margin in 2005 to be four percent for the full
year.

The Corporation implements various asset and liability management tactics to manage exposure to net
interest income risk. This risk represents the potential reduction in net interest income that may result from a
fluctuating economic environment, including changes to interest rates and loan and deposit portfolio growth
rates. Such actions include the management of earning assets, funding and capital and the utilization of
interest rate swap contracts. Interest rate swap contracts are employed to effectively fix the yields on certain
variable rate loans and to alter the interest rate characteristics of deposits and debt issued throughout the year.
Refer to the ‘‘Interest Rate Risk’’ section on page 47 of this financial review for additional information regarding
the Corporation’s asset and liability management policies.

In 2003, net interest income (FTE) was $1.9 billion, a decrease of $207 million, or 10 percent, from 2002.
The net interest margin decreased to 3.95 percent in 2003 from 4.55 percent in 2002. The declines in net
interest income and net interest margin were the result of a restructuring of the investment portfolio in late
2002 and 2003, designed to achieve more consistent cash flows; the impact of high-spread interest rate swap
maturities; spread compression, as a result of lower loan yields in a declining rate environment; and a
competitive deposit rate environment during a period of sustained low interest rates. Average earning assets
increased by four percent to $48.8 billion, primarily as the result of a $1.3 billion increase in average short-
term investments, which were funded by an increase in average noninterest-bearing deposits, primarily attrib-
uted to the strong growth of title and escrow deposits in the Corporation’s Financial Services Group. A portion
of these deposits was not long-lived, and therefore, invested on a short-term basis. The spreads on these short-
term investments negatively impacted net interest margin in 2003.
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TABLE 4: ANALYSIS OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES
Years Ended December 31

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(dollar amounts in millions)

Balance at beginning of year ************************************** $803 $791 $637 $585 $529
Loans charged-off:

Domestic
Commercial************************************************* 201 302 423 198 199
Real estate construction

Real estate construction business line************************* 2 1 — 1 —
Other **************************************************** — 1 1 1 —

Total real estate construction ****************************** 2 2 1 2 —
Commercial mortgage

Commercial real estate business line ************************* 4 4 6 — —
Other **************************************************** 19 18 4 3 1

Total commercial mortgage ******************************* 23 22 10 3 1
Residential mortgage ***************************************** 1 — — — —
Consumer ************************************************** 14 11 11 7 12
Lease financing ********************************************** 13 4 9 7 1

International ************************************************** 14 67 63 15 11

Total loans charged-off *************************************** 268 408 517 232 224
Recoveries:

Domestic
Commercial************************************************* 52 28 27 35 20
Real estate construction*************************************** — — — — —
Commercial mortgage **************************************** 3 1 2 1 1
Residential mortgage ***************************************** — — — 1 1
Consumer ************************************************** 2 3 3 5 7
Lease financing ********************************************** 1 — 3 1 —

International ************************************************** 16 11 1 — —

Total recoveries ********************************************** 74 43 36 43 29

Net loans charged-off ******************************************** 194 365 481 189 195
Provision for loan losses****************************************** 64 377 635 241 251

Balance at end of year******************************************** $673 $803 $791 $637 $585

Ratio of allowance for loan losses to total loans at end of year ******** 1.65% 1.99% 1.87% 1.55% 1.46%
Ratio of net loans charged-off during the year to average loans

outstanding during the year ************************************* 0.48% 0.86% 1.14% 0.46% 0.50%
Allowance for credit losses on lending-related commitments* ********* $ 21 $ 33 $ 35 $ 18 $ 23

* Included in ‘‘Accrued expenses and other liabilities’’ on the consolidated balance sheets.
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TABLE 5: ALLOCATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES
Years Ended December 31

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %

(dollar amounts in millions)

Domestic
Commercial ***************** $411 54% $487 54% $476 57% $410 58% $349 63%
Real estate construction ******* 23 8 31 8 26 8 17 8 11 7
Commercial mortgage ******** 76 20 95 20 86 17 61 15 59 13
Residential mortgage ********* 2 3 5 3 2 3 1 3 1 3
Consumer******************* 25 7 27 6 25 6 14 6 11 5
Lease financing ************** 44 3 26 3 8 3 9 3 5 3

International ****************** 40 5 91 6 130 6 88 7 105 6
Unallocated ******************* 52 41 38 37 44

Total ********************* $673 100% $803 100% $791 100% $637 100% $585 100%

Amount — allocated allowance

% — loans outstanding as a percentage of total loans

Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses reflects management’s evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for loan
losses. The allowance for loan losses represents management’s assessment of probable losses inherent in the
Corporation’s loan portfolio. The allowance provides for probable losses that have been identified with specific
customer relationships and for probable losses believed to be inherent, but that have not been specifically
identified. Internal risk ratings are assigned to each business loan at the time of approval and are subject to
subsequent periodic reviews by the Corporation’s senior management. The Corporation performs a detailed
quarterly credit quality review on both large business and certain large personal purpose consumer and
residential mortgage loans that have deteriorated below certain levels of credit risk, and may allocate a specific
portion of the allowance to such loans based upon this review. The Corporation defines business loans as those
belonging to the commercial, real estate construction, commercial mortgage, lease financing and international
loan portfolios. A portion of the allowance is allocated to the remaining business loans by applying projected
loss ratios, based on numerous factors identified below, to the loans within each risk rating. In addition, a
portion of the allowance is allocated to these remaining loans based on industry specific and geographic risks
inherent in certain portfolios, including portfolio exposures to automotive suppliers, retailers, contractors,
technology-related, entertainment, air transportation and healthcare industries, Small Business Administration
loans and certain Latin American risks. The portion of the allowance allocated to all other consumer and
residential mortgage loans is determined by applying projected loss ratios to various segments of the loan
portfolio. Projected loss ratios incorporate various factors, such as recent charge-off experience, current eco-
nomic conditions and trends, and trends with respect to past due and nonaccrual amounts, and are supported
by underlying analysis, including information on migration and loss given default studies from each geo-
graphic market. The total allowance for loan losses was $673 million at December 31, 2004, compared to
$803 million at December 31, 2003. The allocated portion of the allowance was $621 million at December 31,
2004, a decrease of $141 million from year-end 2003. The decrease in the allocated allowance resulted
primarily from a $1.0 billion decrease in total nonaccrual and watch list loans at December 31, 2004, as
compared to year-end 2003.

Actual loss ratios experienced in the future may vary from those projected. The uncertainty occurs because
factors affecting the determination of probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio may exist which are not
necessarily captured by the application of projected loss ratios or identified industry specific and geographic
risks. An unallocated portion of the allowance is maintained to capture these probable losses. The unallocated
allowance reflects management’s view that the allowance should recognize the margin for error inherent in the
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process of estimating expected loan losses. Factors that were considered in the evaluation of the adequacy of
the Corporation’s unallocated allowance include the imprecision in the risk rating system and the risk associ-
ated with new customer relationships. The unallocated allowance associated with the margin for imprecision in
the risk rating system is based on a historical evaluation of the accuracy of the risk ratings associated with
loans, while the unallocated allowance due to new business migration risk is based on an evaluation of the risk
of rating downgrades associated with loans that do not have a full year of payment history. The unallocated
allowance was $52 million at December 31, 2004, an increase of $11 million from 2003.

The total allowance, including the unallocated amount, is available to absorb losses from any segment
within the portfolio. Unanticipated economic events, including political, economic and regulatory instability
in countries where the Corporation has a concentration of loans, could cause changes in the credit characteris-
tics of the portfolio and result in an unanticipated increase in the allocated allowance. Inclusion of other
industry specific and geographic portfolio exposures in the allocated allowance, as well as significant increases
in the current portfolio exposures, could also increase the amount of the allocated allowance. Any of these
events, or some combination, may result in the need for additional provision for loan losses in order to
maintain an adequate allowance.

The provision for loan losses was $64 million in 2004, compared to $377 million and $635 million in
2003 and 2002, respectively. The decrease in provision for loan losses in 2004 compared to 2003 is primarily
the result of improving credit quality trends, that reflect improved economic conditions in all of the Corpora-
tion’s primary geographic regions. The Corporation’s largest geographic concentration of credit is in the
Michigan market. Upturns in the Southeast Michigan Purchasing Management Survey and Michigan Business
Activity Indices began in the fourth quarter of 2003 and accelerated in the first half of 2004 with positive
movement continuing into the second half of 2004. Forward-looking indicators suggest this positive movement
should continue, but not accelerate, in 2005. The decrease in the provision for loan losses in 2003 compared to
2002 resulted from a large 2002 provision for loan losses, which reflected the impact that the economic
environment had on many of the Corporation’s customers, and management’s decision in 2002 to sell certain
loans. In addition, in 2002, political and economic events in Argentina and Brazil led to an increase in reserves
related to the Corporation’s exposure in those countries.

Net charge-offs in 2004 were $194 million, or 0.48 percent of average total loans, compared to $365 mil-
lion, or 0.86 percent, in 2003 and $481 million, or 1.14 percent, in 2002. An analysis of the changes in the
allowance for loan losses, including charge-offs and recoveries by loan category, is presented in Table 4 on
page 28.

Nonperforming assets at December 31, 2004 were $339 million, as compared to $538 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2003. During the year, $332 million of loans with balances greater than $2 million were transferred to
nonaccrual, compared to $660 million in 2003, and $248 million of nonaccrual business loans were charged-
off, compared to $399 million in 2003. The carrying value of nonaccrual loans as a percentage of contractual
value declined to 54 percent at December 31, 2004 compared to 58 percent at December 31, 2003. For further
information on changes in nonperforming assets, see the ‘‘Nonperforming Assets’’ section of this financial
review on page 43.

The allowance as a percentage of total loans, nonperforming assets and annual net charge-offs is provided
in the following table.

Years Ended
December 31

2004 2003 2002

Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total loans at end of year *************** 1.65% 1.99% 1.87%
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total nonperforming assets at end of year ** 198 149 136
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total net charge-offs for the year ********* 347 220 164

30



The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total period-end loans decreased to 1.65 percent at
December 31, 2004, from 1.99 percent at December 31, 2003. The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of
nonperforming assets increased to 198 percent at December 31, 2004, from 149 percent at December 31, 2003.
The decrease in allowance coverage of total loans and increase in allowance coverage of nonperforming assets
resulted primarily from improved credit quality trends in 2004. The increase in the allowance for loan losses as
a percentage of net charge-offs for the year ended December 31, 2004, when compared to the prior year,
resulted from lower levels of net charge-offs in 2004. Management expects stable credit quality in 2005 with
full year average net charge-offs of approximately 35-40 basis points.

The Corporation maintains an allowance to cover probable credit losses inherent in lending-related
commitments, including letters of credit and financial guarantees, which is included in ‘‘accrued expenses and
other liabilities’’ on the consolidated balance sheets. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the allowance for credit
losses on lending-related commitments was $21 million and $33 million, respectively.

Noninterest Income
Years Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002

(in millions)

Service charges on deposit accounts******************************************* $231 $238 $227
Fiduciary income *********************************************************** 171 169 171
Commercial lending fees **************************************************** 55 63 69
Letter of credit fees ********************************************************* 66 65 60
Foreign exchange income **************************************************** 37 36 38
Brokerage fees************************************************************** 36 34 38
Investment advisory revenue, net ********************************************* 35 30 27
Card fees ****************************************************************** 32 27 23
Bank-owned life insurance *************************************************** 34 42 53
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries******************************* 12 6 8
Warrant income ************************************************************ 7 4 5
Net securities gains ********************************************************* — 50 41
Net gain on sales of businesses*********************************************** 7 — 12
Other noninterest income *************************************************** 134 123 128

Total noninterest income ************************************************** $857 $887 $900

Noninterest income decreased $30 million, or three percent, to $857 million in 2004, compared to
$887 million in 2003 and decreased $13 million, or one percent, in 2003, compared to $900 million in 2002.
An analysis of increases and decreases by individual line item is presented below.

Service charges on deposit accounts decreased $7 million, or three percent, in 2004 compared to an
increase of $11 million, or five percent, in 2003. The decrease in 2004 was primarily due to higher earnings
credit allowances provided to business customers and free checking accounts offered. The increase in 2003 was
due to growth in deposits, the sale of new and existing cash management services to business customers and
the benefit of lower earnings credit allowances provided to business customers.

Fiduciary income increased $2 million, or one percent, in 2004 and decreased $2 million, or one percent,
in 2003. Personal and institutional trust fees are the two major components of fiduciary income. These fees are
based on services provided and assets managed. Fluctuations in the market values of the underlying assets
managed, which include both equity and fixed income securities, impact fiduciary income. The increase in
2004 is primarily due to improvements in equity markets. The income decline in 2003 reflects the effect that
less favorable equity market conditions experienced during the year had on assets managed.

Commercial lending fees decreased $8 million, or 13 percent, in 2004 compared to a decrease of
$6 million, or 10 percent, in 2003. The decline in 2004 was due to a decline in all three of the major
components of commercial lending fees: agent bank fees, commitment fees in arrears and service charges on
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commercial loans. The decline in 2003 resulted primarily from a decrease in agent bank fee income from 2002
levels. Income earned on agent bank fees decreased in both 2004 and 2003 as a result of a decline in the
volume of loan participations that met the Corporation’s underwriting standards. The decrease in commitment
fees in arrears and service charges on commercial loans in 2004 was due primarily to the impact that changes
in the customer base had on fees earned.

Letter of credit fees increased $1 million, or less than one percent, in 2004 compared to an increase of
$5 million, or nine percent, in 2003. The increase in 2003 related to the demand for international trade
services from new and existing Middle Market and National Dealer Services customers.

Foreign exchange income increased $1 million, or two percent, in 2004 compared to a decrease of
$2 million, or five percent, in 2003. The decrease in 2003 was, in part, the result of a change in the strategy
used to hedge a foreign subsidiary that caused certain currency gains and losses formerly recorded in earnings
to be recorded in other comprehensive income.

Brokerage fees increased $2 million, or eight percent, to $36 million, in 2004, compared to a decrease of
$4 million, or 12 percent, in 2003. Brokerage fees include commissions from retail broker transactions and
mutual fund sales and are subject to changes in the level of market activity. The increase in 2004 was primarily
due to increased transaction volumes as a result of improved market conditions. Reduced transaction volumes
as a result of market conditions contributed to the decline in 2003.

Investment advisory revenue, which includes revenue generated by the Corporation’s asset management
reporting unit (Munder Capital Management or Munder), increased $5 million, or 16 percent, in 2004,
compared to an increase of $3 million, or 10 percent, in 2003. The increase in 2004 revenue, when compared
to 2003, resulted from continued market growth. Assets under management at Munder, which generate both
fiduciary income and investment advisory revenue, totaled $38 billion, $34 billion and $32 billion at Decem-
ber 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The increase in 2003 revenue, when compared to 2002, resulted
from a 2002 impairment charge of $5 million on deferred distribution costs. This charge resulted from an
assessment of the recoverability of unamortized commission costs paid to brokers for selling Class B mutual
fund shares.

Card fees, which consist primarily of interchange fees earned on debit and commercial cards, increased
$5 million, or 20 percent, to $32 million, compared to $27 million in 2003 and increased $4 million, or
17 percent, compared to $23 million in 2002. Growth in 2004 and 2003 is due to an increase in transaction
volume.

Bank-owned life insurance income decreased $8 million to $34 million in 2004, compared to a decrease
of $11 million to $42 million in 2003. The decrease in 2004 was primarily due to a decline in earnings and
death benefits received on policies held. The decrease in 2003 resulted primarily from large non-taxable
proceeds on bank-owned life insurance policies due to death benefits received in 2002, including $9 million of
proceeds from the death of an executive in the second quarter of 2002, and a decline in earnings on policies
held.

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries increased $6 million in 2004, compared to a decrease of
$2 million in 2003. The increase in 2004 was primarily due to an increase in income from a United Kingdom
subsidiary, Framlington (a London, England based investment manager), of which Munder is a minority
owner. The decrease in 2003 was a result of the July 1, 2003 adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 46(R),
‘‘Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities’’ (FIN 46(R)), which required the Corporation to consolidate its
interest in The Peninsula Fund Limited Partnership (PFLP), a venture capital fund. Prior to the adoption of
FIN 46(R), the Corporation’s share of income from the PFLP, which totaled $2 million in the first six months
of 2003 and $5 million in 2002, was recorded in equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries. In
addition, the adoption of FIN 46(R) resulted in the deconsolidation of two entities formed to issue trust
preferred securities. Since the July 1, 2003 adoption of FIN 46(R), the Corporation’s share of income from
these formerly consolidated subsidiaries, which was not material, has been recorded in equity in earnings of
unconsolidated subsidiaries. For further information on the adoption of FIN 46(R), see Notes 1 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 64 and 99, respectively.
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Warrant income was $7 million in 2004 compared to $4 million in 2003 and $5 million in 2002. The
Corporation generally recognizes warrant income when the warrant positions become marketable as a result of
a public equity offering.

The Corporation’s net revenue from sales and write-downs related to its investment securities portfolio was
nominal in 2004. Net gains of $50 million and $41 million were recognized in 2003 and 2002, respectively.
The significant gains in 2003 and 2002 resulted primarily from a restructuring of the investment portfolio in
late 2002 and 2003, designed to achieve more consistent cash flows. The 2002 gain was net of $14 million in
write-downs of Argentine securities recorded in 2002.

The net gain on sales of businesses in 2004 included a net gain of $7 million on the sale of a portion of
the Corporation’s merchant card processing business, while the net gain in 2002 included a gain of $12 mil-
lion related to the sale of the Corporation’s Official Payments Corporation (OPAY) subsidiary.

Other noninterest income increased $11 million, or eight percent, in 2004 compared to a decrease of
$5 million, or four percent, in 2003. Other noninterest income in 2004 included $13 million of income
distributions (net of write-downs) recognized on unconsolidated venture capital and private equity invest-
ments, offset by $3 million of risk management hedge ineffectiveness losses, and an increase of $7 million in
amortization expense on low income housing investments (netted against noninterest income), when com-
pared to 2003. Other noninterest income in 2003 included $9 million of write-downs (net of income
distributions) recognized on unconsolidated venture capital and private equity investments and $3 million of
risk management hedge ineffectiveness losses. Other noninterest income in 2002 included $10 million of
write-downs (net of income distributions) recognized on unconsolidated venture capital and private equity
investments and $4 million of cash flow hedge ineffectiveness gains. Other noninterest income in 2002 also
included $5 million of net losses on the sale of commercial loans held-for-sale. Comparisons of other
noninterest income were impacted by the divestiture of OPAY in the third quarter of 2002. This divestiture
resulted in a reduction of other noninterest income of $5 million in 2003, when compared to 2002.

Management expects a low single-digit growth in noninterest income in 2005 from 2004 levels.

Noninterest Expenses
Years Ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
(in millions)

Salaries*************************************************************** $ 760 $ 736 $ 699
Employee benefits ***************************************************** 159 161 145

Total salaries and employee benefits *********************************** 919 897 844
Net occupancy expense ************************************************* 125 128 122
Equipment expense **************************************************** 58 61 62
Outside processing fee expense ****************************************** 68 71 65
Software expense ****************************************************** 43 37 33
Customer services****************************************************** 23 25 26
Litigation and operational losses***************************************** 24 18 20
Goodwill impairment ************************************************** — — 86
Other noninterest expenses ********************************************* 233 246 257

Total noninterest expenses ******************************************** $1,493 $1,483 $1,515

Noninterest expenses increased $10 million, or less than one percent, to $1,493 million in 2004, com-
pared to $1,483 million in 2003 and decreased $32 million, or two percent, in 2003, compared to $1,515 mil-
lion in 2002. An analysis of increases and decreases by individual line item is presented below.

Salaries expense increased $24 million, or three percent, in 2004 versus an increase of $37 million, or five
percent, in 2003. The increase in 2004 was primarily due to merit increases of approximately $17 million and
an increase of $9 million in severance expense, $9 million in executive incentives, and $6 million in stock-
based compensation, when compared to 2003. These increases were partially offset by a full-time equivalent
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employee reduction in staff size of approximately 300 employees from year end 2003 to year end 2004. The
increase in salaries expense in 2003 from 2002 was primarily due to an increase of $27 million in business unit
and executive incentives, and approximately $17 million in merit increases, partially offset by a $5 million
decline in salary expense resulting from the Corporation’s 2002 sale of its OPAY subsidiary. Business unit
incentives are tied to new business and business unit profitability, while executive incentives are tied to peer-
based comparisons of corporate results. Severance expense was $11 million in 2004, compared to $2 million
and $6 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively. For further information on stock-based compensation, refer to
Notes 1 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 64 and 83, respectively.

Employee benefits expense decreased $2 million, or one percent, in 2004 compared to an increase of
$16 million, or 11 percent, in 2003. The decrease in 2004, when compared to 2003, and the increase in 2003,
when compared to 2002, resulted from changes in pension expense. For a further discussion of pension
expense, refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements on page 85.

Net occupancy and equipment expenses, on a combined basis, decreased $6 million, or three percent, to
$183 million in 2004, compared to an increase of $5 million, or three percent, in 2003. The decrease in 2004,
when compared to 2003, and the increase in 2003 compared to 2002, resulted primarily from lease termina-
tion costs associated with the consolidation of Western region facilities in 2003.

Outside processing fees decreased $3 million, or five percent, to $68 million in 2004, from $71 million in
2003 and increased $6 million, or nine percent, in 2003, compared to $65 million in 2002.

Software expense increased $6 million, or 16 percent, in 2004 compared to an increase of $4 million, or
12 percent in 2003. The increases in 2004 and 2003 were primarily due to increased investments in technology
and the implementation of several systems, which had previously been in the development stages, increasing
both amortization and maintenance costs.

Customer services decreased $2 million, or 10 percent, to $23 million in 2004, from $25 million in 2003
and decreased $1 million, or four percent, in 2003, compared to $26 million in 2002. Customer services
represent expenses paid on behalf of customers, and are one method to attract and retain title and escrow
deposits in the Corporation’s Financial Services Group.

Litigation and operational losses increased $6 million, or 30 percent, to $24 million in 2004, from
$18 million in 2003 and decreased $2 million, or 10 percent, in 2003, compared to $20 million in 2002.
Litigation and operational losses include traditionally defined operating losses, such as fraud or processing
problems, as well as uninsured losses and litigation losses. These expenses are subject to fluctuation due to
timing of authorized and actual litigation settlements as well as insurance settlements.

A goodwill impairment charge of $86 million was recorded in 2002 as a result of the Corporation’s
evaluation of goodwill. This charge resulted from a decline in equity markets, and its related impact on the
valuation of the Corporation’s Munder subsidiary. Declines in equity markets could trigger additional goodwill
impairment charges in future periods. Additional information on the goodwill impairment charge can be
found in the ‘‘Critical Accounting Policies’’ section on page 54 of this financial review and Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 75.

Other noninterest expenses decreased $13 million, or five percent, in 2004 compared to an $11 million
decrease, or four percent, in 2003. The decline in other noninterest expenses in 2004, when compared to 2003,
was primarily due to an $8 million change in the provision for credit losses on lending-related commitments,
which was a credit of $11 million in 2004 and a credit of $3 million in 2003. In addition, State of Michigan
taxes decreased $7 million and consulting fees decreased $5 million in 2004 when compared to 2003. These
decreases were partially offset by an increase in interest expense recorded on tax liabilities of $14 million in
2004, compared to 2003. The decrease in noninterest expense in 2003, compared to 2002, was due to a
$14 million change in the provision for credit losses on lending-related commitments, which was a credit of
$3 million in 2003 and a charge of $17 million in 2002. For additional information on the provision for credit
losses on lending-related commitments, refer to Notes 1 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 64 and 93, respectively.

Management expects a low-single digit increase in noninterest expenses while continuing to make impor-
tant investments for the Corporation’s future growth. Included in this outlook is an incremental $45 million in
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expenses, compared to 2004; $32 million related to employee benefits expense, including both stock-based
compensation and pension expense, and $13 million related to new branches opened in 2004 and 2005.

The Corporation’s efficiency ratio is defined as total noninterest expenses divided by the sum of net
interest income (FTE) and noninterest income, excluding net securities gains. The ratio increased to 55.90 per-
cent in 2004, compared to 53.64 percent in 2003 and 50.59 percent in 2002. The efficiency ratio increased in
2004 and 2003 primarily due to the decline in net revenues from 2003 and 2002 levels.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes was $353 million in 2004, compared to $292 million in 2003 and
$281 million in 2002. The effective tax rate, computed by dividing the provision for income taxes by income
before income taxes, was 31.8 percent in 2004, 30.7 percent in 2003 and 31.8 percent in 2002. The effective tax
rate increase in 2004 from 2003 levels resulted, in part, from foreign tax credits recognized in 2003 and a
decrease in non-taxable revenue on bank-owned life insurance policies. The effective tax rate decline in 2003
from 2002 levels resulted, in part, from foreign tax credits recognized in 2003. The Corporation’s $239 million
deferred income tax liability at December 31, 2004 was net of a deferred tax asset of $402 million, which the
Corporation’s management believes will be realized in future periods. Management based this conclusion on
the expectation that taxable income in future years will equal or exceed taxable income in 2004, both in the
aggregate and in those state(s) where the incidence of taxable income is necessary to assure realization of
deferred tax assets. In the event that the future taxable income does not occur in the manner anticipated, other
initiatives could be undertaken to preclude the need to recognize a valuation allowance against the deferred tax
asset.

STRATEGIC LINES OF BUSINESS

The Corporation’s operations are strategically aligned into three major lines of business: the Business
Bank, Small Business and Personal Financial Services, and Wealth and Institutional Management. These lines of
business are differentiated based upon the products and services provided. In addition to the three major lines
of business, the Finance Division is also reported as a segment. The Other category includes items not directly
associated with these lines of business or the Finance Division. Note 24 to the consolidated financial state-
ments on page 104 describes the business activities of each line of business and the methodologies, which
form the basis for these results, and presents financial results of these businesses for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

The following table presents net income (loss) by line of business.
Years Ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
(dollar amounts in millions)

Business Bank *************************************** $ 688 73% $ 606 72% $511 71%
Small Business and Personal Financial Services ********** 175 19 178 21 200 28
Wealth and Institutional Management ****************** 76 8 57 7 9 1

939 100% 841 100% 720 100%
Finance********************************************* (158) (139) (33)
Other ********************************************** (24) (41) (86)

Total ********************************************* $ 757 $ 661 $601

The Business Bank’s net income increased $82 million, or 14 percent, to $688 million in 2004, compared
to an increase of $95 million, or 19 percent, to $606 million in 2003. Contributing to the 2004 increase was a
significant decrease in the provision for loan losses, partially offset by a significant decline in net interest
income. Net interest income declined $160 million, or 11 percent, in 2004 primarily due to a $2.0 billion, or
six percent, decline in average loans and lower funding credits received on deposits and equity. The provision
for loan losses declined $253 million in 2004, primarily the result of improving credit quality trends as
discussed in the ‘‘Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses’’ section of this financial review on page 29. An
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increase in noninterest income of $10 million in 2004 was primarily due to a $21 million increase in income
distributions (net of write-downs) from unconsolidated venture capital and private equity investments and a
$7 million gain on the sale of the Corporation’s merchant card processing business, partially offset by an
$8 million decrease in net securities gains, a $5 million decrease in commercial lending fees and a $4 million
decrease in service charges on deposit accounts. A decrease in noninterest expenses of $21 million in 2004 was
primarily due to a $13 million decline in salaries and employee benefits expense and a $4 million decrease in
the provision for credit losses on lending-related commitments.

Small Business and Personal Financial Services’s net income decreased $3 million, or two percent, to
$175 million in 2004, compared to a decrease of $22 million, or 11 percent, to $178 million in 2003. The
decrease in net income in 2004 was from a decline in net interest income partially offset by a decline in the
provision for loan losses. Net interest income declined $35 million, or six percent, in 2004 primarily due to
lower funding credits received on deposits and equity. The provision for loan losses declined $20 million in
2004, primarily the result of improving credit quality trends. The decline in noninterest income in 2004 was
primarily the result of lower mortgage fees and the decline in noninterest expenses in 2004 was, in part, due to
a $7 million decrease in mortgage and check processing expenses and a $4 million decrease in the provision for
credit losses on lending related commitments.

Wealth and Institutional Management’s net income increased $19 million, or 33 percent, to $76 million
in 2004, compared to net income of $57 million in 2003, and $9 million in 2002. The increase in net income
in 2004 was principally due to a decrease in the provision for loan losses and an increase in noninterest
income. Net interest income was flat in 2004, in spite of a nine percent increase in loans due to lower funding
credits. The provision for loan losses declined $22 million in 2004, primarily the result of improving credit
quality trends. A $12 million increase in noninterest income in 2004 was primarily due to increases in
fiduciary income and investment advisory fees.

The net loss in the Finance Division was $158 million in 2004, $139 million in 2003, and $33 million in
2002. The larger loss in 2004, compared to 2003, was the result of a $42 million decline in gains on the sales
of securities and a lower effective tax benefit, partially offset by a $67 million increase in net interest income,
resulting primarily from lower funding credits paid to deposit related businesses on indeterminate life deposits.

The net loss for the Other category was $24 million in 2004, compared to a net loss of $41 million in
2003 and $86 million in 2002. The lower net loss in 2004 was primarily due to an $18 million decline in the
loan loss provision not assigned to the other segments.

Market Segments

The Corporation’s management accounting system also produces market segment results for the Corpora-
tion’s four primary geographic regions: Midwest and Other Markets, Western, Texas, and Florida. Note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 104 presents financial results of these market segments for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

The following table presents net income (loss) by market segment.
Years Ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
(dollar amounts in millions)

Midwest and Other Markets **************************** $ 536 57% $ 447 53% $ 326 46%
Western ********************************************** 295 31 291 35 290 40
Texas ************************************************ 91 10 92 11 88 12
Florida*********************************************** 17 2 11 1 16 2

939 100% 841 100% 720 100%
Finance and Other Businesses ************************** (182) (180) (119)

Total ********************************************** $ 757 $ 661 $ 601
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Midwest and Other Markets’ net income increased $89 million, or 20 percent, to $536 million in 2004,
compared to an increase of $121 million, or 37 percent, in 2003. Contributing to the increase in 2004 was a
significant decline in the provision for loan losses, partially offset by a significant decline in net interest
income. Net interest income declined $108 million in 2004 due to a $1.6 billion, or seven percent, decline in
average loans and lower funding credits received on deposits and equity. The provision for loan losses declined
$220 million in 2004, primarily the result of improving credit quality trends as discussed in the ‘‘Provision and
Allowance for Loan Losses’’ section of this financial review on page 29. An increase in noninterest income of
$12 million in 2004 was primarily due to a $21 million increase in income distributions (net of write-downs)
from unconsolidated venture capital and private equity investments, partially offset by a $10 million decrease
in net securities gains. A decrease in noninterest expenses of $8 million in 2004 was primarily due to a
$10 million decline in the provision for credit losses on lending-related commitments.

The Western Region’s net income increased $4 million, or one percent, to $295 million in 2004, compared
to an increase of $1 million to $291 million in 2003. Contributing to the Western Region’s modest income
growth in 2004 was a decline in the provision for loan losses, partially offset by a decline in net interest
income. Net interest income declined $70 million in 2004, primarily due to lower funding credits paid on
deposits and equity. The provision for loan losses declined $59 million in 2004, primarily the result of
improving credit quality trends. Noninterest expenses decreased $19 million in 2004, which included a
$9 million decline in salaries and related employee benefits expense and a $2 million decrease in customer
services expense.

The Texas Region’s net income decreased $1 million, or one percent, to $91 million in 2004, compared to
an increase of $4 million, or five percent, to $92 million in 2003. The decrease in net income in 2004 was due
to a decrease in net interest income, partially offset by a decrease in the provision for loan losses. Net interest
income declined $19 million in 2004, resulting from a decline in funding credits paid on deposits and equity
and a $324 million, or eight percent, decline in average deposits. The provision for loan losses decreased
$13 million in 2004, primarily the result of improving credit quality trends.

The Florida Region’s net income increased $6 million, or 55 percent, to $17 million in 2004, compared to
a decrease of $5 million to $11 million in 2003. Contributing to the Florida Region’s increase in net income in
2004 was a $3 million increase in net interest income, primarily due to an increase in average loan and deposit
balances, and a $2 million decline in noninterest expenses, primarily due to insurance proceeds related to a
legal settlement.

The net loss for the Finance and Other Businesses segment was $182 million in 2004, $180 million in
2003, and $119 million in 2002. The larger loss in 2004 was primarily the result of a $42 million decline in
net securities gains and a lower effective tax benefit, offset by a $78 million increase in net interest income,
resulting primarily from lower funding credits paid to deposit related businesses on indeterminate life deposits,
and an $18 million decline in the loan loss provision not assigned to the other segments.

BALANCE SHEET AND CAPITAL FUNDS ANALYSIS

Total assets were $51.8 billion at December 31, 2004, a decrease of $826 million from $52.6 billion at
December 31, 2003. On an average basis, total assets decreased to $50.9 billion in 2004 from $53.0 billion in
2003, a decrease of $2.1 billion. The Corporation also experienced a $1.4 billion decline in average deposits
and a $534 million decline in average medium- and long-term debt in 2004, when compared to 2003.

37



TABLE 6: ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES AND LOANS
December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(in millions)

Investment securities available-for-sale:
U.S. Treasury and other Government agency

securities********************************** $ 3,756 $ 4,309 $ 2,748 $ 3,920 $ 3,135
State and municipal securities ***************** 7 11 23 32 46
Other securities ****************************** 180 169 282 339 710

Total investment securities available-for-sale *** $ 3,943 $ 4,489 $ 3,053 $ 4,291 $ 3,891

Commercial loans ***************************** $22,039 $21,579 $23,961 $24,069 $25,062
Real estate construction loans:

Real estate construction business line*********** 2,461 2,754 2,900 2,824 n/a
Other ************************************** 592 643 557 434 n/a

Total real estate construction loans *********** 3,053 3,397 3,457 3,258 2,915
Commercial mortgage loans:

Commercial real estate business line *********** 1,556 1,655 1,626 1,421 n/a
Other ************************************** 6,680 6,223 5,568 4,846 n/a

Total commercial mortgage loans ************ 8,236 7,878 7,194 6,267 5,361
Residential mortgage loans ********************** 1,294 1,228 1,143 1,110 1,088
Consumer loans ******************************* 2,751 2,610 2,465 2,260 2,144
Lease financing ******************************** 1,265 1,301 1,296 1,217 1,029
International loans:

Government and official institutions *********** 3 6 9 9 2
Banks and other financial institutions ********** 11 45 199 427 402
Commercial and industrial ******************** 2,191 2,258 2,557 2,579 2,167

Total international loans ******************** 2,205 2,309 2,765 3,015 2,571

Total loans ******************************** $40,843 $40,302 $42,281 $41,196 $40,170

n/a — not available

TABLE 7: LOAN MATURITIES AND INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY
December 31, 2004

Loans Maturing
After One

Within But Within After Five
One Year* Five Years Years Total

(in millions)

Commercial loans*************************************** $16,907 $4,177 $ 955 $22,039
Real estate construction loans***************************** 2,087 793 173 3,053
Commercial mortgage loans ****************************** 2,665 4,182 1,389 8,236
International loans ************************************** 1,860 337 8 2,205

Total ********************************************** $23,519 $9,489 $2,525 $35,533

Sensitivity of Loans to Changes in Interest Rates:
Predetermined (fixed) interest rates********************** $3,585 $2,059
Floating interest rates ********************************** 5,904 466

Total ********************************************** $9,489 $2,525

* Includes demand loans, loans having no stated repayment schedule or maturity and overdrafts
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Earning Assets

Total earning assets were $48.0 billion at December 31, 2004, a decrease of $788 million from $48.8 bil-
lion at December 31, 2003. The Corporation’s average earning assets balances are reflected in Table 2 on
page 25. On an average basis, total earning assets were $47.0 billion in 2004, compared to $48.8 billion in
2003. Total loans were $40.8 billion at December 31, 2004, an increase of $541 million from $40.3 billion at
December 31, 2003. However, total loans, on an average basis, decreased four percent to $40.7 billion in 2004,
from $42.4 billion in 2003. Although certain business loan categories continued to show growth in 2004, weak
loan demand and management’s strategy to reduce large corporate non-relationship loans resulted in a decline
in total loans, on an average basis. The Corporation experienced growth, on an average basis, in the Private
Banking (9 percent) and National Dealer Services (6 percent) loan portfolios, from 2003 to 2004. Average
loans in the Global Corporate Banking portfolio, which includes Large Corporate and Global Finance, declined
21 percent over the same period as a result of maturing non-relationship loans that were not renewed. Average
loans in the Commercial Real Estate loan portfolio also decreased 10 percent in 2004.

Management currently expects average loan growth in the low to mid-single digit range for 2005, when
compared to 2004, with average earning assets virtually unchanged. In addition, management anticipates the
mix of earning assets will change as the excess liquidity will be used to fund loan growth, thus resulting in a
decline in short-term investments.

Short-term investments include interest-bearing deposits with banks, federal funds sold, securities pur-
chased under agreements to resell, trading securities and loans held-for-sale. These investments provide a range
of maturities under one year to manage short-term investment requirements of the Corporation. Interest-
bearing deposits with banks are investments with banks in developed countries or foreign banks’ international
banking facilities located in the United States. Average short-term investments remained flat at $1.9 billion
during 2004, compared to 2003. Federal funds sold offer supplemental earning opportunities and serve
correspondent banks. Loans held-for-sale typically represent residential mortgage loans and Small Business
Administration loans that have been originated and which management decided to sell.

TABLE 8: ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES PORTFOLIO-Fully Taxable Equivalent
December 31, 2004

Maturity*
Weighted
Average

Within 1 Year 1 - 5 Years 5 - 10 Years After 10 Years Total Maturity
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Yrs./Mos.

(dollar amounts in millions)

Available-for-sale

U.S. Treasury and
other Government
agency securities ** $773 3.13% $ 92 3.93% $1,013 3.56% $1,878 3.70% $3,756 3.55% 8/4

State and municipal
securities********* 3 5.79 2 5.24 2 6.41 — — 7 5.75 2/11

Other securities

Other bonds, notes
and debentures 92 4.62 9 6.65 — — — — 101 4.80 0/10

Other
investments***** — — — — — — 79 — 79 — —

Total investment
securities available-
for-sale ************ $868 3.30% $103 4.21% $1,015 3.57% $1,957 3.70% $3,943 3.59% 8/2

* Based on final contractual maturity.

** Balances are excluded from the calculation of total yield.
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Investment securities available-for-sale declined $546 million to $3.9 billion at December 31, 2004 from
$4.5 billion at December 31, 2003. Average investment securities available-for-sale declined to $4.3 billion in
2004, compared to $4.5 billion in 2003. Average U.S. Government and agency securities decreased $167 mil-
lion to $4.1 billion at December 31, 2004, while average state and municipal securities decreased $7 million to
$9 million in 2004. Decreases in U.S. Government and agency securities resulted from interest rate risk and
balance sheet management decisions while the tax-exempt portfolio of state and municipal securities contin-
ued to decrease as reduced tax advantages for these types of securities discouraged additional investment.
Average other securities decreased $34 million to $204 million in 2004. Other securities at December 31, 2004
consisted primarily of collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO’s), Brady bonds and Eurobonds.

Average commercial real estate loans, consisting of real estate construction and commercial mortgage
loans, increased $194 million, or two percent, from $11.1 billion in 2003 to $11.3 billion in 2004. Average
loans to borrowers not primarily engaged in the business of commercial real estate represented $7.0 billion, or
62 percent, of the 2004 $11.3 billion average commercial real estate loans, as compared to $6.5 billion, or
59 percent, of the 2003 $11.1 billion average commercial real estate loans.

Average residential mortgage loans increased $45 million, or four percent, from 2003, due to manage-
ment’s decision to retain mortgages originated for certain relationship customers.

TABLE 9: INTERNATIONAL CROSS-BORDER OUTSTANDINGS

(year-end outstandings exceeding 1% of total assets)
December 31

Banks and
Government Other Commercial
and Official Financial and
Institutions Institutions Industrial Total

(in millions)

Mexico
2004 ******************************************* $ 4 $— $ 937 $ 941
2003 ******************************************* 12 3 1,106 1,121
2002 ******************************************* 15 7 1,168 1,190

Active risk management practices minimize risk inherent in international lending arrangements. These
practices include structuring bilateral agreements or participating in bank facilities, which secure repayment
from sources external to the borrower’s country. Accordingly, such international outstandings are excluded
from the cross-border risk of that country. Mexico had cross-border outstandings of $941 million, or 1.82 per-
cent of total assets at December 31, 2004 and was the only country with outstandings exceeding 1.00 percent
of total assets at December 31, 2004. The United Kingdom had cross-border outstandings of $410 million, or
0.79 percent of total assets at December 31, 2004 and was the only country with cross-border outstandings
between 0.75 and 1.00 percent of total assets at year-end 2004. Additional information on the Corporation’s
international cross-border risk in countries where the Corporation’s outstandings exceeded 1.00 percent of
total assets at the end of one or more of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004 is provided in
Table 9 above.

Deposits And Borrowed Funds

Average deposits were $40.1 billion during 2004, a decrease of $1.4 billion, or three percent, from 2003.
Average noninterest-bearing deposits grew $212 million, or two percent, from 2003. Noninterest-bearing
deposits include title and escrow deposits in the Corporation’s Financial Services Group, which benefit from
high home mortgage financing and refinancing activity and some of which are not expected to be long-lived.
Future events, such as an increase in interest rates from current levels, could cause a decline in home mortgage
financing and refinancing activity, which may result in lower levels of these deposits. Average interest-bearing
transaction, savings and money market deposits increased two percent during 2004, to $19.4 billion. Average
certificates of deposit decreased $2.1 billion in 2004, or 26 percent, from 2003. This decrease was primarily
from certificates of deposit issued in denominations in excess of $100,000 through brokers or to institutional
investors (‘‘institutional CD’s’’), which matured and were not replaced. Excess funds, caused by a decline in
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average loans in 2004 and increases in other deposit categories contributed to the reduced level of institutional
CD’s.

Average short-term borrowings decreased $275 million, or 50 percent, as a decline in average loans
reduced the need for these funding sources. Short-term borrowings include federal funds purchased, securities
sold under agreements to repurchase, commercial paper and treasury tax and loan notes.

The Corporation uses medium-term debt (both domestic and European) and long-term debt to provide
funding to support earning assets while providing liquidity which mirrors the estimated duration of deposits.
Long-term subordinated notes further help maintain the Corporation’s and subsidiary banks’ total capital
ratios at a level that qualifies for the lowest FDIC risk-based insurance premium. Medium- and long-term debt
decreased on an average basis by $534 million as a decline in average loans reduced the need for these funding
sources. Further information on medium- and long-term debt is provided in Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements on page 78.

Capital

Common shareholders’ equity was $5.1 billion at both December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003. The
following table presents a summary of changes in common shareholders’ equity in 2004:

(in millions)

Balance at January 1, 2004 *********************************************************** $5,110
Retention of retained earnings (net income less cash dividends declared) ******************* 401
Recognition of stock-based compensation expense *************************************** 35
Net issuance of common stock under employee stock plans ****************************** 72
Change in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)* ***************************** (143)
Repurchase of approximately 6.5 million common shares ******************************** (370)

Balance at December 31, 2004 ******************************************************** $5,105

* Includes a decrease in accumulated net gains on cash flow hedges ($130 million) and an increase in net
unrealized losses on investment securities available-for-sale ($11 million), due to changes in the interest rate
environment.

Further information on the change in other comprehensive income (loss) is provided in Note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 81.

The Corporation declared common dividends totaling $356 million, or $2.08 per share, on net income
applicable to common stock of $757 million. The dividend payout ratio calculated on a per share basis, was
48 percent in 2004 versus 53 percent in 2003 and 56 percent in 2002.

When capital exceeds necessary levels, the Corporation’s common stock can be repurchased as a way to
return excess capital to shareholders. Repurchasing common stock offers a flexible way to control capital levels
by adjusting the capital deployed in reaction to core balance sheet growth. On December 1, 2003, the
Corporation announced it would resume its share repurchase program under an existing authorization. In
March 2004, the Board of Directors of the Corporation authorized the additional purchase of up to 10 million
shares of Comerica Incorporated outstanding common stock in the open market. In addition to limits that
result from the Board authorization, the share repurchase program is constrained by holding company liquid-
ity, internal targets for total return to shareholders and capital levels relative to internal targets and regulatory
minimums. The Corporation repurchased 6.5 million shares in the open market in 2004 for $370 million
compared to 0.5 million in 2003 for $27 million. Comerica Incorporated common stock available for
repurchase under Board authority totaled 8.2 million shares at December 31, 2004. Refer to Note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 80 for additional information on the Corporation’s share repurchase
program.

At December 31, 2004, the Corporation and its banking subsidiaries exceeded the capital ratios required
for an institution to be considered ‘‘well capitalized’’ by the standards developed under the Federal Deposit
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Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991. Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements on
page 92 for the capital ratios.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Corporation assumes various types of risk in the normal course of business. Management classifies the
risk exposures into five areas: (1) credit, (2) market and liquidity, (3) operational, (4) compliance and
(5) business risks; and employs, or is in the process of employing, various risk management processes to
identify, measure, monitor and control these risks, as described below.

In 2002, the Corporation launched a multi-year program to enhance the Corporation’s risk management
capabilities. As part of this program, the Corporation is introducing additional processes, tools and systems
designed to provide management with deeper insight into the Corporation’s risks, enhance the Corporation’s
ability to control risks, and ensure that appropriate compensation is received for risks taken. As part of the
overall risk governance process, the Corporation established an Enterprise-Wide Risk Management Committee
made up of various risk managers throughout the Corporation that is responsible for managing the Corpora-
tion’s aggregated risk position. In order to facilitate this effort, a Risk Management Office was established that is
responsible for measuring and monitoring the aggregated risk pool. In addition, the Risk Management Office,
in concert with the Corporate Audit Department, is expected to have responsibility for providing an indepen-
dent testing and validation process for the various risk measurements. While specialists in the risk management
areas of credit, market and liquidity, operational, compliance and business will continue to manage individual
risks, the Risk Management Office will provide the Enterprise-Wide Risk Management Committee, manage-
ment and the Board with an independent view of the Corporation’s aggregated risk position.

Management completed its assessment of the internal controls over financial reporting as of December 31,
2004 and issued its assessment (see page 114).

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk of loss due to failure of a customer or counterparty to meet its financial
obligations in accordance with contractual terms. The Corporation manages credit risk through underwriting,
periodically reviewing, and approving its credit exposures using Board committee approved credit policies and
guidelines. Additionally, the Corporation manages credit risk through loan sales and loan portfolio diversifica-
tion, limiting exposure to any single industry, customer or guarantor, and selling participations and/or
syndicating credit exposures above those levels it deems prudent to third parties.

During 2004, the Corporation continued its focus on the credit components of the previously announced
enterprise-wide risk management program. The new risk rating system designed in 2003 was successfully
implemented across all lines of business. The evaluation of the Corporation’s loan portfolio with these tools is
anticipated to provide improved measurement of the potential risks within the loan portfolio. Other enhance-
ments in portfolio analytics were made in 2004, building a foundation upon which the trend analysis of the
new ratings will be added. Further progress was made in the credit technology investment program, establish-
ing data collection mechanisms for further enhancement of risk metrics.
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TABLE 10: SUMMARY OF NONPERFORMING ASSETS AND PAST DUE LOANS
December 31

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(dollar amounts in millions)

NONPERFORMING ASSETS
Nonaccrual loans:

Commercial********************************************* $161 $295 $368 $466 $232
Real estate construction:

Real estate construction business line********************* 31 21 17 8 5
Other ************************************************ 3 3 2 2 —

Total real estate construction ************************** 34 24 19 10 5
Commercial mortgage:

Commercial real estate business line ********************* 6 3 8 1 —
Other ************************************************ 58 84 45 17 17

Total commercial mortgage *************************** 64 87 53 18 17
Residential mortgage ************************************* 1 2 1 — —
Consumer ********************************************** 1 7 5 6 4
Lease financing ****************************************** 15 24 5 8 4
International ******************************************** 36 68 114 109 69

Total nonaccrual loans ********************************* 312 507 565 617 331
Reduced-rate loans***************************************** — — — — 2

Total nonperforming loans****************************** 312 507 565 617 333
Other real estate******************************************* 27 30 10 10 6
Nonaccrual debt securities ********************************** — 1 4 — —

Total nonperforming assets ***************************** $339 $538 $579 $627 $339

Nonperforming loans as a percentage of total loans************** 0.76% 1.26% 1.34% 1.50% 0.83%
Nonperforming assets as a percentage of total loans, other real

estate and nonaccrual debt securities ************************* 0.83 1.33 1.37 1.52 0.84
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total nonperforming

assets **************************************************** 198 149 136 102 172
Loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing *************** $ 15 $ 32 $ 43 $ 44 $ 36

Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets include loans and loans held-for-sale on nonaccrual status, loans which have been
renegotiated to less than market rates due to a serious weakening of the borrower’s financial condition, real
estate which has been acquired primarily through foreclosure and is awaiting disposition (Other Real Estate or
ORE) and debt securities on nonaccrual status.

Consumer loans, except for certain large personal purpose consumer and residential mortgage loans, are
charged-off no later than 180 days past due, and earlier, if deemed uncollectible. Loans, other than consumer
loans, and debt securities are generally placed on nonaccrual status when management determines that
principal or interest may not be fully collectible, but no later than 90 days past due on principal or interest,
unless the loan or debt security is fully collateralized and in the process of collection. Loan amounts in excess
of probable future cash collections are charged-off to an amount that management ultimately expects to
collect. Interest previously accrued but not collected on nonaccrual loans is charged against current income at
the time the loan is placed on nonaccrual. Income on such loans is then recognized only to the extent that cash
is received and where the future collection of principal is probable. Loans that have been restructured to yield a
rate that was equal to or greater than the rate charged for new loans with comparable risk and have met the
requirements for a return to accrual status are not included in nonperforming assets. However, such loans may
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be required to be evaluated for impairment. Refer to Note 3 of the consolidated financial statements on
page 73 for a further discussion of impaired loans.

Nonperforming assets decreased $199 million, or 37 percent, to $339 million at December 31, 2004 from
$538 million at December 31, 2003. As shown in Table 10 above, nonaccrual loans decreased $195 million, or
38 percent, to $312 million at December 31, 2004, from $507 million at December 31, 2003. ORE decreased
$3 million to $27 million at December 31, 2004 from $30 million at December 31, 2003. There were nominal
nonaccrual debt securities at December 31, 2004 compared to $1 million at December 31, 2003. The $195 mil-
lion reduction in nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2004 from year-end 2003 levels resulted primarily from a
$134 million decline in nonaccrual commercial loans, a $32 million decline in nonaccrual international loans
and a $23 million decline in nonaccrual commercial mortgage loans. An analysis on nonaccrual loans at
December 31, 2004, based on the Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) code, is presented on page 45. Loans
past due 90 days or more and still on accrual status decreased $17 million to $15 million at December 31,
2004, from $32 million at December 31, 2003. Nonperforming assets as a percentage of total loans, other real
estate and nonaccrual debt securities was 0.83 percent and 1.33 percent at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

The following table presents a summary of changes in nonaccrual loans.
2004 2003

(in millions)

Balance at January 1 ************************************************************** $ 507 $ 565
Loans transferred to nonaccrual (1)************************************************* 332 660
Nonaccrual business loan gross charge-offs (2)*************************************** (248) (396)
Loans transferred to accrual status (1)*********************************************** (7) (15)
Nonaccrual business loans sold (3) ************************************************* (96) (144)
Payments/Other (4) ************************************************************** (176) (163)

Balance at December 31*********************************************************** $ 312 $ 507

(1) Based on an analysis of nonaccrual loans with book balances greater than $2 million.

(2) Analysis of gross loan charge-offs:

Nonaccrual business loans***************************************************** $ 248 $ 396
Performing watch list loans (as defined below)*********************************** 5 1
Consumer and residential mortgage loans *************************************** 15 11

Total gross loan charge-offs ************************************************** — —

$ 268 $ 408

(3) Analysis of loans sold:

Nonaccrual business loans***************************************************** $ 96 $ 144
Performing watch list loans (as defined below) sold ****************************** 69 15

Total loans sold ************************************************************ $ 165 $ 159

(4) Net change related to nonaccrual loans with balances less than $2 million, other than business loan gross
charge-offs and nonaccrual loans sold, are included in Payments/Other.

Loans with balances greater than $2 million transferred to nonaccrual status decreased $328 million, or
50 percent, to $332 million in 2004, compared with $660 million in 2003. There were 8 loans greater than
$10 million transferred to nonaccrual in 2004. These loans totaled $130 million and were to companies in the
automotive ($58 million), services ($21 million), transportation (shipping) ($20 million), technology-related
($16 million), and contractor ($15 million) sectors.

The Corporation sold $96 million of nonaccrual business loans in 2004. These loans were to customers in
the services ($27 million), utilities ($15 million), non-automotive manufacturing ($12 million), transportation
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($8 million), wholesale trade ($8 million), automotive ($7 million), contractor ($7 million) and other
($12 million) sectors.

The following table presents a summary of total internally classified nonaccrual and watch list loans
(generally consistent with regulatory defined special mention, substandard and doubtful loans) at Decem-
ber 31, 2004. Consistent with the decrease in nonaccrual loans from December 31, 2003 to December 31,
2004, total combined nonaccrual and watch list loans declined both in dollars and as a percentage of the total
loan portfolio.

December 31
2004 2003
(dollar amounts

in millions)

Total nonaccrual and watch list loans ************************************************* $2,245 $3,284
As a percentage of total loans ******************************************************** 5.5% 8.2%

The following table presents a summary of nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2004 and loans transferred
to nonaccrual and net charge-offs during the year ended December 31, 2004, based on the SIC code.

December 31, Year Ended December 31, 2004
2004 Loans

Nonaccrual Transferred to Net
SIC Category Loans Nonaccrual Charge-Offs

(dollar amounts in millions)

Automotive******************************************** $ 81 26% $ 86 26% $ 33 17%
Real estate********************************************* 54 17 20 6 8 4
Services *********************************************** 34 11 31 9 26 13
Non-automotive manufacturing ************************** 34 11 45 14 16 9
Retail trade ******************************************** 16 5 5 1 18 9
Air transportation ************************************** 15 5 7 2 12 6
Wholesale trade **************************************** 14 5 18 6 19 10
Transportation ***************************************** 12 4 33 10 4 2
Contractors******************************************** 11 3 40 12 27 14
Entertainment ***************************************** 10 3 3 1 3 1
Technology-related ************************************* 7 2 23 7 23 12
Other************************************************* 24 8 21 6 5 3

Total************************************************** $312 100% $332 100% $194 100%

* Based on an analysis of nonaccrual loans with book balances greater than $2 million.

Shared National Credit Program (SNC) loans comprised approximately 11 percent and 20 percent of total
nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. SNC loans are facilities greater than $20 mil-
lion shared by three or more federally supervised financial institutions which are reviewed by regulatory
authorities at the agent bank level. These loans comprised approximately 15 percent and 14 percent of total
loans at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. SNC loans comprised approximately 19 percent of 2004
total net charge-offs.

The following nonaccrual loans table indicates the percentage of nonaccrual loan value to original contract
value, which exhibits the degree to which loans reported as nonaccrual have been partially charged-off.

Nonaccrual Loans
December 31

2004 2003
(dollar amounts

in millions)

Carrying value ************************************************************************ $312 $507
Contractual value ********************************************************************* 578 874
Carrying value as a percentage of contractual value **************************************** 54% 58%
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Key credit quality measures, including nonaccrual and watch list loans as a percentage of total loans, new
loans transferred to nonaccrual and net charge-offs, improved in 2004. Management expects stable credit
quality in 2005 and full-year 2005 average net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans to be approximately
35-40 basis points.

Concentration of Credit

Loans to borrowers involved with the automotive industry represented the largest significant industry
concentration at December 31, 2004 and 2003. These loans totaled $6.6 billion, or 16 percent, of total loans at
December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003. Included in these totals are automotive dealer loans of $4.2 bil-
lion and $4.3 billion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, of which $2.6 billion and $2.7 billion at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, were floor plan loans. All other industry concentrations individu-
ally represented less than 10 percent of total loans at year-end 2004.

Nonperforming assets to borrowers involved with the automotive industry comprised approximately
25 percent of total nonperforming assets at December 31, 2004. The largest automotive industry loan on
nonaccrual status at December 31, 2004, was $19 million. Total automotive industry-related net charge-offs
were approximately $33 million in 2004. The largest automotive industry-related charge-off during 2004 was
$7 million.

Commercial Real Estate Lending

The Corporation takes measures to limit risk inherent in its commercial real estate lending activities. These
measures include limiting exposure to those borrowers directly involved in the commercial real estate markets
and adherence to policies requiring conservative loan-to-value ratios for such loans. Commercial real estate
loans, consisting of real estate construction and commercial mortgage loans, totaled $11.3 billion at Decem-
ber 31, 2004, of which $7.3 billion, or 64 percent, involved borrowers not primarily engaged in the business of
commercial real estate and where the sources of repayment are not dependent on the performance of the real
estate market.

The real estate construction loan portfolio contains loans primarily made to long-time customers with
satisfactory completion experience. The portfolio totaled $3.1 billion and had approximately 1,582 loans, of
which 57 percent had balances less than $1 million at December 31, 2004. The largest real estate construction
loan had a balance of approximately $39 million at December 31, 2004. The commercial mortgage loan
portfolio totaled $8.2 billion at December 31, 2004. The portfolio had approximately 8,611 loans, of which
77 percent had balances of less than $1 million, at December 31, 2004. The largest commercial mortgage loan
had a balance of approximately $56 million at December 31, 2004.

The geographic distribution of real estate construction and commercial mortgage loan borrowers is an
important factor in diversifying credit risk. The following table indicates, by location of lending office, the
diversification of the Corporation’s real estate construction and commercial mortgage loan portfolio.

Geographic Distribution of Borrowers (by location of lending office)
December 31, 2004

Real Estate Commercial
Construction Mortgage

Amount % Amount %
(dollar amounts in millions)

Michigan ********************************************************* $1,279 42% $4,871 59%
California ********************************************************* 1,078 35 1,604 20
Texas ************************************************************* 484 16 760 9
Florida *********************************************************** 127 4 251 3
Other************************************************************* 85 3 750 9

Total *********************************************************** $3,053 100% $8,236 100%
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Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk of loss due to adverse movements in market rates or prices, which include
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices; the failure to meet financial obligations coming due
because of an inability to liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding; and the inability to easily unwind or
offset specific exposures without significantly lowering prices because of inadequate market depth or market
disruptions.

Interest Rate Risk

Net interest income is the predominant source of revenue for the Corporation. Interest rate risk arises
primarily through the Corporation’s core business activities of extending loans and accepting deposits. The
Corporation actively manages its material exposure to interest rate risk. The principal objective of interest rate
risk management is to maximize net interest income while operating within acceptable limits established for
interest rate risk and maintaining adequate levels of funding and liquidity. The Corporation utilizes various
types of financial instruments to manage the extent to which net interest income may be affected by fluctua-
tions in interest rates. The Risk Asset Quality Review Committee of the Corporation’s Board of Directors and
the Corporation’s Asset and Liability Policy Committee (ALPC) establish and monitor compliance with the
policies and risk limits pertaining to interest rate risk management activities. The ALPC meets regularly to
discuss and review interest rate risk management strategies and is comprised of executive and senior manage-
ment from various areas of the Corporation, including finance, lending, investments, deposit gathering and
risk management.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

Interest rate risk arises in the normal course of business due to differences in the repricing and maturity
characteristics of assets and liabilities. Since no single measurement system satisfies all management objectives,
a combination of techniques is used to manage interest rate risk, including simulation analysis, economic value
of equity and asset and liability repricing schedules. The ALPC regularly reviews the results of these interest rate
risk measurements.

The Corporation frequently evaluates net interest income under various balance sheet and interest rate
scenarios, using simulation analysis as its principal risk management technique. The results of these analyses
provide the information needed to assess the balance sheet structure. Changes in economic activity, different
from those management included in its simulation analyses, whether domestically or internationally, could
translate into a materially different interest rate environment than currently expected. Management evaluates
‘‘base’’ net interest income under what is believed to be the most likely balance sheet structure and interest rate
environment. This ‘‘base’’ net interest income is then evaluated against interest rate scenarios that increase and
decrease 200 basis points (but no lower than zero percent) from the most likely rate environment. In addition,
adjustments to asset prepayment levels, yield curves, and overall balance sheet mix and growth assumptions are
made to be consistent with each interest rate environment. For purposes of this analysis, the rise or decline in
short-term interest rates occurs ratably over four months. These assumptions are inherently uncertain and, as a
result, the model cannot precisely predict the impact of higher or lower interest rates on net interest income.
Actual results may differ from simulated results due to timing, magnitude and frequency of interest rate
changes and changes in market conditions and management strategies, among other factors. Derivative finan-
cial instruments entered into for risk management purposes are included in these analyses. The measurement
of risk exposure, at year-end 2004, for a decline in short-term interest rates by 200 basis points identified
approximately $74 million, or four percent, of forecasted net interest income at risk during 2005. If short-term
interest rates rise 200 basis points, forecasted net interest income would be enhanced during 2005 by approxi-
mately $99 million, or five percent. Corresponding measures of risk exposure for year-end 2003 were approxi-
mately $41 million, or two percent, of net interest income at risk for a decline in short-term rates to zero
percent and an approximately $82 million enhancement, or four percent, of net interest income for a 200 basis
point rise in rates. Corporate policy limits adverse change to no more than five percent of management’s most
likely net interest income forecast and the Corporation is operating within this policy guideline. Management
anticipates balance sheet dynamics in 2005 to continue to create net interest income movement with changes
in interest rates, and will analyze both on- and off-balance sheet alternatives to achieve the desired interest rate
risk profile for the Corporation.
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In addition to the simulation analysis, an economic value of equity analysis and a traditional interest
sensitivity gap analysis are performed as alternative measures of interest rate risk exposure. The economic value
of equity analysis begins with an estimate of the mark-to-market valuation of the Corporation’s balance sheet
and then applies the estimated market value impact of rate movements upon the assets and liabilities. The
economic value of equity is then calculated as the residual necessary to re-balance the resulting assets and
liabilities. The market value change in the economic value of equity is then compared to the corporate policy
guideline limiting such change to 10 percent of book equity as a result of a non-parallel 200-basis point
increase or decrease in short-term rates. The Corporation is operating within this policy parameter.

The traditional interest sensitivity gap analysis provides a rudimentary directional outlook on the impact
of changes in interest rates. Management recognizes the limited ability of a traditional gap schedule to
accurately portray interest rate risk and therefore uses the results as a directional and corroborative tool. Interest
rate sensitivity is measured as a percentage of earning assets. The operating range for interest rate sensitivity, on
an elasticity-adjusted basis, is between an asset sensitive position of 10 percent of earning assets and a liability
sensitive position of 10 percent of earning assets. The Corporation is operating within this policy parameter.

The Corporation utilizes investment securities and derivative instruments, predominantly interest rate
swaps, as asset and liability management tools with the overall objective of mitigating the adverse impact to net
interest income from changes in interest rates. These swaps primarily modify the interest rate characteristics of
certain assets and liabilities (e.g., from a floating rate to a fixed rate, from a fixed rate to a floating rate, or from
one floating rate index to another). This strategy assists management in achieving interest rate risk manage-
ment objectives.

TABLE 11: REMAINING EXPECTED MATURITY OF RISK MANAGEMENT INTEREST RATE SWAPS
Dec. 31, Dec. 31,

2010- 2004 2003
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2026 Total Total

(dollar amounts in millions)

Variable rate asset designation:
Generic receive fixed swaps ********* $3,800 $3,000 $3,000 $ — $ — $ — $ 9,800 $ 8,800
Weighted average:(1)

Receive rate********************* 6.11% 4.01% 4.97% —% —% —% 5.12% 6.17%
Pay rate ************************ 5.18 3.70 4.02 — — — 4.37 4.00

Fixed rate asset designation:
Pay fixed swaps

Generic ************************ $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 13
Amortizing ********************* 2 2 2 1 — — 7 5

Weighted average:(2)
Receive rate********************* 2.54% 2.54% 2.55% 2.56% —% —% 2.55% 3.41%
Pay rate ************************ 3.54 3.54 3.53 3.52 — — 3.53 4.12

Fixed rate deposit designation:
Generic receive fixed swaps ********* $ 30 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 30 $ —
Weighted average:(1)

Receive rate********************* 1.42% —% —% —% —% —% 1.42% —%
Pay rate ************************ 2.44 — — — — — 2.44 —

Medium- and long-term debt
designation:
Generic receive fixed swaps ********* $ 250 $ 100 $ 450 $ 350 $100 $1,000 $ 2,250 $ 2,000
Weighted average:(1)

Receive rate********************* 7.04% 2.95% 5.82% 6.17% 6.06% 6.18% 6.05% 6.09%
Pay rate ************************ 2.29 2.36 2.35 2.12 2.01 2.37 2.30 1.16

Total notional amount ************** $4,082 $3,102 $3,452 $ 351 $100 $1,000 $12,087 $10,818

(1) Variable rates paid on receive fixed swaps are based on prime and LIBOR (with various maturities) rates in
effect at December 31, 2004.

(2) Variable rates received are based on three-month and six-month LIBOR or one-month and three-month
Canadian Dollar Offered Rates in effect at December 31, 2004.
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Risk Management Derivative Financial Instruments and Foreign Exchange Contracts

Risk Management Notional Activity
Interest Foreign

Rate Exchange
Contracts Contracts Totals

(in millions)

Balance at January 1, 2003 ***************************************** $13,602 $ 738 $14,340
Additions********************************************************* 4,146 17,598 21,744
Maturities/amortizations ******************************************* (6,030) (17,897) (23,927)
Terminations****************************************************** (900) — (900)

Balance at December 31, 2003 ************************************** $10,818 $ 439 $11,257
Additions********************************************************* 4,781 15,136 19,917
Maturities/amortizations ******************************************* (3,512) (15,141) (18,653)

Balance at December 31, 2004 ************************************** $12,087 $ 434 $12,521

The notional amount of risk management interest rate swaps totaled $12.1 billion at December 31, 2004,
and $10.8 billion at December 31, 2003. The increase in notional amount of $1.3 billion was, in part, due to a
$1.0 billion increase in hedged total loans from December 31, 2003 to December 31, 2004. The fair value of
risk management interest rate swaps was an asset of $159 million at December 31, 2004, compared to an asset
of $346 million at December 31, 2003.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, risk management interest rate swaps generated $279 million of net
interest income, compared to $378 million of net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2003. The
lower swap income for 2004 over 2003 was primarily due to the 2004 maturity of swaps with fixed receivable
rates that were significantly higher than new swap rates available in the market.

During the second quarter of 2003, the Corporation terminated interest rate swaps with a notional
amount of $900 million that were designated as cash flow hedges. Of the pretax gain that was realized on the
terminated swaps, $52 million was included in other comprehensive income and is being recognized in
interest income through 2006, the period during which the related hedged loans affect earnings. At Decem-
ber 31, 2004, $20 million of the pretax gain realized remains in other comprehensive income.

Table 11 on page 48 summarizes the expected maturity distribution of the notional amount of risk
management interest rate swaps and provides the weighted average interest rates associated with amounts to be
received or paid as of December 31, 2004. Swaps have been grouped by the asset and liability designation.

In addition to interest rate swaps, the Corporation employs various other types of derivatives and foreign
exchange contracts to mitigate exposures to interest rate and foreign currency risks associated with specific
assets and liabilities (e.g., loans or deposits denominated in foreign currencies). Such instruments include
interest rate caps and floors, purchased put options, foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign exchange
swap agreements. The aggregate notional amounts of these risk management derivatives and foreign exchange
contracts at December 31, 2004 and 2003, were $434 million and $439 million, respectively.

Further information regarding risk management financial instruments and foreign currency exchange
contracts is provided in Notes 1, 11, and 20 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 64, 78 and 93,
respectively.
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Customer-Initiated and Other Derivative Financial Instruments and Foreign Exchange Contracts

Customer-Initiated and Other Notional Activity
Interest Foreign

Rate Exchange
Contracts Contracts Totals

(in millions)

Balance at January 1, 2003 ***************************************** $1,744 $ 1,771 $ 3,515
Additions ******************************************************** 1,616 70,181 71,797
Maturities/amortizations ******************************************* (689) (70,048) (70,737)
Terminations ***************************************************** (369) — (369)

Balance at December 31, 2003************************************** $2,302 $ 1,904 $ 4,206
Additions ******************************************************** 828 94,286 95,114
Maturities/amortizations ******************************************* (538) (92,869) (93,407)
Terminations ***************************************************** (216) — (216)

Balance at December 31, 2004************************************** $2,376 $ 3,321 $ 5,697

The Corporation writes interest rate caps and enters into foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps
to accommodate the needs of customers requesting such services. Customer-initiated activity represented
31 percent at December 31, 2004, and 27 percent at December 31, 2003, of total derivative and foreign
exchange contracts, including commitments to purchase and sell securities. Refer to Notes 1 and 20 of the
consolidated financial statements on pages 64 and 93, respectively, for further information regarding customer-
initiated and other derivative financial instruments and foreign exchange contracts.

Liquidity Risk and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Liquidity is the ability to meet financial obligations through the maturity or sale of existing assets or the
acquisition of additional funds. The Corporation has various financial obligations, including contractual
obligations and commercial commitments, which require future cash payments. The following contractual
obligations table summarizes the Corporation’s noncancelable contractual obligations and future required
minimum payments. Refer to Notes 6, 10 and 11 of the financial statements on pages 75, 77 and 78,
respectively, for a further discussion of these contractual obligations.

Contractual Obligations
December 31, 2004

Minimum Payments Due by Period
Less than 1-3 3-5 More than

Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(in millions)

Deposits without a stated maturity* ***************** $34,941 $34,941 $ — $ — $ —
Certificates of deposit and other deposits with a stated

maturity* ************************************** 5,995 4,871 760 285 79
Short-term borrowings* **************************** 193 193 — — —
Medium- and long-term debt* ********************** 4,083 285 1,605 468 1,725
Operating leases*********************************** 278 53 87 64 74
Commitments to fund low income housing

partnerships ************************************ 91 48 40 2 1
Other long-term obligations ************************ 234 31 28 13 162

Total contractual obligations ********************** $45,815 $40,422 $2,520 $832 $2,041

* Deposits and borrowings exclude interest
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The Corporation has other commercial commitments that impact liquidity. These commitments are
primarily off-balance sheet arrangements and include commitments to purchase and sell earning assets,
commitments to fund private equity and venture capital investments, unused commitments to extend credit,
standby letters of credit and financial guarantees, commercial letters of credit and credit default swaps. The
following commercial commitments table summarizes the Corporation’s commercial commitments and ex-
pected expiration dates by period.

Commercial Commitments
December 31, 2004

Expected Expiration Dates by Period
Less than 1-3 3-5 More than

Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(in millions)

Commitments to purchase investment securities ***** $ 4 $ 4 $ — $ — $ —
Commitments to sell investment securities********** 4 4 — — —
Commitments to fund private equity and venture

capital investments **************************** 51 — — 1 50
Unused commitments to extend credit ************* 28,349 13,711 7,625 4,659 2,354
Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees **** 6,326 4,426 1,224 570 106
Commercial letters of credit*********************** 340 298 22 20 —

Total commercial commitments ***************** $35,074 $18,443 $8,871 $5,250 $2,510

Since many of these commitments expire without being drawn upon, the total amount of these commer-
cial commitments does not necessarily represent the future cash requirements of the Corporation. Refer to the
‘‘Other Market Risks’’ section below and Note 20 of the consolidated financial statements on page 93 for a
further discussion of these commercial commitments.

The Corporation also holds a significant interest in certain variable interest entities (VIE’s), in which it is
not the primary beneficiary, and in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 46(R), ‘‘Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities’’ (FIN 46(R)), does not consolidate. The Corporation defines a significant interest in a VIE as a
subordinated interest that exposes it to a significant portion of the VIE’s expected losses or residual returns. In
general, a VIE is an entity that either (1) has an insufficient amount of equity to carry out its principal activities
without additional subordinated financial support, (2) has a group of equity owners that are unable to make
significant decisions about its activities, or (3) has a group of equity owners that do not have the obligation to
absorb losses or the right to receive returns generated by its operations. If any of these characteristics is present,
the entity is subject to a variable interests consolidation model, and consolidation is based on variable
interests, not on ownership of the entity’s outstanding voting stock. Variable interests are defined as contrac-
tual, ownership, or other monetary interests in an entity that change with fluctuations in the entity’s net asset
value. According to FIN 46(R), a company must consolidate an entity depending on whether the entity is a
voting rights entity or a VIE. Refer to the ‘‘principles of consolidation’’ section in Note 1 of the consolidated
financial statements on page 64 for a summarization of this interpretation. Also refer to Note 22 of the
consolidated financial statements on page 99 for a discussion of the Corporation’s involvement in VIEs,
including those in which it holds a significant interest but for which it is not the primary beneficiary.

Liquidity requirements are satisfied with various funding sources. First, the Corporation accesses the
purchased funds market regularly to meet funding needs. Purchased funds at December 31, 2004, comprised of
certificates of deposit of $100,000 and over that mature in less than one year, foreign office time deposits and
short-term borrowings, approximated $2.9 billion, compared to $4.0 billion and $6.0 billion at December 31,
2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively. Second, two medium-term note programs, a $15 billion senior
note program and a $2 billion European note program, allow the principal banking subsidiary to issue debt
with maturities between one month and 15 years. At year-end 2004, unissued debt relating to the two medium-
term note programs totaled $16.6 billion. A third source, if needed, would be liquid assets, cash and due from
banks, short-term investments and investment securities available-for-sale, which totaled $8.3 billion at De-
cember 31, 2004. Additionally, the Corporation also had available $13.8 billion from a collateralized borrow-
ing account with the Federal Reserve Bank at December 31, 2004.
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The parent company held $1 million of cash and cash equivalents and $289 million of short-term
investments with a subsidiary bank at December 31, 2004. In addition, the parent company had available
$250 million of borrowing capacity under an unused commercial paper facility at December 31, 2004. Refer to
Note 10 of the consolidated financial statements on page 77 for further information on the unused commercial
paper facility. Another source of liquidity for the parent company is dividends from its subsidiaries. As
discussed in Note 19 to the financial statements on page 92, subsidiary banks are subject to regulation and may
be limited in their ability to pay dividends or transfer funds to the holding company. During 2005, the
subsidiary banks can pay dividends up to $470 million plus current year net profits without prior regulatory
approval. One measure of current parent company liquidity is investment in subsidiaries as a percentage of
shareholders’ equity. An amount over 100 percent represents the reliance on subsidiary dividends to repay
liabilities. As of December 31, 2004, the ratio was 109 percent.

The Corporation regularly evaluates its ability to meet funding needs in unanticipated, stress environ-
ments. In conjunction with the quarterly 200 basis point interest rate shock analysis, discussed in the ‘‘Interest
Rate Sensitivity’’ section on page 47 of this financial review, liquidity ratios and potential funding availability
are examined. Each quarter, the Corporation also evaluates its ability to meet liquidity needs under a series of
broad events, distinguished in terms of duration and severity. The evaluation projects that sufficient sources of
liquidity are available in each series of events.

Other Market Risks

The Corporation’s market risk related to trading instruments is not significant, as trading activities are
limited. Certain components of the Corporation’s noninterest income, primarily fiduciary income and invest-
ment advisory revenue, are at risk to fluctuations in the market values of underlying assets, particularly equity
securities. Other components of noninterest income, primarily brokerage fees, are at risk to changes in the level
of market activity.

At December 31, 2004, the Corporation had a $128 million portfolio of indirect (through funds) private
equity and venture capital investments, and had commitments of $51 million to fund additional investments
in future periods. The value of these investments is at risk to changes in equity markets, general economic
conditions and a variety of other factors. The majority of these investments are not readily marketable, and are
reported in other assets. The investments are individually reviewed for impairment on a quarterly basis, by
comparing the carrying value to the estimated fair value. The Corporation bases estimates of fair value for the
majority of its indirect private equity and venture capital investments on the percentage ownership in the fair
value of the entire fund, as reported by the fund management. In general, the Corporation does not have the
benefit of the same information regarding the fund’s underlying investments as does fund management.
Therefore, after indication that fund management adheres to accepted, sound and recognized valuation
techniques, the Corporation generally utilizes the fair values assigned to the underlying portfolio investments
by fund management. For those funds where fair value is not reported by fund management, the Corporation
derives the fair value of the fund by estimating the fair value of each underlying investment in the fund. In
addition to using qualitative information about each underlying investment, as provided by fund management,
the Corporation gives consideration to information pertinent to the specific nature of the debt or equity
investment, such as relevant market conditions, offering prices, operating results, financial conditions, exit
strategy, and other qualitative information, as available. The lack of an independent source to validate fair
value estimates is an inherent limitation in the valuation process. The amount by which the carrying value
exceeds the fair value, that is determined to be other than temporary impairment, is charged to current earnings
and the carrying value of the investment is written down accordingly. Total distributions which qualify as
income on unconsolidated indirect private equity and venture capital investments in 2004 were $18 million,
which was partially offset by $5 million of write-downs recognized on such investments in 2004. No generic
assumption is applied to all investments when evaluating for impairment. The uncertainty in the economy and
equity markets may affect the values of the fund investments. The following table provides information on the
Corporation’s indirect private equity and venture capital investments portfolio.
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Indirect Private Equity and Venture Capital Investments
December 31, 2004

(dollar amounts
in millions)

Number of investments********************************************************* 106
Balance of investments ********************************************************* $128
Largest single investment ******************************************************* 37
Commitments to fund additional investments ************************************* 51

In 2002, the Corporation adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, ‘‘Accounting for
Stock Based Compensation’’ (as amended by SFAS 148 ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transi-
tion and Disclosure’’), to be applied prospectively to all new stock-based compensation awards granted to
employees after December 31, 2001. Under SFAS No. 123, the fair value of stock-based compensation as of the
date of grant is recognized as compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. In 2004
the Corporation recognized total stock-based compensation expense of $34 million. The fair value of stock
options is estimated on the date of grant using an option valuation model that requires several inputs. The
option valuation model is sensitive to the market price of the Corporation’s stock at the grant date, which
affects the fair value estimates and, therefore, the amount of expense recorded on future grants. Using the
number of stock options granted in 2004 and the Corporation’s stock price at December 31, 2004, each $5.00
per share increase in stock price would result in an increase in pretax expense of approximately $3 million,
from the assumed base, over the options’ vesting period. Refer to Notes 1 and 15 of the consolidated financial
statements on pages 64 and 83, respectively, for further discussion of the adoption of SFAS No. 123.

Operational Risk

Operational risk represents the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people
and systems, or from external events. The definition includes legal risk, which is the risk of loss resulting from
failure to comply with laws and regulations as well as prudent ethical standards and contractual obligations. It
also includes the exposure to litigation from all aspects of an institution’s activities. The definition does not
include strategic or reputational risks. Although operational losses are experienced by all companies and are
routinely incurred in business operations, the Corporation recognizes that the identification and control of
such operational losses is a concern and seeks to limit their impact to a level deemed appropriate by
management after considering the nature of the Corporation’s business and the environment in which it
operates. Operational risk is mitigated through a system of internal controls that are designed to keep operating
risks at appropriate levels. The Corporation has established an Operational Risk Management Committee to
ensure appropriate risk management techniques and systems are maintained. The Corporation has developed a
framework that includes a centralized operational risk management function and business/support unit risk
coordinators responsible for managing operational risk specific to the respective business lines.

In addition, the Corporation’s internal audit and financial staff monitors and assesses the overall effective-
ness of the system of internal controls on an ongoing basis. Internal Audit reports the results of reviews on the
controls and systems to management and the Audit and Legal Committee of the Board of Directors. The
internal audit staff independently supports the Audit and Legal Committee oversight process. The Audit and
Legal Committee serves as an independent extension of the Board of Directors. Meetings are scheduled
periodically to provide more detail on relevant operational risks.

Compliance Risk

Compliance risk represents the risk of regulatory sanctions or financial loss the Corporation may suffer as
a result of its failure to comply with regulations and standards of good practice. Activities which may expose
the Corporation to compliance risk include, but are not limited to, those dealing with the prevention of money
laundering, privacy and data protection, community reinvestment initiatives, fair lending challenges resulting
from the Corporation’s expansion of its branch network, and employment and tax matters.

A priority that began in 2004 was expanding and strengthening the Corporation’s Anti-Money Laundering
(AML) program. Efforts around this program will result in a system of stronger measures and safeguards. The
Corporation’s intent is to create a comprehensive program that embeds AML procedures in the Corporation’s
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culture through the use of sophisticated ‘‘Know Your Customer’’ analytical software tools, the implementation
of software tools needed to identify potentially suspicious transactions, and ongoing AML training for
employees.

Business Risk

Business risk represents the risk of loss due to impairment of reputation, failure to fully develop and
execute business plans, failure to assess current and new opportunities in business, markets and products, and
any other event not identified in the defined risk categories of credit, market and liquidity, operational or
compliance risks. Mitigation of the various risk elements that represent business risk is achieved through
initiatives to help the Corporation better understand and report on the various risks. Wherever quantifiable, the
Corporation intends to use situational analysis and other testing techniques to appreciate the scope and extent
of these risks.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Corporation’s consolidated financial statements are prepared based on the application of accounting
policies, the most significant of which are described on page 64 in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements. These policies require numerous estimates and strategic or economic assumptions, which may
prove inaccurate or subject to variations. Changes in underlying factors, assumptions or estimates could have a
material impact on the Corporation’s future financial condition and results of operations. The most critical of
these significant accounting policies are the policies for allowance for loan losses, pension plan accounting and
goodwill. These policies are reviewed with the Audit and Legal Committee of the Corporation’s Board of
Directors and are discussed more fully below.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is calculated with the objective of maintaining a reserve sufficient to absorb
estimated probable loan losses. Management’s determination of the adequacy of the allowance is based on
periodic evaluations of the loan portfolio and other relevant factors. However, this evaluation is inherently
subjective as it requires an estimate of the loss content for each risk rating and for each impaired loan, an
estimate of the amounts and timing of expected future cash flows, and an estimate of the value of collateral,
including the market value of thinly traded or nonmarketable equity securities.

Loans for which it is probable that payment of interest and principal will not be made in accordance with
the contractual terms of the loan agreement are considered impaired. Consistent with this definition, all
nonaccrual and reduced rate loans are impaired. The fair value of impaired loans is estimated using one of
several methods, including collateral value, market value of similar debt, enterprise value, liquidation value
and discounted cash flows. The valuation is reviewed and updated each quarter. While the determination of fair
value may involve estimates, each estimate is unique to the individual loan, and none is individually
significant.

The portion of the allowance allocated to the remaining loans is determined by applying projected loss
ratios to loans in each risk category. Projected loss ratios incorporate factors, such as recent charge-off
experience, current economic conditions and trends, and trends with respect to past due and nonaccrual
amounts, and are supported by underlying analysis, including information from migration and loss given
default studies from each geographic market. Since a loss ratio is applied to a large portfolio of loans, any
variation between actual and assumed results could be significant. In addition, a portion of the allowance is
allocated to these remaining loans based on industry specific and geographic risks inherent in certain portfo-
lios, including portfolio exposures to automotive suppliers, retailers, contractors, technology-related, entertain-
ment, air transportation and healthcare industries, Small Business Administration loans and certain Latin
American risks.

An unallocated allowance is also maintained to cover factors affecting the determination of probable
losses inherent in the loan portfolio that are not necessarily captured by projected loss ratios or identified
industry specific and geographic risk. The unallocated allowance considers the imprecision in the risk rating
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system, limited historical perspective in the application of the Corporation’s recently enhanced portfolio
analytical tools and the risk associated with new customer relationships.

The principal assumption used in deriving the allowance for loan losses is the estimate of loss content for
each risk rating. To illustrate, if recent loss experience dictated that the projected loss ratios would be changed
by five percent (of the estimate) across all risk ratings, the allocated allowance as of December 31, 2004 would
change by approximately $12 million. For further discussion of the methodology used in the determination of
the allowance for loan losses, refer to the discussion of ‘‘Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses’’ section in
this financial review on page 29, and Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements on page 64. To the extent
actual outcomes differ from management estimates, additional provision for loan losses may be required that
would adversely impact earnings in future periods. A substantial majority of the allocated allowance is assigned
to business segments. Any earnings impact resulting from actual outcomes differing from management esti-
mates would primarily affect the Business Bank segment. The industry specific and geographic allowance, and
unallocated allowance for loan losses are not assigned to business segments, and any earnings impact resulting
from actual outcomes differing from management estimates would primarily affect the ‘‘Other’’ category in
segment reporting.

Pension Plan Accounting

The Corporation has defined benefit plans in effect for substantially all full-time employees. Benefits under
the plans are based on years of service, age and compensation. Assumptions are made concerning future events
that will determine the amount and timing of required benefit payments, funding requirements and pension
expense (income). The three major assumptions are the discount rate used in determining the current benefit
obligation, the long-term rate of return expected on plan assets and the rate of compensation increase. The
assumed discount rate is based on quoted rates for the Moody’s Investors Service Aa Corporate Bond Index in
December, the last month prior to the year of recording the expense. The Corporation utilizes the Aa Corporate
Bond Index from Moody’s Investors Service as this rate approximates the aggregation of rates on bonds
matching the plans’ cash flows. The second assumption, long-term rate of return expected on plan assets, is set
after considering both long-term returns in the general market and long-term returns experienced by the assets
in the plan. The current asset allocation and target asset allocation model for the plans is detailed in Note 16
on page 85. The expected returns on these various asset categories are blended to derive one long-term return
assumption. The assets are invested in certain collective investment funds and mutual investment funds
administered by Munder Capital Management, equity securities, U.S. Government and agency securities,
corporate bonds and notes and a real estate investment trust. The third assumption, rate of compensation
increase, is based on reviewing recent annual pension-eligible compensation increases as well as the expecta-
tion of the next year’s increase. The Corporation reviews its pension plan assumptions on an annual basis with
its actuarial consultants to determine if the assumptions are reasonable and adjusts the assumptions to reflect
changes in future expectations.

The key actuarial assumptions that will be used to calculate 2005 expense for the defined benefit pension
plans are a discount rate of 5.75%, a long-term rate of return on assets of 8.75%, and a rate of compensation
increase of 4%. Pension expense in 2005 is expected to be approximately $32 million, an increase of
$16 million from the $16 million recorded in 2004, primarily due to changes in the discount rate, the normal
retirement age, and plan demographics and progression.

Changing 2005 key assumptions in 25 basis point increments would have had the following impact on
pension expense:

Key Assumptions
(in millions)

Discount rate *********************************************************************** $5.0
Long-term rate of return************************************************************** 2.5
Rate of compensation **************************************************************** 2.2

If the assumed long-term return on assets differs from the actual return on assets, the asset gains and losses
are incorporated in the market-related value, which is used to determine the expected return on assets, over a
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five-year period. The Employee Benefits Committee, which is comprised of executive and senior managers from
various areas of the Corporation, provides broad asset allocation guidelines to the asset manager, who reports
results and investment strategy quarterly to the Committee. Asset allocations for the investment returns are
compared to expected results based on broad market indices for each class of investment.

Note 16 on page 85 to the consolidated financial statements contains a table showing the funded status of
the qualified defined benefit plan at year-end which was $54 million at December 31, 2004. As the table
illustrates, the actuarial loss in the qualified defined benefit plan at December 31, 2004 increased to $295 mil-
lion, compared to an actuarial loss of $284 million at December 31, 2003. Unless recovered in the market, this
loss will be amortized to pension expense in future years. For further information, refer to Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 64. In 2004, the actual return on assets was $112 million, compared
to a return on assets of $130 million in 2003. The Corporation contributed $62 million and $46 million, in
2004 and 2003, respectively, to the qualified defined benefit plan to mitigate the impact of these actuarial
losses on future years. Additional contributions, to the extent allowable by law, may be made to further
mitigate these losses. For the foreseeable future, the Corporation has sufficient liquidity to make such
payments.

Pension expense is recorded in ‘‘salaries and employee benefits’’ expense in the consolidated statements of
income, and is allocated to segments based on the segment’s share of salaries expense. Given the salaries
expense included in 2004 segment results, pension expense was allocated approximately 42%, 30%, 27% and
1% to the Small Business and Personal Financial Services, Business Bank, Wealth and Institutional Manage-
ment and Finance segments, respectively, in 2004.

A minimum pension liability is required to be recorded in shareholders’ equity as part of accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) for pension plans where the accrued benefit cost is less than the accumu-
lated benefit obligation. An after-tax minimum pension liability of $13 million for the non-qualified defined
benefit pension plan was included in shareholders’ equity as part of accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from business acquisitions represents the value attributable to unidentifiable intangible
elements in the business acquired. The fair value of goodwill is dependent upon many factors, including the
Corporation’s ability to provide quality, cost effective services in the face of competition from other market
leaders on a national and global basis. A decline in earnings as a result of business or market conditions, a lack
of growth or the Corporation’s inability to deliver cost effective services over sustained periods can lead to
impairment of goodwill which could adversely impact earnings in future periods.

The majority of the Corporation’s goodwill relates to the acquisition premiums recorded when purchasing
asset management and banking businesses. Goodwill is reviewed periodically for impairment by comparing
the fair value of the reporting unit containing the goodwill to the book value of the reporting unit, including
goodwill. If the book value is in excess of the fair value, impairment is indicated and the goodwill must be
written down to its fair value.

The fair value of reporting units is derived through use of internal valuation models for all units except the
asset management reporting unit, which is part of the Wealth and Institutional Management segment. Inherent
in these internal valuation models are assumptions related to the cash flows expected to be generated by
reporting units, which are based on historical and projected growth expectations for reporting units, and on
comparable market multiples. Cash flows are discounted using a risk-free rate plus a spread that incorporates
long-term equity risk. The valuation for the asset management reporting unit (Munder) is based on an
independent valuation prepared by an investment banker not affiliated with the Corporation. The annual test
of goodwill and identified intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, performed as of July 1, 2004, in
accordance with SFAS No. 142, did not indicate that an impairment charge was required and there were no
indications of impairment subsequent to this test in 2004. For a further discussion of the Corporation’s
goodwill, refer to Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements on page 75.
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The valuation model for the asset management reporting unit includes, among others, estimates of a
discount rate, market growth and new business growth assumptions. The following describes the estimated
sensitivities to these assumptions, based on the most recent independent valuation.

The discount rate assumptions used in the valuation model were 13% for Munder and 10% for
Framlington (Munder’s U.K. unconsolidated subsidiary). Increasing each of the discount rates by 200 basis
points would result in a decrease in the valuation of approximately $21 million at the midpoint of the
valuation range. The market growth rate assumptions used for Munder were approximately 7% for equity, 2%
for fixed and 3% for cash investments. The overall market growth rate assumption used for Framlington was
approximately 9%. Decreasing the market growth rates by 50% would result in a decrease in the valuation of
approximately $46 million at the midpoint of the valuation range. The new business growth assumption used
for Munder was approximately 4% (compound annual growth rate) and the redemption (business attrition)
rate used was approximately 2%. The new business growth assumption used for Framlington was approxi-
mately 5% (compound annual growth rate) and the redemption (business attrition) rate used was approxi-
mately 4%. Decreasing the new business growth assumption and increasing the redemption rate by 10% would
result in a combined decrease in the valuation of approximately $23 million.

In addition, the valuation model uses a market valuation for comparable companies (market multiples).
While the market multiple is not an assumption, a presumption that it provides an indicator of the value of the
asset management reporting unit is inherent in the valuation.

The fair value estimate is updated whenever there are indicators of impairment. At December 31, 2004,
management estimates that it would take a decline in the fair value of the asset management reporting unit of
$125 million to trigger impairment.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report includes forward-looking statements as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995. In addition, the Corporation may make other written and oral communications from time to time
that contain such statements. All statements regarding the Corporation’s expected financial position, strategies
and growth prospects and general economic conditions expected to exist in the future are forward-looking
statements. The words ‘‘anticipates,’’ ‘‘believes,’’ ‘‘feels,’’ ‘‘expects,’’ ‘‘estimates,’’ ‘‘seeks,’’ ‘‘strives,’’ ‘‘plans,’’
‘‘intends,’’ ‘‘outlook,’’ ‘‘forecast,’’ ‘‘position,’’ ‘‘target,’’ ‘‘mission,’’ ‘‘assume,’’ ‘‘achievable,’’ ‘‘potential,’’ ‘‘strat-
egy,’’ ‘‘goal,’’ ‘‘aspiration,’’ ‘‘outcome,’’ ‘‘continue,’’ ‘‘remain,’’ ‘‘maintain,’’ ‘‘trend,’’ ‘‘objective’’ and variations of
such words and similar expressions, or future or conditional verbs such as ‘‘will,’’ ‘‘would,’’ ‘‘should,’’ ‘‘could,’’
‘‘might,’’ ‘‘can,’’ ‘‘may’’ or similar expressions as they relate to the Corporation or its management, are intended
to identify forward-looking statements.

The Corporation cautions that forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and
uncertainties, which change over time. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date the statement is
made, and the Corporation does not undertake to update forward-looking statements to reflect facts, circum-
stances, assumptions or events that occur after the date the forward-looking statements are made. Actual results
could differ materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statements and future results could differ
materially from historical performance.

In addition to factors mentioned elsewhere in this report or previously disclosed in the Corporation’s SEC
reports (accessible on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov or on the Corporation’s website at
www.comerica.com), the following factors, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from
forward-looking statements and future results could differ materially from historical performance. The Corpo-
ration cautions that these factors are not exclusive.

) general political, economic or industry conditions, either domestically or internationally, may be less
favorable than expected;

) developments concerning credit quality in various industry sectors may result in an increase in the level
of the Corporation’s provision for credit losses, nonperforming assets, net charge-offs and reserve for
credit losses;

) industries in which the Corporation has lending concentrations, including, but not limited to, the
automotive industry, could suffer a significant decline which could adversely affect the Corporation;

) demand for commercial loans and investment advisory products may not accelerate as expected;

) the mix of interest rates and maturities of the Corporation’s interest earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities (primarily loans and deposits) may be less favorable than expected;

) interest rate margin changes may be greater than expected;

) there could be fluctuations in inflation or interest rates;

) there could be changes in trade, monetary and fiscal policies, including, but not limited to, the interest
rate policies of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System;

) customer borrowing, repayment, investment and deposit practices generally may be different than
anticipated;

) management’s ability to maintain and expand customer relationships may differ from expectations;

) the introductions, withdrawal, success and timing of business initiatives and strategies, including, but
not limited to the opening of new branches or private banking offices, and plans to grow personal
financial services and wealth management, may be less successful or may be different than anticipated;

) competitive product and pricing pressures among financial institutions within the Corporation’s mar-
kets may change;

) legal and regulatory proceedings and related matters with respect to the financial services industry,
including those directly involving the Corporation and its subsidiaries, could adversely affect the
Corporation or the financial services industry generally;
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) instruments, systems and strategies used to hedge or otherwise manage exposure to various types of
credit, market and liquidity, operational, compliance and business risks and enterprise-wide risk could
be less effective than anticipated, and the Corporation may not be able to effectively mitigate its risk
exposures in particular market environments or against particular types of risk;

) there could be terrorist activities or other hostilities, which may adversely affect the general economy,
financial and capital markets, specific industries, and the Corporation;

) there could be changes in applicable laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, those concern-
ing taxes, banking, securities, and insurance; and

) there could be adverse conditions in the stock market.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

December 31
2004 2003
(in millions, except

share data)

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks ***************************************************** $ 1,139 $ 1,527
Short-term investments******************************************************** 3,230 4,013
Investment securities available-for-sale******************************************* 3,943 4,489

Commercial loans ************************************************************ 22,039 21,579
Real estate construction loans ************************************************** 3,053 3,397
Commercial mortgage loans *************************************************** 8,236 7,878
Residential mortgage loans **************************************************** 1,294 1,228
Consumer loans************************************************************** 2,751 2,610
Lease financing*************************************************************** 1,265 1,301
International loans *********************************************************** 2,205 2,309

Total loans ************************************************************** 40,843 40,302
Less allowance for loan losses ************************************************** (673) (803)

Net loans**************************************************************** 40,170 39,499
Premises and equipment ****************************************************** 415 374
Customers’ liability on acceptances outstanding ********************************** 57 27
Accrued income and other assets *********************************************** 2,812 2,663

Total assets ************************************************************** $51,766 $52,592

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Noninterest-bearing deposits *************************************************** $15,164 $14,104
Interest-bearing deposits******************************************************* 25,772 27,359

Total deposits ************************************************************ 40,936 41,463
Short-term borrowings ******************************************************** 193 262
Acceptances outstanding******************************************************* 57 27
Accrued expenses and other liabilities ******************************************* 1,189 929
Medium- and long-term debt ************************************************** 4,286 4,801

Total liabilities *********************************************************** 46,661 47,482
Common stock — $5 par value:

Authorized — 325,000,000 shares
Issued — 178,735,252 shares at 12/31/04 and 12/31/03************************* 894 894

Capital surplus *************************************************************** 421 384
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ********************************* (69) 74
Retained earnings************************************************************* 4,331 3,973
Less cost of common stock in treasury — 8,259,328 shares at 12/31/04 and 3,735,163

shares at 12/31/03********************************************************** (472) (215)

Total shareholders’ equity************************************************** 5,105 5,110

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ************************************* $51,766 $52,592

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Years Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002

(in millions, except per share data)

INTEREST INCOME
Interest and fees on loans ******************************************** $2,054 $2,211 $2,524
Interest on investment securities *************************************** 147 165 246
Interest on short-term investments ************************************* 36 36 27

Total interest income*********************************************** 2,237 2,412 2,797
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on deposits ************************************************** 315 370 479
Interest on short-term borrowings ************************************* 4 7 37
Interest on medium- and long-term debt ******************************* 108 109 149

Total interest expense ********************************************** 427 486 665
Net interest income ************************************************ 1,810 1,926 2,132

Provision for loan losses********************************************** 64 377 635
Net interest income after provision for loan losses ********************* 1,746 1,549 1,497

NONINTEREST INCOME
Service charges on deposit accounts ************************************ 231 238 227
Fiduciary income **************************************************** 171 169 171
Commercial lending fees ********************************************* 55 63 69
Letter of credit fees ************************************************** 66 65 60
Foreign exchange income ********************************************* 37 36 38
Brokerage fees******************************************************* 36 34 38
Investment advisory revenue, net ************************************** 35 30 27
Card fees *********************************************************** 32 27 23
Bank-owned life insurance ******************************************** 34 42 53
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries************************ 12 6 8
Warrant income ***************************************************** 7 4 5
Net securities gains ************************************************** — 50 41
Net gain on sales of businesses**************************************** 7 — 12
Other noninterest income ******************************************** 134 123 128

Total noninterest income ******************************************* 857 887 900
NONINTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits **************************************** 919 897 844
Net occupancy expense *********************************************** 125 128 122
Equipment expense ************************************************** 58 61 62
Outside processing fee expense **************************************** 68 71 65
Software expense **************************************************** 43 37 33
Customer services**************************************************** 23 25 26
Litigation and operational losses*************************************** 24 18 20
Goodwill impairment ************************************************ — — 86
Other noninterest expenses ******************************************* 233 246 257

Total noninterest expenses ****************************************** 1,493 1,483 1,515
Income before income taxes ****************************************** 1,110 953 882
Provision for income taxes******************************************** 353 292 281
NET INCOME******************************************************* $ 757 $ 661 $ 601

Basic net income per common share *********************************** $ 4.41 $ 3.78 $ 3.43
Diluted net income per common share********************************* 4.36 3.75 3.40
Cash dividends declared on common stock ***************************** 356 350 335
Cash dividends declared per common share **************************** 2.08 2.00 1.92

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Accumulated
Other Total

Common Capital Comprehensive Retained Treasury Shareholders’
Stock Surplus Income (Loss) Earnings Stock Equity

(in millions, except share data)

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2002********************** $894 $331 $ 225 $3,448 $ (91) $4,807

Net income**************************************** — — — 601 — 601

Other comprehensive income, net of tax ************** — — 12 — — 12

Total comprehensive income************************* 613

Cash dividends declared:

Common stock ($1.92 per share) ****************** — — — (335) — (335)

Purchase of 3,536,300 shares of common stock ******** — — — — (210) (210)

Net issuance of common stock under employee stock
plans ******************************************* — 10 — (30) 70 50

Recognition of stock-based compensation expense ****** — 22 — — — 22

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2002 ****************** $894 $363 $ 237 $3,684 $(231) $4,947

Net income**************************************** — — — 661 — 661

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax****************** — — (163) — — (163)

Total comprehensive income************************* 498

Cash dividends declared on common stock ($2.00 per
share)******************************************* — — — (350) — (350)

Purchase of 510,500 shares of common stock********** — — — — (27) (27)

Net issuance of common stock under employee stock
plans ******************************************* — (5) — (22) 43 16

Recognition of stock-based compensation expense ****** — 26 — — — 26

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2003 ****************** $894 $384 $ 74 $3,973 $(215) $5,110

Net income**************************************** — — — 757 — 757
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax****************** — — (143) — — (143)

Total comprehensive income************************* 614
Cash dividends declared on common stock ($2.08 per

share)******************************************* — — — (356) — (356)
Purchase of 6,526,911 shares of common stock ******** — — — — (370) (370)
Net issuance of common stock under employee stock

plans ******************************************* — 2 — (43) 113 72
Recognition of stock-based compensation expense ****** — 35 — — — 35

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2004 ****************** $894 $421 $ (69) $4,331 $(472) $5,105

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Years Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002

(in millions)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income ********************************************************** $ 757 $ 661 $ 601
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities:
Provision for loan losses ********************************************* 64 377 635
Depreciation and software amortization******************************** 70 69 69
Amortization of stock-based compensation expense ********************* 34 28 25
Net amortization of securities***************************************** 24 29 13
Net amortization of intangibles *************************************** 1 1 4
Merger-related and restructuring charges ******************************* — — (8)
Net gain on sale of investment securities available-for-sale**************** — (50) (41)
Net gain on sales of businesses *************************************** (7) — (12)
Contributions to pension plan fund *********************************** (62) (46) (175)
Goodwill impairment************************************************ — — 86
Net (increase) decrease in trading securities **************************** (9) 1 71
Net decrease in loans held-for-sale ************************************ 115 62 118
Net (increase) decrease in accrued income receivable ******************** (145) 18 45
Net increase (decrease) in accrued expenses **************************** 229 90 (19)
Other, net********************************************************** (43) 81 (184)

Total adjustments ************************************************* 271 660 627
Net cash provided by operating activities***************************** 1,028 1,321 1,228

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net decrease (increase) in other short-term investments ******************** 677 (1,630) (1,436)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available-for-sale*************** 337 4,030 2,871
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities available-for-sale ********** 1,032 4,987 2,042
Purchases of investment securities available-for-sale************************ (867) (10,416) (3,691)
Decrease (increase) in receivables for securities sold pending settlement****** — 1,110 (1,110)
Net (increase) decrease in loans***************************************** (773) 1,589 (1,673)
Fixed assets, net******************************************************* (95) (59) (80)
Purchase of bank-owned life insurance*********************************** — — (8)
Net (increase) decrease in customers’ liability on acceptances outstanding **** (30) 6 (4)
Proceeds from sales of businesses *************************************** 8 — 8

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ******************** 289 (383) (3,081)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net (decrease) increase in deposits ************************************** (527) (307) 4,212
Net decrease in short-term borrowings *********************************** (69) (278) (1,446)
Net increase (decrease) in acceptances outstanding ************************ 30 (6) 4
Proceeds from issuance of medium- and long-term debt ******************* 364 511 1,106
Repayments of medium- and long-term debt ***************************** (848) (875) (1,555)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock and other capital transactions ***** 72 16 50
Purchase of common stock for treasury and retirement ******************** (370) (27) (210)
Dividends paid ******************************************************* (357) (347) (331)

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities ******************** (1,705) (1,313) 1,830
Net decrease in cash and due from banks ******************************** (388) (375) (23)
Cash and due from banks at beginning of year *************************** 1,527 1,902 1,925
Cash and due from banks at end of year ********************************* $ 1,139 $ 1,527 $ 1,902

Interest paid********************************************************** $ 413 $ 457 $ 693

Income taxes paid***************************************************** $ 186 $ 148 $ 244

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Loans transferred to other real estate ********************************** $ 33 $ 32 $ 9
Loans transferred to loans held-for-sale ******************************** — — 120

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1 — Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Comerica Incorporated is a registered financial holding company headquartered in Detroit, Michigan. The
Corporation’s major lines of business are the Business Bank, Small Business and Personal Financial Services,
and Wealth and Institutional Management. For further discussion of each line of business, refer to Note 24 on
page 104. The core businesses are tailored to each of the Corporation’s four primary geographic regions:
Midwest and Other Markets, Western, Texas and Florida. The Corporation and its banking subsidiaries are
regulated at both the state and federal levels.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Corporation conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles and prevailing practices within the banking industry. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

The following summarizes the significant accounting policies of the Corporation applied in the prepara-
tion of the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Corporation and its subsidiaries after
elimination of all significant intercompany accounts and transactions. The financial statements for prior years
have been reclassified to conform with current financial statement presentation.

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 46, ‘‘Consoli-
dation of Variable Interest Entities’’ which provides guidance on how to identify a variable interest entity (VIE),
and when the assets, liabilities, noncontrolling interests and results of operations of a VIE need to be included
in a company’s consolidated financial statements. This interpretation was revised in December 2003 with the
issuance of Interpretation No. 46(R), ‘‘Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities’’ (FIN 46(R)). The Corpora-
tion adopted the provisions of FIN 46(R) effective July 1, 2003 for all interests held in a VIE. For further
information on the adoption of FIN 46(R), see Note 22 on page 99.

In general, a VIE is an entity that either (1) has an insufficient amount of equity to carry out its principal
activities without additional subordinated financial support, (2) has a group of equity owners that are unable
to make significant decisions about its activities, or (3) has a group of equity owners that do not have the
obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive returns generated by its operations. If any of these characteris-
tics is present, the entity is subject to a variable interests consolidation model, and consolidation is based on
variable interests, not on ownership of the entity’s outstanding voting stock. Variable interests are defined as
contractual, ownership, or other money interests in an entity that change with fluctuations in the entity’s net
asset value. The primary beneficiary consolidates the VIE; the primary beneficiary is defined as the enterprise
that absorbs a majority of expected losses or receives a majority of residual returns (if the losses or returns
occur), or both. The Corporation consolidates entities not determined to be VIE’s when it holds a majority
(controlling) interest in the entity’s outstanding voting stock. The minority interest in less than 100% owned
consolidated subsidiaries is not material, and is included in ‘‘accrued expenses and other liabilities’’ on the
consolidated balance sheets. The related minority interest in earnings is also not material, and is included in
‘‘other noninterest expenses’’ on the consolidated statements of income.

Equity investments in entities that are not VIE’s where the Corporation owns less than a majority
(controlling) interest and equity investments in entities that are VIE’s where the Corporation is not the primary
beneficiary are not consolidated. Rather, such investments are accounted for using either the equity method or
cost method. The equity method is used for investments in a corporate joint venture and investments where the
Corporation has the ability to exercise significant influence over the investee’s operation and financial policies,
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which is generally presumed to exist if the Corporation owns more than 20% of the voting interest of the
investee. Equity method investments are included in ‘‘accrued income and other assets’’ on the consolidated
balance sheets, with income and losses recorded in ‘‘equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries’’ on the
consolidated statements of income. Unconsolidated equity investments that do not meet the criteria to be
accounted for under the equity method are accounted for under the cost method. Cost method investments in
publicly traded companies are included in ‘‘investment securities available-for-sale’’ on the consolidated
balance sheets, with income distributions (net of write-downs) recorded in ‘‘net securities gains’’ on the
consolidated statements of income. Cost method investments in non-publicly traded companies are included
in ‘‘accrued income and other assets’’ on the consolidated balance sheets, with income distributions (net of
write-downs) recorded in ‘‘other noninterest income’’ on the consolidated statements of income.

Reclassifications

The Corporation issues personal purpose loans to individuals associated with commercial lending rela-
tionships. These loans, and their associated interest income, were previously classified with commercial loans.
In the second quarter of 2004, the Corporation reclassified its personal purpose loans to residential mortgage
loans and consumer loans. The financial statements and associated schedules for prior years have been adjusted
to reflect this reclassification. The impact on loan balances at December 31, 2003 was a decrease in commercial
loans of approximately $1.4 billion, offset by increases in residential mortgage loans and consumer loans of
approximately $0.4 billion and $1.0 billion, respectively.

The Corporation has foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities and hedges the resulting foreign
currency exposure with forward foreign exchange contracts. The exchange rate related adjustments required to
reflect the foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities at current U.S. dollar equivalent values and to
reflect the related forward foreign exchange contracts at market value were previously classified with foreign
exchange income. In the third quarter of 2004, the Corporation combined this risk management income with
other risk management income, which resulted in a reclassification from ‘‘foreign exchange income’’ to ‘‘other
noninterest income’’ on the consolidated statements of income. The impact on ‘‘foreign exchange income’’ was
an increase of $1 million in 2003 and a decrease of $2 million in 2002, with offsets to ‘‘other noninterest
income.’’ The financial statements for prior years have been adjusted to reflect this reclassification.

Short-term Investments

Short-term investments include interest-bearing deposits with banks, federal funds sold, securities pur-
chased under agreements to resell, trading securities and loans held-for-sale.

Trading securities are carried at market value. Realized and unrealized gains or losses on trading securities
are included in ‘‘other noninterest income’’ on the consolidated statements of income.

Loans held-for-sale, typically residential mortgages and Small Business Administration loans, are carried at
the lower of cost or market. Market value is determined in the aggregate.

Investment Securities

Investment securities held-to-maturity are those securities which the Corporation has the ability and
management has the positive intent to hold to maturity. Investment securities held-to-maturity are stated at
cost, adjusted for amortization of premium and accretion of discount.

Investment securities that fail to meet the ability and positive intent criteria are accounted for as securities
available-for-sale, and stated at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of income taxes, reported as a
separate component of other comprehensive income. Unrealized losses on securities available-for-sale are
recognized in earnings if the Corporation does not have the ability or intent to hold the securities until market
recovery or if full collection of the amounts due according to the contractual terms of the debt is not expected.
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Gains or losses on the sale of securities are computed based on the adjusted cost of the specific security
sold.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents management’s assessment of probable losses inherent in the
Corporation’s loan portfolio. The allowance provides for probable losses that have been identified with specific
customer relationships and for probable losses believed to be inherent in the loan portfolio, but that have not
been specifically identified. Internal risk ratings are assigned to each business loan at the time of approval and
are subject to subsequent periodic reviews by senior management. The Corporation performs a detailed credit
quality review quarterly on both large business and certain large personal purpose consumer and residential
mortgage loans to individuals that have deteriorated below certain levels of credit risk, and may allocate a
specific portion of the allowance to such loans based upon this review. The Corporation defines business loans
as those belonging to the commercial, real estate construction, commercial mortgage, lease financing and
international loan portfolios. A portion of the allowance is allocated to the remaining business loans by
applying projected loss ratios, based on numerous factors identified below, to the loans within each risk rating.
In addition, a portion of the allowance is allocated to these remaining loans based on industry specific and
geographic risks inherent in certain portfolios. The portion of the allowance allocated to other consumer and
residential mortgage loans is determined by applying projected loss ratios to various segments of the loan
portfolio. Projected loss ratios incorporate factors, such as recent charge-off experience, current economic
conditions and trends, trends with respect to past due and nonaccrual amounts, and are supported by
underlying analysis, including information from certain portfolios on migration and loss given default studies
from each geographic market.

Management maintains an unallocated allowance to recognize the uncertainty and imprecision underlying
the process of estimating expected loan losses. Determination of the probable losses inherent in the portfolio,
which are not necessarily captured by the allocation methodology discussed above, involve the exercise of
judgment. Factors that were considered in the evaluation of the adequacy of the Corporation’s unallocated
allowance include the imprecision in the risk rating system and the risk associated with new customer
relationships.

The total allowance, including the unallocated amount, is available to absorb losses from any segment
within the portfolio. Unanticipated economic events, including political, economic and regulatory instability
in countries where the Corporation has a concentration of loans, could cause changes in the credit characteris-
tics of the portfolio and result in an unanticipated increase in the allocated allowance. Inclusion of other
industry specific and geographic portfolio exposures in the allocated allowance, as well as significant increases
in the current portfolio exposures could also increase the amount of the allocated allowance. Any of these
events, or some combination, may result in the need for additional provision for loan losses in order to
maintain an allowance that complies with credit risk and accounting policies.

Loans which are deemed uncollectible are charged off and deducted from the allowance. The provision for
loan losses and recoveries on loans previously charged off are added to the allowance.

Allowance for Credit Losses on Lending-Related Commitments

The Corporation maintains an allowance to cover probable credit losses inherent in lending-related
commitments, including commitments to extend credit, letters of credit and guarantees. This allowance is
included in ‘‘accrued expenses and other liabilities’’ on the consolidated balance sheets, with the corresponding
charge reflected in ‘‘other noninterest expense’’ on the consolidated statements of income.

Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets are comprised of loans and debt securities for which the accrual of interest has been
discontinued, loans for which the terms have been renegotiated to less than market rates due to a serious
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weakening of the borrower’s financial condition and real estate which has been acquired primarily through
foreclosure and is awaiting disposition.

Loans, which were restructured, but yield a rate equal to or greater than the rate charged for new loans
with comparable risk and have met the requirements for accrual status, are not reported as nonperforming
assets. Such loans continue to be evaluated for impairment for the remainder of the calendar year of the
modifications. These loans may be excluded from the impairment assessment in the calendar years subsequent
to the restructuring if not impaired based on the modified terms. See Note 3 on page 73 for additional
information on loan impairment.

Consumer loans are generally not placed on nonaccrual status and are charged off no later than 180 days
past due, and earlier, if deemed uncollectible. Loans, other than consumer loans, and debt securities are
generally placed on nonaccrual status when principal or interest is past due 90 days or more and/or when, in
the opinion of management, full collection of principal or interest is unlikely. At the time a loan or debt
security is placed on nonaccrual status, interest previously accrued but not collected is charged against current
income. Income on such loans and debt securities is then recognized only to the extent that cash is received
and where future collection of principal is probable. Generally, a loan or debt security may be returned to
accrual status when all delinquent principal and interest have been received and the Corporation expects
repayment of the remaining contractual principal and interest or when the loan or debt security is both well
secured and in the process of collection.

A nonaccrual loan that is restructured will generally remain on nonaccrual after the restructuring, for a
period of six months to demonstrate that the borrower can meet the restructured terms. However, sustained
payment performance prior to the restructuring, or significant events that coincide with the restructuring, are
included in assessing whether the borrower can meet the restructured terms. These factors may result in the
loan being returned to an accrual basis at the time of restructuring or upon satisfaction of a shorter perform-
ance period. If management is uncertain whether the borrower has the ability to meet the revised payment
schedule, the loan remains classified as nonaccrual. Other real estate acquired is carried at the lower of cost or
fair value, minus estimated costs to sell. When the property is acquired through foreclosure, any excess of the
related loan balance over fair value is charged to the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent write-downs,
operating expenses and losses upon sale, if any, are charged to noninterest expenses.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation,
computed on the straight-line method, is charged to operations over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The estimated useful lives are generally 10-33 years for premises that the company owns and 3-8 years for
furniture and equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the terms of their respective leases, or
10 years, whichever is shorter.

Software

Capitalized software is stated at cost, less accumulated amortization. Capitalized software includes pur-
chased software and capitalizable application development costs associated with internally-developed software.
Amortization, computed on the straight-line method, is charged to operations over the estimated useful life of
the software, which is generally 5 years. Capitalized software is included in ‘‘accrued income and other assets’’
on the consolidated balance sheets.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and identified intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are subject to impairment
testing, which the Corporation conducts annually, or on an interim basis if events or changes in circumstances
between annual tests indicate the assets might be impaired. The Corporation performs its annual impairment
test for goodwill and identified intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life as of July 1 of each year. The
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impairment test involves assigning tangible assets and liabilities, identified intangible assets and goodwill to
reporting units, which are a subset of the Corporation’s operating segments, and comparing the fair value of
each reporting unit to its carrying value. If the fair value is less than the carrying value, a further test is required
to measure the amount of impairment.

The Corporation reviews finite-lived intangible assets and other long-lived assets for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable from
projected undiscounted net operating cash flows. If the projected undiscounted net operating cash flows are
less than the carrying amount, the Corporation recognizes a loss to reduce the carrying amount to fair value.

Other intangible assets that do not have indefinite lives are amortized over their useful lives. Core deposit
intangible assets are amortized on an accelerated method over 10 years.

Additional information regarding the Corporation’s goodwill, intangible assets and impairment policies
can be found in Notes 7 and 8 on pages 75 and 76, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

In 2002, the Corporation adopted the fair value recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Account-
ing Standards (SFAS) No. 123, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation’’ (as amended by SFAS No. 148,
‘‘Accounting for Stock-based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure’’), which the Corporation is applying
prospectively to new stock-based compensation awards granted to employees after December 31, 2001.
Options granted prior to January 1, 2002 continue to be accounted for under the intrinsic value method, as
outlined in APB Opinion No. 25, ‘‘Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.’’ Awards under the Corporation’s
plans vest over periods ranging from one to four years. Therefore, the expense related to stock-based compensa-
tion included in the determination of net income for 2004, 2003 and 2002 is less than that which would have
been recognized if the fair value method had been applied to all awards since the original effective date of SFAS
No. 123. The impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 123 on 2004, 2003 and 2002 net income was a decrease of
$18 million, $13 million and $11 million, respectively. The effect on net income and earnings per share, if the
fair value method had been applied to all outstanding and unvested awards in each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2004, is presented in the table below.

Years Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002

(in millions, except
per share data)

Net income applicable to common stock, as reported ************************* $ 757 $ 661 $ 601
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included in reported net income, net of

related tax effects ******************************************************* 22 18 17
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value

method for all awards, net of related tax effects***************************** (27) (26) (30)

Pro forma net income applicable to common stock *************************** $ 752 $ 653 $ 588

Net income per common share:
Basic — as reported ***************************************************** $4.41 $3.78 $3.43
Basic — pro forma ****************************************************** 4.38 3.74 3.36
Diluted — as reported *************************************************** 4.36 3.75 3.40
Diluted — pro forma **************************************************** 4.32 3.70 3.32

Further information on the Corporation’s stock-based compensation plans is included in Note 15 on
page 83.
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Pension Costs

Pension costs are charged to salaries and employee benefits expense and are funded consistent with the
requirements of federal law and regulations. Inherent in the determination of pension costs are assumptions
concerning future events that will affect the amount and timing of required benefit payments under the plans.
These assumptions include demographic assumptions such as retirement age and death, a compensation rate
increase, a discount rate used to determine the current benefit obligation, and a long-term expected return on
plan assets. Net periodic pension expense includes service cost, interest costs based on the assumed discount
rate, an expected return on plan assets based on an actuarially derived market-related value of assets, and
amortization of unrecognized liabilities such as prior service cost and actuarial gains and losses. The market-
related value used to determine the expected return on plan assets is based on fair value adjusted for the
difference between expected returns and actual asset performance. The asset gains and losses are incorporated
in the market-related value over a five-year period. Prior service costs include the impact of plan amendments
on the liabilities and are amortized over the future service periods of active employees expected to receive
benefits under the plan. Actuarial gains and losses result from experience different from that assumed and from
changes in assumptions (excluding asset gains and losses not yet reflected in market-related value). Amortiza-
tion of actuarial gains and losses is included as a component of net periodic pension cost for a year if the
unrecognized net gain or loss exceeds 10 percent of the greater of the projected benefit obligation or the
market-related value of plan assets. If amortization is required, the excess is amortized over the average
remaining service period of participating employees expected to receive benefits under the plan.

Postretirement Benefits

Postretirement benefits are recognized in ‘‘salaries and employee benefits’’ on the consolidated statements
of income during the employee’s active service period.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Foreign Exchange Contracts

Derivative instruments are carried at fair value as either other assets or liabilities on the balance sheet. The
accounting for changes in the fair value (i.e., gains or losses) of a derivative instrument is determined by
whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship and, further, on the type of
hedging relationship. For those derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as hedging instruments,
the Corporation designates the hedging instrument, based upon the exposure being hedged, as either a fair
value hedge, cash flow hedge or a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation. For derivative instruments
designated and qualifying as a fair value hedge (i.e., hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of an
asset or a liability or an identified portion thereof that is attributable to a particular risk), the gain or loss on
the derivative instrument, as well as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item attributable to the hedged
risk, are recognized in current earnings during the period of the change in fair values. For derivative instru-
ments that are designated and qualify as a cash flow hedge (i.e., hedging the exposure to variability in expected
future cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk), the effective portion of the gain or loss on the
derivative instrument is reported as a component of other comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings
in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. The remaining gain or loss
on the derivative instrument in excess of the cumulative change in the present value of future cash flows of the
hedged item (i.e., the ineffective portion), if any, is recognized in current earnings during the period of change.
For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as a hedge of a net investment in a foreign currency,
the gain or loss is reported in other comprehensive income as part of the cumulative translation adjustment to
the extent it is effective. For derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments, the gain or loss is
recognized in current earnings during the period of change.

Foreign exchange futures and forward contracts, foreign currency options, interest rate caps and interest
rate swap agreements executed as a service to customers are not designated as hedging instruments and both
the realized and unrealized gains and losses on these instruments are recognized currently in noninterest
income.
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Standby and Commercial Letters of Credit and Financial Guarantees

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, ‘‘Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others’’ (FIN 45). The Interpre-
tation requires the liability related to certain guarantee contracts or indemnification agreements that contin-
gently require the guarantor to make payments to the guaranteed party to be recognized and initially measured
at fair value by the guarantor. The initial recognition and measurement provisions were applied by the
Corporation on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified subsequent to December 31, 2002.
Further information on the Corporation’s obligations under guarantees is included in Note 20 on page 93.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is based on amounts reported in the statements of income (after exclusion
of nontaxable items, principally income on bank-owned life insurance and interest income on state and
municipal securities) and include deferred income taxes on temporary differences between the tax basis and
financial reporting basis of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets are evaluated for realization based on
available evidence and assumptions made regarding future events. In the event that the future taxable income
does not occur in the manner anticipated, other initiatives could be undertaken to preclude the need to
recognize a valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are
defined as those amounts included in ‘‘cash and due from banks’’ on the consolidated balance sheets.

Deferred Distribution Costs

Certain mutual fund distribution costs, principally commissions paid to brokers, are capitalized when
paid and amortized over six years. Fees that contractually recoup the deferred costs, primarily 12b-1 fees, are
received over a 6-8 year period. The net of these fees and amortization is recorded in ‘‘investment advisory
revenue, net’’ on the consolidated statements of income. Early redemption fees collected are generally recorded
as a reduction to the capitalized costs, unless there is evidence that, on an ongoing basis, amounts collected
will exceed the unamortized deferred fee asset.

Loan Origination Fees and Costs

Loan origination and commitment fees are deferred and recognized over the life of the related loan or over
the commitment period as a yield adjustment. Loan fees on unused commitments and fees related to loans
sold are recognized currently as noninterest income.

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Corporation has elected to present information on comprehensive income in the Consolidated
Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity on page 62 and in Note 13 on page 81.
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Note 2 — Investment Securities

A summary of the Corporation’s investment securities available-for-sale follows:
Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(in millions)

December 31, 2004
U.S. Treasury and other Government agency securities***** $3,810 $1 $55 $3,756
State and municipal securities************************** 7 — — 7
Other securities ************************************** 179 1 — 180

Total securities available-for-sale ********************** $3,996 $2 $55 $3,943

December 31, 2003
U.S. Treasury and other Government agency securities***** $4,346 $3 $40 $4,309
State and municipal securities************************** 10 1 — 11
Other securities ************************************** 168 1 — 169

Total securities available-for-sale ********************** $4,524 $5 $40 $4,489

A summary of the Corporation’s temporarily impaired investment securities available-for-sale follows:
December 31, 2004

Impaired
Less than 12 months Over 12 months Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(in millions)

U.S. Treasury and other Government
agency securities******************** $920 $12 $2,513 $43 $3,433 $55

State and municipal securities ********** — — — — — —
Other securities ********************** — — — — — —

Total temporarily impaired securities ** $920 $12 $2,513 $43 $3,433 $55

At December 31, 2004, the Corporation had 86 U.S. Treasury and other Government agency securities in
an unrealized loss position. The unrealized losses resulted from changes in market interest rates, not credit
quality. The Corporation has the ability and intent to hold these available-for-sale investment securities until
maturity or market price recovery, and full collection of the amounts due according to the contractual terms of
the debt is expected; therefore, the Corporation does not consider these investments to be other than tempora-
rily impaired at December 31, 2004.
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The table below summarizes the amortized cost and fair values of debt securities, by contractual maturity
(securities with multiple maturity dates are classified in the period of final maturity). Expected maturities will
differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or
without call or prepayment penalties.

December 31, 2004
Amortized Fair

Cost Value
(in millions)

Contractual maturity
Within one year************************************************************* $ 181 $ 181
After one year through five years ********************************************** 11 12
After five year through ten years*********************************************** 2 2
After ten years ************************************************************** — —

Subtotal**************************************************************** 194 195
Mortgage-backed securities *************************************************** 3,723 3,669
Equity and other nondebt securities ******************************************* 79 79

Total securities available-for-sale********************************************* $3,996 $3,943

Sales, calls and write-downs of investment securities available-for-sale resulted in realized gains and losses
as follows:

Years Ended
December 31

2004 2003 2002
(in millions)

Securities gains ************************************************************** $ 6 $ 64 $ 78
Securities losses ************************************************************** (6) (14) (37)

Total ********************************************************************* $— $ 50 $ 41

At December 31, 2004, investment securities having a carrying value of $1.3 billion were pledged where
permitted or required by law to secure liabilities and public and other deposits of $402 million. This included
securities of $837 million pledged with the Federal Reserve Bank to secure actual treasury tax and loan
borrowings of $3 million at December 31, 2004, and potential borrowings of up to an additional $810 mil-
lion. The remaining pledged securities of $509 million are primarily with state and local government agencies
to secure $399 million of deposits and other liabilities, including deposits of the State of Michigan of
$138 million at December 31, 2004.
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Note 3 — Nonperforming Assets

The following table summarizes nonperforming assets and loans, which are contractually past due 90 days
or more as to interest or principal payments. Nonperforming assets consist of nonaccrual loans and debt
securities, reduced-rate loans and other real estate. Nonaccrual loans and debt securities are those on which
interest is not being recognized. Reduced-rate loans are those on which interest has been renegotiated to lower
than market rates because of the weakened financial condition of the borrower.

Nonaccrual and reduced-rate loans are included in loans on the consolidated balance sheets. Nonaccrual
debt securities are included in ‘‘investment securities available-for-sale’’ and other real estate is included in
‘‘accrued income and other assets’’ on the consolidated balance sheets.

December 31
2004 2003
(in millions)

Nonaccrual loans:
Commercial ********************************************************************* $161 $295
Real estate construction:

Real estate construction business line ********************************************* 31 21
Other************************************************************************* 3 3

Total real estate construction ************************************************** 34 24
Commercial mortgage:

Commercial real estate business line ********************************************* 6 3
Other************************************************************************* 58 84

Total commercial mortgage**************************************************** 64 87
Residential mortgage ************************************************************* 1 2
Consumer*********************************************************************** 1 7
Lease financing ****************************************************************** 15 24
International ******************************************************************** 36 68

Total nonaccrual loans******************************************************** 312 507
Reduced-rate loans ***************************************************************** — —

Total nonperforming loans **************************************************** 312 507
Other real estate ******************************************************************* 27 30
Nonaccrual debt securities ********************************************************** — 1

Total nonperforming assets**************************************************** $339 $538

Loans past due 90 days and still accruing ********************************************* $ 15 $ 32

Gross interest income that would have been recorded had the nonaccrual and reduced-rate
loans performed in accordance with original terms ***********************************  $ 34  $ 59

Interest income recognized ********************************************************** $ 5 $ 12

A loan is impaired when it is probable that payment of interest and principal will not be made in
accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Consistent with this definition, all nonaccrual
and reduced-rate loans (with the exception of residential mortgage and consumer loans) are impaired.

Impaired loans at December 31, 2004 were $318 million, $8 million of which were restructured and met
the requirements to be on accrual status. These restructured loans are performing in accordance with their
modified terms, but, in accordance with impaired loan disclosures, must be disclosed as impaired for the
remainder of the calendar year of the restructuring.
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December 31
2004 2003 2002

(in millions)

Average impaired loans for the year ******************************************* $424 $593 $628

Total year-end impaired loans ************************************************ $318 $512 $578
Less: Loans restructured during the year on accrual status at year-end ************* (8) (14) (19)

Total year-end nonaccrual business loans ************************************** $310 $498 $559

Year-end impaired loans requiring an allowance ******************************** $306 $468 $512

Allowance allocated to impaired loans **************************************** $ 88 $167 $197

Those impaired loans not requiring an allowance represent loans for which the fair value exceeded the
recorded investments in such loans. At December 31, 2004, approximately 90 percent of the total impaired
loans were evaluated based on fair value of related collateral. Remaining loan impairment is based on the
present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or observable market
value.

Note 4 — Allowance for Loan Losses

An analysis of changes in the allowance for loan losses follows:
2004 2003 2002
(dollar amounts in millions)

Balance at January 1**************************************************** $ 803 $ 791 $ 637
Loans charged-off ****************************************************** (268) (408) (517)
Recoveries on loans previously charged-off ******************************** 74 43 36

Net loans charged-off************************************************* (194) (365) (481)
Provision for loan losses ************************************************ 64 377 635

Balance at December 31 ************************************************ $ 673 $ 803 $ 791

As a percentage of total loans******************************************** 1.65% 1.99% 1.87%

Note 5 — Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk

Concentrations of both on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet credit risk are controlled and monitored as
part of credit policies. The Corporation is a regional financial services holding company with a geographic
concentration of its on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet activities in Michigan, California and Texas. In
addition, the Corporation has an industry concentration with the automotive industry.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, exposure from loans, unused commitments and standby letters of credit
and financial guarantees to companies related to the automotive industry totaled $11.0 billion and $10.7 bil-
lion, respectively. Additionally, commercial real estate loans, including real estate construction and commercial
mortgage loans, totaled $11.3 billion at both December 31, 2004 and 2003. Of the commercial real estate
loans at December 31, 2004, $7.3 billion involved borrowers not primarily engaged in the business of
commercial real estate and where the sources of repayment are not dependent on the performance of the real
estate market. Unused commitments on commercial real estate loans were $3.1 billion and $2.8 billion at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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Note 6 — Premises & Equipment

A summary of premises and equipment by major category follows:
December 31

2004 2003
(in millions)

Land*************************************************************************** $ 67 $ 57
Buildings and improvements****************************************************** 486 441
Furniture and equipment********************************************************* 384 377

Total cost********************************************************************* 937 875
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization *********************************** (522) (501)

Net book value *************************************************************** $ 415 $ 374

The Corporation conducts a portion of its business from leased facilities and leases certain equipment.
Rental expense for leased properties and equipment amounted to $66 million, $70 million and $59 million in
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. As of December 31, 2004, future minimum payments under operating
leases and other long-term obligations are as follows:

Years Ending
December 31
(in millions)

2005 ****************************************************************************** $ 84
2006 ****************************************************************************** 69
2007 ****************************************************************************** 46
2008 ****************************************************************************** 41
2009 ****************************************************************************** 36
Thereafter ************************************************************************** 236

Total***************************************************************************** $512

Note 7 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In accordance with the Corporation’s adoption of SFAS No. 142, ‘‘Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,’’
the Corporation performed the first required impairment test of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
as of January 1, 2002. Based on this test, the Corporation was not required to record a transition adjustment
upon adoption. Goodwill was again evaluated for impairment as of July 1, 2002. As a result of this test, the
Corporation was required to record a goodwill impairment charge of $86 million in the third quarter of 2002.
This charge resulted from the decline in equity markets, and its related impact on the valuation of the
Corporation’s asset management reporting unit (Munder), which is a part of the Wealth and Institutional
Management segment for business segment reporting purposes. The fair value of Munder used in the determi-
nation of the impairment charge was based on a valuation prepared by an investment banker not affiliated
with the Corporation. The valuation used a combination of valuation techniques, including discounted cash
flows and the prices of external comparable businesses. The annual impairment test of goodwill and indefinite-
lived intangible assets, performed as of July 1, 2004 and 2003, did not indicate an impairment charge was
required.
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The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
are shown in the following table. Amounts in all periods are based on lines of business in effect at Decem-
ber 31, 2004.

Small Business Wealth and
Business and Personal Institutional

Bank Financial Services Management Total
(in millions)

Balance at January 1, 2002 **************************** $90 $47 $196 $333
Goodwill impairment ******************************** — — (86) (86)

Balance at December 31, 2002************************* $90 $47 $110 $247
Goodwill impairment ******************************** — — — —

Balance at December 31, 2003************************* $90 $47 $110 $247
Goodwill impairment ******************************** — — — —

Balance at December 31, 2004************************* $90 $47 $110 $247

Note 8 — Acquired Intangible Assets

Amortized intangible assets consisted of the following:
 December 31

2004 2003
Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amortized Intangible Assets Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

(in millions)

Core deposit intangibles ******************************* $3 $3 $14 $13
Other ************************************************ 1 — 1 —

Total********************************************* $4 $3 $15 $13

The amortization expense related to acquired intangible assets amounted to $1 million in both 2004 and
2003 and $4 million in 2002. The remaining $1 million of amortization expense related to acquired intangible
assets will be recognized in 2005.

Note 9 — Deposits

A maturity distribution of domestic certificates of deposit of $100,000 and over follows:
December 31

2004 2003
(in millions)

Three months or less************************************************************ $1,154 $1,733
Over three months to six months************************************************* 443 345
Over six months to twelve months************************************************ 555 1,102
Over twelve months************************************************************* 453 639

Total ************************************************************************ $2,605 $3,819
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Note 10 — Short-Term Borrowings

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase generally mature within one
to four days from the transaction date. Other borrowed funds, consisting of commercial paper, borrowed
securities, term federal funds purchased, short-term notes and treasury tax and loan deposits, generally mature
within one to 120 days from the transaction date. The following table provides a summary of short-term
borrowings.

Federal Funds Purchased Other
and Securities Sold Under Borrowed
Agreements to Repurchase Funds

(dollar amounts in millions)

December 31, 2004
Amount outstanding at year-end ******************************** $ 161 $ 32
Weighted average interest rate at year-end************************* 2.14% 2.60%
Maximum month-end balance during the year ******************** $ 253 $ 154
Average balance outstanding during the year ********************** 215 60
Weighted average interest rate during the year ********************* 1.31% 1.06%

December 31, 2003
Amount outstanding at year-end ******************************** $ 169 $ 93
Weighted average interest rate at year-end************************* 0.81% 0.77%
Maximum month-end balance during the year ******************** $ 552 $ 249
Average balance outstanding during the year ********************** 459 91
Weighted average interest rate during the year ********************* 1.23% 1.06%

December 31, 2002
Amount outstanding at year-end ******************************** $ 344 $ 196
Weighted average interest rate at year-end************************* 1.06% 1.47%
Maximum month-end balance during the year ******************** $1,569 $ 1,173
Average balance outstanding during the year ********************** 1,571 391
Weighted average interest rate during the year ********************* 1.90% 1.63%

At December 31, 2004, the Corporation had available a $250 million commercial paper facility, with no
outstanding borrowings. This facility is supported by a $220 million line of credit agreement. Under the
current agreement, the line will expire in May 2005.

At December 31, 2004, the Corporation’s subsidiary banks had pledged loans totaling $18 billion to
secure a $14 billion collateralized borrowing account with the Federal Reserve Bank.
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Note 11 — Medium- & Long-Term Debt

Medium- and long-term debt are summarized as follows:
December 31

2004 2003
(in millions)

Parent company
7.25% subordinated note due 2007 ********************************************* $ 163 $ 170
4.80% subordinated note due 2015 ********************************************* 304 301
7.60% subordinated note due 2050 ********************************************* 357 355

Total parent company *********************************************************** 824 826
Subsidiaries
Subordinated notes:

7.25% subordinated note due 2007 ********************************************* 216 225
6.00% subordinated note due 2008 ********************************************* 270 276
6.875% subordinated note due 2008******************************************** 109 114
8.50% subordinated note due 2009 ********************************************* 107 110
7.65% subordinated note due 2010 ********************************************* 256 270
7.125% subordinated note due 2013******************************************** 169 172
5.70% subordinated note due 2014 ********************************************* 262 —
8.375% subordinated note due 2024******************************************** 197 198
7.875% subordinated note due 2026******************************************** 200 197
9.98% subordinated note due 2026 ********************************************* 58 59

Total subordinated notes ******************************************************** 1,844 1,621
Medium-term notes:

Floating rate based on LIBOR indices ******************************************* 385 1,135
2.95% fixed rate note ********************************************************* 99 100
2.85% fixed rate note ********************************************************* 99 100

Variable rate secured debt financing due 2007 ************************************** 1,017 997
Variable rate note payable due 2009 ********************************************** 18 22

Total subsidiaries *************************************************************** 3,462 3,975

Total medium- and long-term debt************************************************ $4,286 $4,801
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The carrying value of medium- and long-term debt has been adjusted to reflect the gain or loss attributable
to the risk hedged. Concurrent with or subsequent to the issuance of certain of the medium- and long-term
debt presented above, the Corporation entered into interest rate swap agreements to convert the stated rate of
the debt to a rate based on the indices identified in the following table.

Principal Amount Base
of Debt Rate at

Converted Base Rate 12/31/04
(dollar amounts in millions)

Parent company
7.25% subordinated note due 2007 ******************** $150 6-month LIBOR 2.78%
4.80% subordinated note due 2015 ******************** 300 6-month LIBOR 2.78

Subsidiaries Subordinated notes:
7.25% subordinated note due 2007 ******************** 200 6-month LIBOR 2.78
6.00% subordinated note due 2008 ******************** 250 6-month LIBOR 2.78
6.875% subordinated note due 2008 ******************* 100 6-month LIBOR 2.78
8.50% subordinated note due 2009 ******************** 100 3-month LIBOR 2.56
7.65% subordinated note due 2010 ******************** 250 3-month LIBOR 2.56
7.125% subordinated note due 2013 ******************* 150 6-month LIBOR 2.78
5.70% subordinated note due 2014 ******************** 250 6-month LIBOR 2.78
8.375% subordinated note due 2024 ******************* 150 6-month LIBOR 2.78
7.875% subordinated note due 2026 ******************* 150 6-month LIBOR 2.78

Medium-term notes:
2.95% fixed rate note ********************************* 100 3-month LIBOR 2.56
2.85% fixed rate note ********************************* 100 3-month LIBOR 2.56

In May 2004, Comerica Bank, a subsidiary of Comerica Incorporated, issued $250 million of 5.70%
Subordinated Notes which are classified in medium- and long-term debt. The notes pay interest on June 1 and
December 1 of each year, beginning with December 1, 2004 and mature June 1, 2014. Comerica Bank used the
net proceeds for general corporate purposes.

The Corporation has a $350 million, 7.60% subordinated note and a $55 million, 9.98% subordinated
note that relate to trust preferred securities issuances held by entities that were deconsolidated, effective July 1,
2003, as a result of the adoption of FIN 46(R). In accordance with current guidance from the banking
regulators these notes continue to qualify as Tier 1 capital. All other subordinated notes with maturities greater
than one year qualify as Tier 2 capital.

The Corporation currently has two medium-term note programs: a senior note program and a European
note program. Under these programs, the principal bank subsidiary may offer an aggregate principal amount of
up to $17 billion. The notes can be issued as fixed or floating rate notes and with terms from one month to
15 years. The interest rates on the floating rate medium-term notes based on LIBOR ranged from one-month
LIBOR minus 0.06% to three-month LIBOR plus 0.245%. The medium-term notes are due from 2005 to 2007.
The medium-term notes do not qualify as Tier 2 capital and are not insured by the FDIC.

In December 2001, the Corporation privately placed approximately $1.0 billion of variable rate notes as
part of a secured financing transaction. The Corporation utilized approximately $1.2 billion of dealer floor
plan loans as collateral in conjunction with this transaction. The over-collateralization of the issuance provided
for a preferred credit rating status. The secured financing includes $924 million of deferred payment notes
bearing interest at the rate of 30 basis points plus a commercial paper reference rate, and $60 million of
deferred payment notes based on one-month LIBOR. The interest rate on each of these note issuances is reset
monthly. The $924 million deferred payment notes, which may be redeemed upon the occurrence of certain
conditions, mature in December 2007. Interest will accrue on the $60 million deferred payment notes until
January 2007, at which time the notes become redeemable by the holder. These notes do not qualify as Tier 2
capital and are not insured by the FDIC.
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The principal maturities of medium- and long-term debt are as follows:
Years Ending
December 31
(in millions)

2005 ****************************************************************************** $ 285
2006 ****************************************************************************** 200
2007 ****************************************************************************** 1,405
2008 ****************************************************************************** 350
2009 ****************************************************************************** 118
Thereafter ************************************************************************** 1,725

Total***************************************************************************** $4,083

Note 12 — Shareholders’ Equity

On December 1, 2003, the Corporation announced it would resume its share repurchase program
pursuant to its August 2001 Board of Directors’ resolutions, authorizing the repurchase of up to 10 million
shares of the Corporation’s outstanding common stock. On March 23, 2004, the Board of Directors of the
Corporation authorized the additional purchase of up to 10 million shares of Comerica Incorporated outstand-
ing common stock. Substantially all shares purchased as part of the Corporation’s publicly announced repur-
chase plan were transacted in the open market and were within the scope of Rule 10b-18, which provides a safe
harbor for purchases in a given day if an issuer of equity securities satisfies the manner, timing, price and
volume conditions of the rule when purchasing its own common shares in the open market. Repurchases
totaled 6.5 million shares, 0.5 million shares and 3.5 million shares in the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively. The following table summarizes the Corporation’s share repurchase activity for
the year ended December 31, 2004.

Total Shares Purchased as Remaining Share
Total Shares Average Price Part of Publicly Announced Repurchase

Month ending Purchased (1) Paid Per Share Repurchase Plan Authorization
(shares in millions)

January 31, 2004 **************** 0.5 $57.62 0.5 4.3
February 29, 2004 *************** 0.7 56.93 0.7 3.6
March 31, 2004 (2)************** 1.2 54.83 1.2 12.4
April 30, 2004 ****************** 0.3 52.10 0.3 12.1
May 31, 2004 ******************* 0.4 53.23 0.4 11.7
June 30, 2004******************* 1.4 55.29 1.4 10.3
July 31, 2004 ******************* 0.3 58.12 0.3 10.0
August 31, 2004***************** 0.6 58.66 0.6 9.4
September 30, 2004 ************* 0.6 59.81 0.6 8.8
October 31, 2004**************** 0.1 60.29 0.1 8.6
November 30, 2004************** 0.4 62.28 0.4 8.2
December 31, 2004 ************** — — — 8.2

Total ************************* 6.5 $56.70 6.5 8.2

(1) The Corporation purchased a nominal number of shares from an employee under the terms of an
employee stock-based compensation plan.

(2) Total remaining share repurchase authorization includes the 10 million share repurchase resolution
announced on March 23, 2004.
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At December 31, 2004, the Corporation had reserved 25.6 million shares of common stock for issuance to
employees and directors under the long-term incentive plans.

Note 13 — Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss) includes the change in net unrealized gains and losses on investment
securities available-for-sale, the change in accumulated net gains and losses on cash flow hedges, the change in
the accumulated foreign currency translation adjustment and the change in the accumulated minimum
pension liability adjustment. The Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity on page 62
include only combined other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax. The following table presents reconcilia-
tions of the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002. Total comprehensive income totaled $614 million, $498 million and $613 million, for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The $116 million increase in total compre-
hensive income in the year ended December 31, 2004 when compared to the same period in the prior year
resulted principally from an increase in net income ($96 million) and a decrease in net unrealized losses on
investment securities available-for-sale ($27 million), due to changes in the interest rate environment.
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For a further discussion of the effect of derivative instruments on other comprehensive income see Notes 1
and 20 on pages 64 and 93, respectively.

Years Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002

(in millions)

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities available-for-sale:
Balance at beginning of year ******************************************* $ (23) $ 15 $ 16

Net unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the year ************* (17) (8) 39
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) included in net income — 50 41

Change in net unrealized gains (losses) before income taxes ************* (17) (58) (2)
Less: Provision for income taxes ************************************** (6) (20) (1)

Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities
available-for-sale, net of tax **************************************** (11) (38) (1)

Balance at end of year ************************************************* $ (34) $ (23) $ 15
Accumulated net gains (losses) on cash flow hedges:

Balance at beginning of year ******************************************* $ 114 $ 241 $209
Net cash flow hedge gains (losses) arising during the year**************** (18) 90 410
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) included in net income 182 285 361

Change in cash flow hedges before income taxes************************ (200) (195) 49
Less: Provision for income taxes ************************************** (70) (68) 17

Change in cash flow hedges, net of tax ******************************** (130) (127) 32

Balance at end of year ************************************************* $ (16) $ 114 $241
Accumulated foreign currency translation adjustment:

Balance at beginning of year ******************************************* $ (4) $ (3) $ —
Net translation gains (losses) arising during the year ******************** (2) (1) (3)
Less: Provision for income taxes ************************************** — — —

Change in foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax ************ (2) (1) (3)

Balance at end of year ************************************************* $ (6) $ (4) $ (3)
Accumulated minimum pension liability adjustment:

Balance at beginning of year ******************************************* $ (13) $ (16) $ —
Minimum pension liability adjustment arising during the year before

income taxes ***************************************************** — 5 (25)
Less: Provision for income taxes ************************************** — 2 (9)

Change in minimum pension liability, net of tax *********************** — 3 (16)

Balance at end of year ************************************************* $ (13) $ (13) $ (16)

Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes,
at end of year ********************************************************** $ (69) $ 74 $237
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Note 14 — Net Income Per Common Share

Basic net income per common share is computed by dividing net income applicable to common stock by
the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted net income
per common share is computed by dividing net income applicable to common stock by the weighted-average
number of shares, nonvested stock and dilutive common stock equivalents outstanding during the period.
Common stock equivalents consist of common stock issuable under the assumed exercise of stock options
granted under the Corporation’s stock plans, using the treasury stock method. A computation of basic and
diluted net income per common share is presented in the table below.

Years Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002

(in millions, except
per share data)

Basic
Net income applicable to common stock ************************************** $ 757 $ 661 $ 601

Average common shares outstanding ****************************************** 172 175 175

Basic net income per common share ****************************************** $4.41 $3.78 $3.43

Diluted
Net income applicable to common stock ************************************** $ 757 $ 661 $ 601

Average common shares outstanding ****************************************** 172 175 175
Common stock equivalents

Net effect of the assumed exercise of stock options**************************** 2 1 2

Diluted average common shares ********************************************** 174 176 177

Diluted net income per common share **************************************** $4.36 $3.75 $3.40

Options to purchase an average 6.2 million, 9.2 million and 6.1 million shares of common stock at
exercise prices ranging from $57.60 — $71.58, $46.25 — $71.58 and $55.73 — $71.58 were outstanding dur-
ing the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, but were not included in the computa-
tion of diluted net income per common share because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the average
market price of common shares for the period.

Note 15 — Stock-Based Compensation

The Corporation has stock-based compensation plans under which it awards both shares of restricted
stock to key executive officers and key personnel, and stock options to executive officers, directors and key
personnel of the Corporation and its subsidiaries. The restricted stock generally vests within five years. The
maturity of each option is determined at the date of grant; however, no options may be exercised later than ten
years from the date of grant. The options may have restrictions regarding exercisability. The plans provide for a
grant of up to 16.5 million common shares.

In 2002, the Corporation adopted the fair value method of accounting for stock options, as outlined in
SFAS No. 123 (as amended by SFAS No. 148). Transition rules require that all stock options granted in the year
of adoption be accounted for under the fair value method, thus, the new method was applied prospectively to
all grants made after December 31, 2001. Therefore, the expense related to stock-based compensation included
in the determination of net income for 2004, 2003 and 2002 is less than that which would have been
recognized if the fair value method had been applied to all awards since the original effective date of SFAS
No. 123. Under SFAS No. 123, compensation expense, equal to the fair value of stock-based compensation as
of the date of grant, is recognized over the vesting period. Awards under the Corporation’s plans vest over
periods ranging from one to four years. Options granted prior to January 1, 2002 continue to be accounted for
under the intrinsic value method, as outlined in APB Opinion No. 25. The effect on net income and net
income per common share if the fair value method had been applied to all outstanding and unvested awards is
presented in Note 1 on page 64.
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The fair value of stock options granted was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The Black-Scholes model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options,
which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require
several inputs, including the expected stock price volatility. The model may not necessarily provide a reliable
single measure of the fair value of employee and director stock options. The Corporation’s employee and
director stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options and changes in
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimates.

The fair value of the options granted was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the
following weighted-average assumptions:

Years Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002

Risk-free interest rate ******************************************************* 3.52% 3.08% 4.68%
Expected dividend yield ***************************************************** 3.28 2.83 2.65
Expected volatility factors of the market price of Comerica common stock********* 31 33 33
Expected option life (in years) *********************************************** 5.0 5.0 4.8

A summary of the Corporation’s stock option activity, and related information for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2004 follows:

Weighted Average
per Share

Number of Exercise Market
Options Price Price

(in thousands)

Outstanding — January 1, 2002************************************* 13,099 $46.81 $57.30
Granted (weighted-average grant fair value of $17.64) *************** 3,197 63.14 63.14
Forfeited ******************************************************* (288) 60.25 55.51
Exercised******************************************************* (1,134) 29.63 59.49

Outstanding — December 31, 2002 ********************************* 14,874 $51.37 $43.24
Granted (weighted-average grant fair value of $10.32) *************** 2,993 40.68 40.68
Forfeited ******************************************************* (651) 56.13 45.87
Exercised******************************************************* (533) 24.99 46.34

Outstanding — December 31, 2003 ********************************* 16,683 $50.12 $56.06
Granted (weighted-average grant fair value of $12.33) *************** 2,817 52.64 52.64
Forfeited ******************************************************* (657) 55.59 56.70
Exercised******************************************************* (1,769) 32.79 57.79

Outstanding — December 31, 2004 ********************************* 17,074 $52.04 $61.02

Exercisable — December 31, 2003*********************************** 10,901 $50.73
Exercisable — December 31, 2004*********************************** 10,933 52.86
Available for grant — December 31, 2004 **************************** 7,882
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The table below summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2004:
Outstanding Exercisable

Weighted Weighted
Weighted Average Average

Number of Average Exercise Number of Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Options Life (a) Price Options Price

(in thousands) (in thousands)

$13.42 — $19.92 ************************ 338 0.4 $18.20 338 $18.20
25.42 — 38.85************************* 830 1.5 26.20 826 26.15
40.09 — 49.87************************* 4,989 6.1 40.88 3,090 41.19
51.02 — 58.44************************* 4,806 8.0 52.32 1,659 52.10
60.09 — 66.81************************* 4,580 6.1 64.55 3,489 65.01
69.00 — 71.58************************* 1,531 3.2 71.58 1,531 71.58

Total ********************************* 17,074 6.0 $52.04 10,933 $52.86

(a) Weighted average contractual life remaining in years.

In addition, the Corporation awarded 257 thousand, 225 thousand and 123 thousand shares of restricted
stock in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The fair value of these shares at grant date was $14 million in 2004,
$9 million in 2003 and $8 million in 2002.

Total compensation cost recognized for stock-based employee compensation was $34 million, $28 million
and $25 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Note 16 — Employee Benefit Plans

The Corporation has a qualified and a non-qualified defined benefit pension plan, which together, provide
benefits for substantially all full-time employees. Employee benefits expense included pension expense of
$16 million, $26 million and $5 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, for the plans. Benefits under
the plans are based primarily on years of service, age and compensation during the five highest paid consecu-
tive calendar years occurring during the last ten years before retirement. The plans’ assets primarily consist of
units of certain collective investment funds and mutual investment funds administered by Munder Capital
Management, equity securities, U.S. government and agency securities, corporate bonds and notes and a real
estate investment trust. The predominance of these assets have publicly quoted prices, which is the basis for
determining fair value of plan assets.

The Corporation’s postretirement benefits plan continues to provide postretirement health care and life
insurance benefits for retirees as of December 31, 1992, and life insurance only for retirees after that date. The
Corporation has funded the plan with bank-owned life insurance. On December 8, 2003, the Medicare
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act (the Act) was signed into law. In January 2004, the
FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) 106-1, ‘‘Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medi-
care Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003,’’ subsequently revised in April 2004. FSP
106-1 permits a sponsor of a postretirement health care plan that provides a prescription drug benefit to make
a one-time election to defer accounting for the effects of the Act and requires certain disclosures pending
issuance of accounting guidance for the federal subsidy resulting from the Act. The Act introduces a Medicare
prescription drug benefit as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans that provide
a benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent to the Medicare benefit. The Corporation elected to defer the
accounting for the Act in accordance with FSP 106-1.
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In May 2004, the FASB issued FSP 106-2, which provides guidance on the accounting for the federal
subsidy resulting from the Act. FSP 106-2 requires the subsidy to be accounted for under current guidance for
other postretirement benefits. As such, the effects of the subsidy on the benefits attributable to past services are
accounted for as an actuarial gain. The Corporation’s entire postretirement prescription drug related liability is
attributable to past services as the benefits were only provided to employees that retired prior to December 31,
1992. The Corporation adopted the provisions of FSP 106-2 in the quarter ended September 30, 2004. In
accordance with FSP 106-2, the Corporation determined its postretirement drug benefits to be ‘‘actuarially
equivalent.’’ However, the enactment of the Act was not considered a ‘‘significant event.’’ Therefore, the effects
of the Act were incorporated at December 31, 2004, the regularly scheduled measurement date for the plan
assets and obligation, resulting in a reduction in the accumulated postretirement plan benefit obligation of
$9 million at December 31, 2004.

The following table sets forth reconciliations of the Corporation’s qualified pension plan, non-qualified
pension plan and postretirement plan benefit obligations and plan assets. The Corporation used a measure-
ment date of December 31, 2004 for these plans.

Qualified Non-Qualified
Defined Benefit Defined Benefit Postretirement
Pension Plan Pension Plan Benefit Plan

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
(in millions)

Change in projected benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at January 1************** $831 $726 $ 92 $83 $82 $84
Service cost *************************************** 24 20 3 3 — —
Interest cost *************************************** 50 47 6 5 5 5
Immediate recognition of benefit cost **************** — — — 2 — —
Actuarial (gain) loss ******************************** 52 64 3 2 (3) (1)
Benefits paid ************************************** (28) (26) (3) (3) (6) (6)
Plan change *************************************** 16 — 2 — — —

Projected benefit obligation at December 31 ********** $945 $831 $103 $92 $78 $82

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 ***************** $853 $703 $ — $— $82 $79
Actual return on plan assets ************************* 112 130 — — 5 8
Employer contributions***************************** 62 46 3 3 3 1
Benefits paid ************************************** (28) (26) (3) (3) (6) (6)

Fair value of plan assets at December 31************** $999 $853 $ — $— $84 $82

Accumulated benefit obligation ********************** $828 $731 $ 82 $74 $78 $82

The normal retirement age was changed to 65 for retirements or terminations from active service on or
after January 1, 2005, resulting in an additional projected benefit obligation at December 31, 2004 of
$16 million and $2 million for the qualified and non-qualified pension plans, respectively.

The non-qualified pension plan was the only pension plan with an accumulated benefit obligation in
excess of plan assets.
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The following table sets forth the funded status of the qualified pension plan, non-qualified pension plan
and postretirement plan and amounts recognized on the Corporation’s consolidated balance sheets:

Qualified Non-Qualified
Defined Benefit Defined Benefit Postretirement
Pension Plan Pension Plan Benefit Plan

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
(in millions)

Funded status at December 31* ******************** $ 54 $ 22 $(103) $(92) $ 6 $—
Unrecognized net loss***************************** 295 284 40 36 15 19
Unrecognized net transition obligation************** — — — — 34 38
Unrecognized prior service cost ******************** 32 17 3 — — —

Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost********************** $381 $323 $ (60) $(56) $55 $57
Accrued minimum benefit liability****************** — — (21) (18) — —
Intangible asset ********************************** — — 3 — — —
Accumulated other comprehensive income*********** — — 18 18 — —

Net amount recognized *************************** $381 $323 $ (60) $(56) $55 $57

* Based on projected benefit obligation

Components of net periodic benefit cost (income) are as follows:

Qualified and Non-Qualified Defined Benefit Pension Plans
Years Ended December 31

Qualified Non-Qualified
Defined Benefit Defined Benefit
Pension Plan Pension Plan

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
(in millions)

Service cost ******************************************** $ 24 $ 20 $ 17 $ 3 $ 3 $ 2
Interest cost ******************************************** 50 47 46 6 5 5
Expected return on plan assets**************************** (84) (69) (71) — — —
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost************* 2 2 2 — — 1
Immediate recognition of benefit cost ********************* — — — — 2 —
Amortization of unrecognized net loss********************* 12 13 — 3 3 3

Net periodic benefit cost (income) ************************ $ 4 $ 13 $ (6) $12 $13 $11

Additional information:
(Decrease) increase in minimum liability included in other

comprehensive income/loss **************************** $ — $ — $ — $— $ (3) $21
Actual return (loss) on plan assets ************************ 112 130 (54) — — —
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Postretirement Benefit Plan
Years Ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
(in millions)

Interest cost ************************************************************* $ 5 $ 5 $ 6
Expected return on plan assets ********************************************* (4) (4) (5)
Amortization of unrecognized transition obligation*************************** 4 4 4
Amortization of unrecognized net loss ************************************** 1 — —

Net periodic benefit cost ************************************************** $ 6 $ 5 $ 5

Additional information:
(Decrease) increase in minimum liability included in other comprehensive

income/loss *********************************************************** $— $— $—
Actual return (loss) on plan assets****************************************** 5 8 (1)

Actuarial assumptions are reflected below. The discount rate and rate of compensation increase used to
determine benefit obligation for each year shown is as of the end of the year. The discount rate, expected return
on plan assets and rate of compensation increase used to determine net cost for each year shown is as of the
beginning of the year.

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine period end benefit obligation:
December 31

Qualified and
Non-Qualified

Defined Benefit Postretirement
Pension Plans Benefit Plan

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Discount rate used in determining benefit obligation****** 5.8% 6.1% 6.8% 5.8% 6.1% 6.8%
Rate of compensation increase ************************* 4.0 4.0 4.5

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net cost:
Years Ended December 31

Qualified and
Non-Qualified

Defined Benefit Postretirement
Pension Plans Benefit Plan

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Discount rate used in determining net cost ************** 6.1% 6.8% 7.4% 6.1% 6.8% 7.4%
Expected return on plan assets ************************* 8.8 8.8 10.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Rate of compensation increase ************************* 4.0 4.0 5.0

The long-term rate of return expected on plan assets is set after considering both long-term returns in the
general market and long-term returns experienced by the assets in the plan. The returns on the various asset
categories are blended to derive one long-term rate of return. The Corporation reviews its pension plan
assumptions on an annual basis with its actuarial consultants to determine if assumptions are reasonable and
adjusts the assumptions to reflect changes in future expectations.
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Assumed healthcare and prescription drug cost trend rates:
December 31

Prescription
Healthcare Drug

2004 2003 2004 2003

Cost trend rate assumed for next year********************************** 7% 7% 12% 8%
Rate that the cost trend rate gradually declines to *********************** 5 5 5 5
Year that the rate reaches the rate it is assumed to remain at ************* 2010 2007 2010 2007

Assumed healthcare and prescription drug cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts
reported for the healthcare plans. A one-percentage point change in 2004 assumed healthcare and prescription
drug cost trend rates would have the following effects:

One-Percentage-Point
Increase Decrease

(in millions)

Effect on postretirement benefit obligation*************************************** $6 $(5)
Effect on total service and interest cost ****************************************** — —

Plan Assets

The Corporation’s qualified defined benefit pension plan asset allocations at December 31, 2004 and 2003
and target allocation for 2005 are shown in the table below. There were no assets in the non-qualified defined
benefit pension plan. The postretirement benefit plan is fully invested in bank-owned life insurance policies.

Qualified Defined Benefit
Pension Plan

Percentage of
Target Plan Assets at

Allocation December 31,
Asset Category 2005 2004 2003

Equity securities******************************************************* 55 – 65% 64% 64%
Fixed income, including cash ******************************************* 30 – 40 34 34
Alternative assets ****************************************************** 0 – 5 2 2

Total*************************************************************** 100% 100%

The investment goal for the qualified defined benefit pension plan is to achieve a real rate of return
(nominal rate minus consumer price index change) consistent with that received on investment grade corpo-
rate bonds. The Corporation’s 2005 target allocation percentages by asset category are noted in the table above.
Given the mix of equity securities and fixed income (including cash), management believes that by targeting
the benchmark return to an ‘‘investment grade’’ quality return, an appropriate degree of risk is maintained.
Within the asset classes, the degree of non-U.S. based assets is limited to 15 percent of the total, to be allocated
within both equity securities and fixed income. The investment manager has discretion to make investment
decisions within the target allocation parameters. The Corporation’s Employee Benefits Committee must
approve exceptions to this policy. Securities issued by the Corporation and its subsidiaries are not eligible for
use within this plan.
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Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31

Qualified Non-qualified
Defined Benefit Defined Benefit Postretirement

Estimated Future Employer Contributions Pension Plan Pension Plan Benefit Plan*
(in millions)

2005 ************************************************** $62 $4 $7

* Estimated employer contributions in the postretirement benefit plan do not include settlements on death
claims.

Years Ended December 31
Qualified Non-qualified

Defined Benefit Defined Benefit Postretirement
Estimated Future Benefit Payments Pension Plan Pension Plan Benefit Plan*

(in millions)

2005 ************************************************** $ 31 $ 4 $ 7
2006 ************************************************** 33 4 6
2007 ************************************************** 36 5 6
2008 ************************************************** 38 5 6
2009 ************************************************** 41 5 6
2010 — 2014 ****************************************** 268 36 27

* Estimated benefit payments in the postretirement benefit plan are net of estimated Medicare subsidies.

The Corporation also maintains defined contribution plans (including 401(k) plans) for various groups of
its employees. All of the Corporation’s employees are eligible to participate in one or more of the plans. Under
the Corporation’s principal defined contribution plan, the Corporation makes matching contributions, most of
which are based on a declining percentage of employee contributions (currently, maximum per employee is
$1,000) as well as a performance-based matching contribution based on the Corporation’s financial perform-
ance. The Corporation’s match is made in stock of the Corporation, which is restricted until the end of the
calendar year, after which the employees may reallocate to other investment options. Employees may choose to
invest contributions in the stock of the Corporation, and may reallocate employee contributions invested in the
Corporation’s stock to other investments at any time. Employee benefits expense included expense of $15 mil-
lion in 2004, $13 million in 2003 and $11 million in 2002 for the plans.

Note 17 — Income Taxes

The current and deferred components of the provision for income taxes are as follows:
December 31

2004 2003 2002
(in millions)

Current
Federal ****************************************************************** $230 $201 $209
Foreign****************************************************************** 6 18 8
State and local *********************************************************** (2) 23 16

Total current *********************************************************** 234 242 233
Deferred federal, state and local ********************************************** 119 50 48

Total ****************************************************************** $353 $292 $281

There was no net income tax provision on securities transactions in 2004, compared to tax provisions of
$18 million and $14 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively.

90



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

The principal components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
December 31

2004 2003
(in millions)

Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses ********************************************************** $240 $276
Deferred loan origination fees and costs ********************************************* 42 43
Other comprehensive income******************************************************* 33 —
Employee benefits***************************************************************** 6 7
Other temporary differences, net **************************************************** 81 96

Total deferred tax assets********************************************************** 402 422
Deferred tax liabilities:
Lease financing transactions ******************************************************** 627 565
Allowance for depreciation ********************************************************* 14 11
Other comprehensive income******************************************************* — 43

Total deferred tax liabilities******************************************************* 641 619

Net deferred tax liability ******************************************************* $239 $197

A reconciliation of expected income tax expense at the federal statutory rate of 35 percent to the Corpora-
tion’s provision for income taxes and effective tax rate follows:

Years Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002

Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
(dollar amounts in millions)

Tax based on federal statutory rate ******************* $389 35.0% $333 35.0% $309 35.0%
State income taxes ********************************* 6 0.6 12 1.2 15 1.7
Affordable housing credit *************************** (22) (1.9) (19) (2.0) (15) (1.7)
Bank-owned life insurance ************************** (14) (1.2) (16) (1.7) (20) (2.3)
Effect of tax-exempt interest income****************** (2) (0.2) (2) (0.2) (2) (0.2)
United Kingdom tax credit ************************** — — (9) (0.9) — —
Other ******************************************** (4) (0.5) (7) (0.7) (6) (0.7)

Provision for income taxes ************************** $353 31.8% $292 30.7% $281 31.8%

Note 18 — Transactions With Related Parties

The bank subsidiaries have had, and expect to have in the future, transactions with the Corporation’s
directors and executive officers, and companies with which they are associated. Such transactions were made in
the ordinary course of business and included extensions of credit, leases and professional services. With respect
to extensions of credit, all were made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as
those prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions with other customers and did not, in manage-
ment’s opinion, involve more than normal risk of collectibility or present other unfavorable features. The
aggregate amount of loans attributable to persons who were related parties at December 31, 2004, totaled
$287 million at the beginning and $248 million at the end of 2004. During 2004, new loans to related parties
aggregated $537 million and repayments totaled $576 million.
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Note 19 — Regulatory Capital and Reserve Requirements

Cash and due from banks includes reserves required to be maintained and/or deposited with the Federal
Reserve Bank. These reserve balances vary, depending on the level of customer deposits in the Corporation’s
subsidiary banks. The average required reserve balances were $264 million and $250 million for the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Banking regulations limit the transfer of assets in the form of dividends, loans or advances from the bank
subsidiaries to the Corporation. Under the most restrictive of these regulations, the aggregate amount of
dividends which can be paid to the Corporation without obtaining prior approval from bank regulatory
agencies approximated $470 million at January 1, 2005, plus current year’s earnings. Substantially all the assets
of the Corporation’s bank subsidiaries are restricted from transfer to the Corporation in the form of loans or
advances.

Dividends declared to the Corporation by its banking subsidiaries amounted to $691 million, $354 mil-
lion and $647 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The Corporation and its banking subsidiaries are subject to various regulatory capital requirements
administered by federal and state banking agencies. Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure
capital adequacy require the maintenance of minimum amounts and ratios of Tier 1 and total capital (as
defined in the regulations) to average and risk-weighted assets. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements
can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken,
could have a direct material effect on the Corporation’s financial statements. At December 31, 2004 and 2003,
the Corporation and all of its banking subsidiaries exceeded the ratios required for an institution to be
considered ‘‘well capitalized’’ (total risk-based capital, tier 1 risk-based capital and leverage ratios greater than
10 percent, 6 percent and 5 percent, respectively). The following is a summary of the capital position of the
Corporation and its significant banking subsidiary.
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Comerica Incorporated Comerica
(Consolidated) Bank
(dollar amounts in millions)

December 31, 2004
Tier 1 common capital ******************************************** $ 4,916 $ 5,032
Tier 1 capital ***************************************************** 5,301 5,352
Total capital****************************************************** 7,707 7,387
Risk-weighted assets *********************************************** 60,451 60,118
Average assets (fourth quarter)************************************** 51,101 50,606
Tier 1 common capital to risk-weighted assets ************************ 8.13% 8.37%
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets (minimum-4.0%) **************** 8.77 8.90
Total capital to risk-weighted assets (minimum-8.0%) ***************** 12.75 12.29
Tier 1 capital to average assets (minimum-3.0%)********************** 10.37 10.58

December 31, 2003
Tier 1 common capital ******************************************** $ 4,786 $ 4,909
Tier 1 capital ***************************************************** 5,186 5,229
Total capital****************************************************** 7,560 7,196
Risk-weighted assets *********************************************** 59,505 59,198
Average assets (fourth quarter)************************************** 51,214 50,914
Tier 1 common capital to risk-weighted assets ************************ 8.04% 8.29%
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets (minimum-4.0%) **************** 8.72 8.83
Total capital to risk-weighted assets (minimum-8.0%) ***************** 12.71 12.16
Tier 1 capital to average assets (minimum-3.0%)********************** 10.13 10.27

Note 20 — Derivative and Credit-Related Financial Instruments and Foreign Exchange Contracts

In the normal course of business, the Corporation enters into various transactions involving derivative
financial instruments, foreign exchange contracts and credit-related financial instruments to manage exposure
to fluctuations in interest rate, foreign currency and other market risks and to meet the financing needs of
customers. These financial instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and market risk.

Credit risk is the possible loss that may occur in the event of nonperformance by the counterparty to a
financial instrument. The Corporation attempts to minimize credit risk arising from financial instruments by
evaluating the creditworthiness of each counterparty, adhering to the same credit approval process used for
traditional lending activities. Counterparty risk limits and monitoring procedures have also been established to
facilitate the management of credit risk. Collateral is obtained, if deemed necessary, based on the results of
management’s credit evaluation. Collateral varies, but may include cash, investment securities, accounts receiv-
able, equipment or real estate.

Derivative financial instruments and foreign exchange contracts are traded over an organized exchange or
negotiated over-the-counter. Credit risk associated with exchange-traded contracts is typically assumed by the
organized exchange. Over-the-counter contracts are tailored to meet the needs of the counterparties involved
and, therefore, contain a greater degree of credit risk and liquidity risk than exchange-traded contracts, which
have standardized terms and readily available price information. The Corporation reduces exposure to credit
and liquidity risks from over-the-counter derivative and foreign exchange contracts by conducting such transac-
tions with investment-grade domestic and foreign investment banks or commercial banks.

Market risk is the potential loss that may result from movements in interest or foreign currency rates,
which cause an unfavorable change in the value of a financial instrument. The Corporation manages this risk
by establishing monetary exposure limits and monitoring compliance with those limits. Market risk arising
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from derivative and foreign exchange positions entered into on behalf of customers is reflected in the consoli-
dated financial statements and may be mitigated by entering into offsetting transactions. Market risk inherent
in derivative and foreign exchange contracts held or issued for risk management purposes is generally offset by
changes in the value of rate sensitive assets or liabilities.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Foreign Exchange Contracts

The Corporation, as an end-user, employs a variety of financial instruments for risk management purposes.
Activity related to these instruments is centered predominantly in the interest rate markets and mainly involves
interest rate swaps. Various other types of instruments are also used to manage exposures to market risks,
including interest rate caps and floors, total return swaps, foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign
exchange swap agreements.

As part of a fair value hedging strategy, the Corporation has entered into interest rate swap agreements for
interest rate risk management purposes. These interest rate swap agreements effectively modify the Corpora-
tion’s exposure to interest rate risk by converting fixed-rate deposits and debt to a floating rate. These
agreements involve the receipt of fixed rate interest amounts in exchange for floating rate interest payments
over the life of the agreement, without an exchange of the underlying principal amount. No ineffectiveness was
required to be recorded on these hedging instruments in the statement of income for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2004.

As part of a cash flow hedging strategy, the Corporation entered into predominantly 2 to 3 year interest
rate swap agreements (weighted average original maturity of 2.8 years) that effectively convert a portion of its
existing and forecasted floating-rate loans to a fixed-rate basis, thus reducing the impact of interest rate changes
on future interest income over the next 2 to 3 years. Approximately 24 percent ($10 billion) of the Corpora-
tion’s outstanding loans were designated as the hedged items to interest rate swap agreements at December 31,
2004. For the year ended December 31, 2004, interest rate swap agreements designated as cash flow hedges
increased interest and fees on loans by $182 million compared with $285 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003. Other noninterest income in the year ended December 31, 2004 included $3 million of
ineffective cash flow hedge net losses. If interest rates, interest yield curves and notional amounts remain at
their current levels, the Corporation expects to reclassify $8 million of net gains on derivative instruments, that
are designated as cash flow hedges, from accumulated other comprehensive income to earnings during the next
twelve months due to receipt of variable interest associated with the existing and forecasted floating-rate loans.

In addition, the Corporation uses foreign exchange forward and option contracts to protect the value of its
foreign currency investment in foreign subsidiaries. Realized and unrealized gains and losses from these hedges
are not included in the statement of income, but are shown in the accumulated foreign currency translation
adjustment account included in other comprehensive income, with the related amounts due to or from
counterparties included in other liabilities or other assets. During the year ended December 31, 2004, the
Corporation recognized $2 million of net losses in accumulated foreign currency translation adjustment,
related to the foreign exchange forward and option contracts, compared to an immaterial amount during the
year ended December 31, 2003.

Management believes these strategies achieve the desired relationship between the rate maturities of assets
and funding sources which, in turn, reduces the overall exposure of net interest income to interest rate risk,
although, there can be no assurance that such strategies will be successful. The Corporation also uses various
other types of financial instruments to mitigate interest rate and foreign currency risks associated with specific
assets or liabilities. Such instruments include interest rate caps and floors, foreign exchange forward contracts,
foreign exchange option contracts and foreign exchange cross-currency swaps.
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The following table presents the composition of derivative financial instruments and foreign exchange
contracts, excluding commitments, held or issued for risk management purposes at December 31, 2004 and
2003. The fair values of all derivatives and foreign exchange contracts are reflected in the consolidated balance
sheets.

Notional/
Contract Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Amount Gains Losses Value

(in millions)

December 31, 2004
Risk management

Interest rate contracts:
Swaps ************************************************ $12,087 $218 $59 $159

Foreign exchange contracts:
Spot and forwards ************************************* 376 19 1 18
Swaps ************************************************ 58 — 1 (1)

Total foreign exchange contracts ************************* 434 19 2 17

Total risk management ********************************* $12,521 $237 $61 $176

December 31, 2003
Risk management

Interest rate contracts:
Swaps ************************************************ $10,818 $348 $ 2 $346

Foreign exchange contracts:
Spot and forwards ************************************* 340 23 1 22
Swaps ************************************************ 99 — 1 (1)

Total foreign exchange contracts ************************* 439 23 2 21

Total risk management ********************************* $11,257 $371 $ 4 $367

Notional amounts, which represent the extent of involvement in the derivatives market, are generally used
to determine the contractual cash flows required in accordance with the terms of the agreement. These amounts
are typically not exchanged, significantly exceed amounts subject to credit or market risk, and are not reflected
in the consolidated balance sheets.

Credit risk, which excludes the effects of any collateral or netting arrangements, is measured as the cost to
replace, at current market rates, contracts in a profitable position. The amount of this exposure is represented
by the gross unrealized gains on derivative and foreign exchange contracts.

Bilateral collateral agreements with counterparties covered 83 percent and 86 percent of the notional
amount of interest rate derivative contracts at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These agreements
reduce credit risk by providing for the exchange of marketable investment securities to secure amounts due on
contracts in an unrealized gain position. In addition, at December 31, 2004, master netting arrangements had
been established with all interest rate swap counterparties and certain foreign exchange counterparties. These
arrangements effectively reduce credit risk by permitting settlement, on a net basis, of contracts entered into
with the same counterparty. The Corporation has not experienced any material credit losses associated with
derivative or foreign exchange contracts.

On a limited scale, fee income is earned from entering into various transactions, principally foreign
exchange contracts and interest rate contracts at the request of customers. Market risk inherent in customer
contracts is often mitigated by taking offsetting positions. The Corporation generally does not speculate in
derivative financial instruments for the purpose of profiting in the short-term from favorable movements in
market rates.
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The following table presents the composition of derivative financial instruments and foreign exchange
contracts held or issued in connection with customer-initiated and other activities.

Notional/
Contract Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Amount Gains Losses Value

(in millions)

December 31, 2004
Customer-initiated and other

Interest rate contracts:
Caps and floors written ********************************* $ 301 $ — $ 2 $(2)
Caps and floors purchased ****************************** 349 2 — 2
Swaps ************************************************ 1,726 20 16 4

Total interest rate contracts ****************************** 2,376 22 18 4
Foreign exchange contracts:

Spot, forwards, futures and options*********************** 3,290 117 112 5
Swaps ************************************************ 31 1 — 1

Total foreign exchange contracts************************** 3,321 118 112 6

Total customer-initiated and other************************ $5,697 $140 $130 $10

December 31, 2003
Customer-initiated and other

Interest rate contracts:
Caps and floors written ********************************* $ 443 $ — $ 3 $ (3)
Caps and floors purchased ****************************** 443 3 — 3
Swaps ************************************************ 1,416 24 21 3

Total interest rate contracts ****************************** 2,302 27 24 3
Foreign exchange contracts:
Spot, forwards, futures and options*********************** 1,879 41 37 4
Swaps ************************************************ 25 1 1 —

Total foreign exchange contracts************************** 1,904 42 38 4

Total customer-initiated and other************************ $4,206 $ 69 $ 62 $ 7

Fair values for customer-initiated and other derivative and foreign exchange contracts represent the net
unrealized gains or losses on such contracts and are recorded in the consolidated balance sheets. Changes in
fair value are recognized in the consolidated income statements. The following table provides the average
unrealized gains and unrealized losses and noninterest income generated on customer-initiated and other
interest rate contracts and foreign exchange contracts.

Years Ended
December 31

2004 2003
(in millions)

Average unrealized gains *********************************************************** $81 $74
Average unrealized losses ********************************************************** 71 67
Noninterest income *************************************************************** 34 35
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Detailed discussions of each class of derivative financial instruments and foreign exchange contracts held
or issued by the Corporation for both risk management and customer-initiated and other activities are as
follows.

Interest Rate Swaps

Interest rate swaps are agreements in which two parties periodically exchange fixed cash payments for
variable payments based on a designated market rate or index (or variable payments based on two different
rates or indices for basis swaps), applied to a specified notional amount until a stated maturity. The Corpora-
tion’s swap agreements are structured such that variable payments are primarily based on prime, one-month
LIBOR or three-month LIBOR. These instruments are principally negotiated over-the-counter and are subject to
credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

Interest Rate Options, Including Caps and Floors

Option contracts grant the option holder the right to buy or sell an underlying financial instrument for a
predetermined price before the contract expires. Interest rate caps and floors are option-based contracts which
entitle the buyer to receive cash payments based on the difference between a designated reference rate and the
strike price, applied to a notional amount. Written options, primarily caps, expose the Corporation to market
risk but not credit risk. A fee is received at inception for assuming the risk of unfavorable changes in interest
rates. Purchased options contain both credit and market risk; however, market risk is limited to the fee paid.
Options are either exchange-traded or negotiated over-the-counter. All interest rate caps and floors are over-the-
counter agreements.

Foreign Exchange Contracts

The Corporation uses foreign exchange rate swaps, including generic receive variable swaps and cross-
currency swaps, for risk management purposes. Generic receive variable swaps involve payment, in a foreign
currency, of the difference between a contractually fixed exchange rate and an average exchange rate determined
at settlement, applied to a notional amount. Cross-currency swaps involve the exchange of both interest and
principal amounts in two different currencies. Other foreign exchange contracts such as futures, forwards and
options are primarily entered into as a service to customers and to offset market risk arising from such
positions. Futures and forward contracts require the delivery or receipt of foreign currency at a specified date
and exchange rate. Foreign currency options allow the holder to purchase or sell a foreign currency at a
specified date and price. Foreign exchange futures are exchange-traded, while forwards, swaps and most options
are negotiated over-the-counter. Foreign exchange contracts expose the Corporation to both market risk and
credit risk.

Commitments

The Corporation also enters into commitments to purchase or sell earning assets for risk management and
trading purposes. These transactions are similar in nature to forward contracts. The Corporation had commit-
ments to purchase investment securities for its trading account and available-for-sale portfolio totaling $4 mil-
lion at December 31, 2004 and $3 million at December 31, 2003. Commitments to sell investment securities
related to the trading account totaled $4 million at December 31, 2004 and $2 million at December 31, 2003.
Outstanding commitments expose the Corporation to both credit and market risk.
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Credit-Related Financial Instruments

The Corporation issues off-balance sheet financial instruments in connection with commercial and con-
sumer lending activities. The Corporation’s credit risk associated with these instruments is represented by the
contractual amounts indicated in the following table.

December 31
2004 2003

(in millions)

Unused commitments to extend credit ****************************************** $28,349 $27,049
Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees ********************************* 6,326 6,045
Commercial letters of credit**************************************************** 340 261

The Corporation maintains an allowance to cover probable credit losses inherent in lending-related
commitments, including commitments to extend credit, letters of credit and guarantees. At December 31, 2004
and 2003, the allowance for credit losses on lending-related commitments, which is recorded in ‘‘accrued
expenses and other liabilities’’ on the consolidated balance sheets, was $21 million and $33 million,
respectively.

Unused Commitments to Extend Credit

Commitments to extend credit are legally binding agreements to lend to a customer, provided there is no
violation of any condition established in the contract. These commitments generally have fixed expiration dates
or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many commitments expire without being
drawn upon, the total contractual amount of commitments does not necessarily represent future cash require-
ments of the Corporation. Total unused commitments to extend credit included bankcard, revolving check
credit and equity access loan commitments of $2 billion at both December 31, 2004 and 2003. Other unused
commitments, primarily variable rate, totaled $26 billion and $25 billion at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

Standby and Commercial Letters of Credit and Financial Guarantees

Standby and commercial letters of credit and financial guarantees represent conditional obligations of the
Corporation which guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. Standby letters of credit and
financial guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements, including
commercial paper, bond financing and similar transactions. Long-term standby letters of credit and financial
guarantees, defined as those maturing beyond one year, expire in decreasing amounts through the year 2015,
and were $1,900 million and $1,832 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The remaining standby letters of credit and financial guarantees, which mature within one year, totaled
$4,426 million and $4,213 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Commercial letters of credit
are issued to finance foreign or domestic trade transactions and are short-term in nature. The Corporation may
enter into participation arrangements with third parties, which effectively reduce the maximum amount of
future payments, which may be required under standby letters of credit. These risk participations covered
$471 million of the $6,326 million standby letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2004. At Decem-
ber 31, 2004, the carrying value of the Corporation’s standby and commercial letters of credit and financial
guarantees, which is included in ‘‘accrued expenses and other liabilities’’ on the consolidated balance sheet,
totaled $79 million.
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Note 21 — Contingent Liabilities

Legal Proceedings

The Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries are subject to various pending and threatened legal
proceedings arising out of the normal course of business or operations. In view of the inherent difficulty of
predicting the outcome of such matters, the Corporation cannot state what the eventual outcome of any such
matters will be. However, based on current knowledge and after consultation with legal counsel, management
believes that current reserves, determined in accordance with SFAS No. 5, ‘‘Accounting for Contingencies’’, are
adequate and the amount of any incremental liability arising from these matters is not expected to have a
material adverse effect on the Corporation’s consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

Tax Contingency

In the ordinary course of business, the Corporation enters into certain transactions that have tax conse-
quences. From time to time, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) questions and/or challenges the tax position
taken by the Corporation with respect to those transactions. The Corporation engaged in certain types of
structured leasing transactions and a series of loans to foreign borrowers that the IRS is challenging. The
Corporation believes that its tax position related to both transaction groups referred to above is proper based
upon applicable statutes, regulations and case law in effect at the time of the transactions. The Corporation
intends to defend its position vigorously in accordance with its view of the law controlling these activities.
However, a court, or administrative authority, if presented with the transactions, could disagree with the
Corporation’s interpretation of the tax law. The ultimate outcome is not known.

Based on current knowledge and probability assessment of various potential outcomes, management
believes that the current tax reserves, determined in accordance with SFAS No. 5, are adequate to cover the
above matters and are not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s consolidated
financial condition or results of operations. Probabilities and outcomes are reviewed as events unfold, and
adjustments to the reserves are made when necessary.

Lease Accounting Contingency

There is current uncertainty related to the accounting for structured lease transactions, when such transac-
tions are examined by the IRS and resolved, either with the IRS or by a court, for an amount which is less than
what was previously reported in the Corporation’s tax return. The staff of the FASB have recently discussed
interpretations of the accounting literature that would require a recalculation of lease income based on cash
flows as resolved, which would change reported lease income. Prior to resolution with the IRS, and prior to
consensus on the accounting, the impact on the Corporation is not known.

Note 22 — Variable Interest Entities — Adoption of FIN 46(R)

Effective July 1, 2003, the Corporation adopted the provisions of FIN 46(R) for all interests held in a
variable interest entity (VIE). The Corporation evaluated various entities in which it held an interest to
determine if these entities met the definition of a VIE, and whether the Corporation was the primary benefici-
ary and should consolidate the entity based on the variable interests it held. The following provides a summary
of the VIE’s in which the Corporation has a significant interest, and discusses the accounting changes that
resulted from the adoption of FIN 46(R).

The Corporation owns 100% of the common stock of two entities formed in 1997 and 2001 to issue trust
preferred securities. Prior to the third quarter 2003 adoption of FIN 46(R), the Corporation consolidated these
entities as a result of its ownership of the outstanding common securities. These entities met the FIN 46(R)
definition of a VIE, but the Corporation is not the primary beneficiary in either of these entities. As such, the
Corporation deconsolidated these entities in the third quarter 2003. The trust preferred securities held by these
entities ($405 million at December 31, 2004) were previously classified in ‘‘medium- and long-term debt’’ on
the Corporation’s consolidated balance sheets. Deconsolidation of these entities did not change the classifica-
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tion of this as debt, but changed the debt instruments reported on the consolidated balance sheets from trust
preferred securities debt to subordinated debt. The Corporation is not exposed to loss related to these VIE’s. In
accordance with current guidance from the banking regulators, this debt continues to qualify as Tier 1 capital.

The Corporation has a significant limited partnership interest in The Peninsula Fund Limited Partnership
(PFLP), a venture capital fund, which was acquired in 1996. Under FIN 46(R), the PFLP’s general partner (an
employee of the Corporation) is considered a related party to the Corporation. Prior to the third quarter 2003
adoption of FIN 46(R), the Corporation recorded its investment in PFLP using the equity method, as an
unconsolidated subsidiary. However, this entity met the FIN 46(R) definition of a VIE, and the Corporation is
the primary beneficiary of the entity. As such, the Corporation consolidated PFLP in the third quarter 2003. At
consolidation, PFLP had approximately $22 million in assets, primarily investment securities, and consolida-
tion resulted in an increase in both the Corporation’s assets and liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet of
approximately $12 million. Consolidation does not impact net income, but changes the line items within the
income statement where income from this entity is recorded; from noninterest income (where equity in
earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries was recorded) to interest income, noninterest income (net securities
gains) and other noninterest expense. Creditors of the partnership do not have recourse against the Corpora-
tion, and exposure to loss as a result of involvement with PFLP at December 31, 2004 was limited to
approximately $5 million of net equity investment in the entity and approximately $2 million of commitments
for future investments.

The Corporation has limited partnership interests in three other venture capital funds, which were
acquired in 1998, 1999 and 2000, where under FIN 46(R), the general partner (an employee of the Corpora-
tion) in these three partnerships is considered a related party to the Corporation. These three entities met the
FIN 46(R) definition of a VIE. However, the Corporation is not the primary beneficiary of the entities. As such,
the Corporation continues to account for its interest in these partnerships on the cost method. These three
entities had approximately $181 million in assets at December 31, 2004. Exposure to loss as a result of
involvement with these three entities at December 31, 2004 was limited to approximately $9 million of book
basis of the Corporation’s investments and approximately $3 million of commitments for future investments.

The Corporation, as a limited partner, also holds an insignificant ownership percentage interest in 102
other venture capital and private equity investment partnerships where the Corporation is not related to the
general partner. While these entities may meet the FIN 46(R) definition of a VIE, the Corporation is not the
primary beneficiary of any of these entities as a result of its insignificant ownership percentage interest. The
Corporation accounts for its interests in these partnerships on the cost method, and exposure to loss as a result
of involvement with these entities at December 31, 2004 was limited to approximately $114 million of book
basis of the Corporation’s investments and approximately $46 million of commitments for future investments.

Two limited liability subsidiaries of the Corporation are the general partners in two investment fund
partnerships, formed in 1999 and 2003. As general partner, these subsidiaries manage the investments held by
these funds. These two investment partnerships met the FIN 46(R) definition of a VIE. In the investment fund
partnership formed in 1999, the Corporation is not the primary beneficiary of the entity. As such, the
Corporation will continue to account for its indirect interests in this partnership on the cost method. This
investment partnership had approximately $173 million in assets at December 31, 2004 and was structured so
that the Corporation’s exposure to loss as a result of its interest should be limited to the book basis of the
Corporation’s investment in the limited liability subsidiary, which was insignificant at December 31, 2004. In
the investment fund partnership formed in 2003, the Corporation is the primary beneficiary of the entity and
would be required to consolidate the entity, if material. This investment partnership had assets of approxi-
mately $9 million at December 31, 2004 and was structured so that the Corporation’s exposure to loss as a
result of its interest should be limited to the book basis of the Corporation’s investment in the limited liability
subsidiary, which was insignificant at December 31, 2004.

The Corporation has a significant limited partner interest in 25 low income housing tax credit/historic
rehabilitation tax credit partnerships, acquired at various times from 1992 to 2003. These entities met the
FIN 46(R) definition of a VIE. However, the Corporation is not the primary beneficiary of the entities and, as
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such, will continue to account for its interest in these partnerships on the cost or equity method. These entities
had approximately $163 million in assets at December 31, 2004. Exposure to loss as a result of its involvement
with these entities at December 31, 2004 was limited to approximately $30 million of book basis of the
Corporation’s investment, which includes unfunded commitments for future investments.

The Corporation, as a limited partner, also holds an insignificant ownership percentage interest in 79
other low income housing tax credit/historic rehabilitation tax credit partnerships. While these entities may
meet the FIN 46(R) definition of a VIE, the Corporation is not the primary beneficiary of any of these entities as
a result of its insignificant ownership percentage interest. As such, the Corporation will continue to account for
its interest in these partnerships on the cost or equity method. Exposure to loss as a result of its involvement
with these entities at December 31, 2004 was limited to approximately $108 million of book basis of the
Corporation’s investment, which includes unfunded commitments for future investments.

For further information on the adoption of FIN 46(R), see Note 1 on page 64.

Note 23 — Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Disclosure of the estimated fair values of financial instruments, which differ from carrying values, often
requires the use of estimates. In cases where quoted market values are not available, the Corporation uses
present value techniques and other valuation methods to estimate the fair values of its financial instruments.
These valuation methods require considerable judgment, and the resulting estimates of fair value can be
significantly affected by the assumptions made and methods used. Accordingly, the estimates provided herein
do not necessarily indicate amounts which could be realized in a current exchange. Furthermore, as the
Corporation typically holds the majority of its financial instruments until maturity, it does not expect to realize
many of the estimated amounts disclosed. The disclosures also do not include estimated fair value amounts for
items which are not defined as financial instruments, but which have significant value. These include such
items as core deposit intangibles, the future earnings potential of significant customer relationships and the
value of trust operations and other fee generating businesses. The Corporation believes the imprecision of an
estimate could be significant.

The Corporation used the following methods and assumptions in estimating fair value disclosures for
financial instruments:

Cash and short-term investments: The carrying amount approximates the estimated fair value of these
instruments, which consists of cash and due from banks, interest-bearing deposits with banks and federal
funds sold.

Trading securities: These securities are carried at quoted market value or the market value for comparable
securities, which represents estimated fair value.

Loans held-for-sale: The market value of these loans represents estimated fair value or estimated net selling
price. The market value is determined on the basis of existing forward commitments or the current market
values of similar loans.

Investment securities: The market value of investment securities, which is based on quoted market values
or the market values for comparable securities, represents estimated fair value.

Domestic business loans: These consist of commercial, real estate construction, commercial mortgage and
equipment lease financing loans. The estimated fair value of the Corporation’s variable rate commercial loans
is represented by their carrying value, adjusted by an amount which estimates the change in fair value caused
by changes in the credit quality of borrowers since the loans were originated. The estimated fair value of fixed
rate commercial loans is calculated by discounting the contractual cash flows of the loans using year-end
origination rates derived from the Treasury yield curve or other representative bases. The resulting amounts are
adjusted to estimate the effect of changes in the credit quality of borrowers since the loans were originated.
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International loans: The estimated fair value of the Corporation’s short-term international loans, which
consist of trade-related loans, or loans which have no cross-border risk due to the existence of domestic
guarantors or liquid collateral, is represented by their carrying value, adjusted by an amount which estimates
the effect on fair value of changes in the credit quality of borrowers or guarantors. The estimated fair value of
long-term international loans is based on the quoted market values of these loans or on the current market
values of international loans with similar characteristics.

Retail loans: This category consists of residential mortgage and consumer loans. The estimated fair value
of residential mortgage loans is based on discounted contractual cash flows or market values of similar loans
sold in conjunction with securitized transactions. For consumer loans, the estimated fair values are calculated
by discounting the contractual cash flows of the loans using rates representative of year-end origination rates.
The resulting amounts are adjusted to estimate the effect of changes in the credit quality of borrowers since the
loans were originated.

Customers’ liability on acceptances outstanding and acceptances outstanding: The carrying amount approxi-
mates the estimated fair value.

Loan servicing rights: The estimated fair value is representative of a discounted cash flow analyses, using
interest rates and prepayment speed assumptions currently quoted for comparable instruments.

Deposit liabilities: The estimated fair value of demand deposits, consisting of checking, savings and certain
money market deposit accounts, is represented by the amounts payable on demand. The carrying amount of
deposits in foreign offices approximates their estimated fair value, while the estimated fair value of term
deposits is calculated by discounting the scheduled cash flows using the year-end rates offered on these
instruments.

Short-term borrowings: The carrying amount of federal funds purchased, securities sold under agreements
to repurchase and other borrowings approximates estimated fair value.

Medium- and long-term debt: The estimated fair value of the Corporation’s variable rate medium- and
long-term debt is represented by its carrying value. The estimated fair value of the fixed rate medium- and long-
term debt is based on quoted market values. If quoted market values are not available, the estimated fair value
is based on the market values of debt with similar characteristics.

Derivative financial instruments and foreign exchange contracts: The estimated fair value of interest rate swaps
represents the amount the Corporation would receive or pay to terminate or otherwise settle the contracts at
the balance sheet date, taking into consideration current unrealized gains and losses on open contracts. The
estimated fair value of foreign exchange futures and forward contracts and commitments to purchase or sell
financial instruments is based on quoted market prices. The estimated fair value of interest rate and foreign
currency options (including interest rate caps and floors) is determined using option pricing models. All
derivative financial instruments and foreign exchange contracts are carried at fair value on the balance sheet.

Credit-related financial instruments: The estimated fair value of unused commitments to extend credit and
standby and commercial letters of credit is represented by the estimated cost to terminate or otherwise settle
the obligations with the counterparties. This amount is approximated by the fees currently charged to enter
into similar arrangements, considering the remaining terms of the agreements and any changes in the credit
quality of counterparties since the agreements were entered into. This estimate of fair value does not take into
account the significant value of the customer relationships and the future earnings potential involved in such
arrangements as the Corporation does not believe that it would be practicable to estimate a representational
fair value for these items.
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The estimated fair values of the Corporation’s financial instruments are as follows:
December 31

2004 2003
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

(in millions)

Assets
Cash and short-term investments*************************** $ 4,223 $ 4,223 $ 5,288 $ 5,288
Trading securities **************************************** 38 38 29 29
Loans held-for-sale *************************************** 108 108 223 223
Investment securities available-for-sale ********************** 3,943 3,943 4,489 4,489

Commercial loans**************************************** 22,039 21,622 21,579 21,114
Real estate construction loans****************************** 3,053 3,047 3,397 3,394
Commercial mortgage loans ******************************* 8,236 8,253 7,878 7,931
Residential mortgage loans ******************************** 1,294 1,278 1,228 1,238
Consumer loans ***************************************** 2,751 2,746 2,610 2,630
Lease financing ****************************************** 1,265 1,221 1,301 1,275
International loans *************************************** 2,205 2,165 2,309 2,218

Total loans ******************************************** 40,843 40,332 40,302 39,800
Less allowance for loan losses ***************************** (673) — (803) —

Net loans ******************************************* 40,170 40,332 39,499 39,800
Customers’ liability on acceptances outstanding************** 57 57 27 27
Loan servicing rights************************************** 20 20 17 17
Liabilities
Demand deposits (noninterest-bearing) ********************* 15,164 15,164 14,104 14,104
Interest-bearing deposits ********************************** 25,772 25,812 27,359 27,440

Total deposits****************************************** 40,936 40,976 41,463 41,544
Short-term borrowings ************************************ 193 193 262 262
Acceptances outstanding ********************************** 57 57 27 27
Medium- and long-term debt ****************************** 4,286 4,265 4,801 4,841
Derivative financial instruments and foreign exchange

contracts
Risk management:

Unrealized gains ************************************* 237 237 371 371
Unrealized losses ************************************ (61) (61) (4) (4)

Customer-initiated and other:
Unrealized gains ************************************* 140 140 69 69
Unrealized losses ************************************ (130) (130) (62) (62)

Credit-related financial instruments *********************** (87) (71) (87) (59)
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Note 24 — Business Segment Information

The Corporation has strategically aligned its operations into three major lines of business: the Business
Bank, Small Business and Personal Financial Services, and Wealth and Institutional Management. These lines of
business are differentiated based on the type of customer and the related products and services provided. In
addition to the three major lines of business, the Finance Division is also reported as a segment. Lines of
business results are produced by the Corporation’s internal management accounting system. This system
measures financial results based on the internal business unit structure of the Corporation. Information
presented is not necessarily comparable with similar information for any other financial institution. The
management accounting system assigns balance sheet and income statement items to each line of business
using certain methodologies, which are regularly reviewed and refined. For comparability purposes, amounts
in all periods are based on lines of business and methodologies in effect at December 31, 2004. These
methodologies, which are briefly summarized in the following paragraph, may be modified as management
accounting systems are enhanced and changes occur in the organizational structure or product lines.

The Corporation’s internal funds transfer pricing system records cost of funds or credit for funds using a
combination of matched maturity funding for certain assets and liabilities and a blended rate based on various
maturities for the remaining assets and liabilities. In the second quarter of 2004, the Corporation changed the
assumptions used in allocating internal funding credits for deposits to better capture the value of deposits in
line of business and market segment reports. Accordingly, the Corporation has adjusted current and prior year
information to reflect these new assumptions. The allowance for loan losses is allocated to both large business
and certain large personal purpose consumer and residential mortgage loans that have deteriorated below
certain levels of credit risk based on a non-standard, specifically calculated amount. For other business loans, it
is recorded in business units based on the credit score of each loan outstanding. For other consumer and
residential mortgage loans, the allowance for loan losses is allocated based on applying projected loss ratios to
various segments of the loan portfolio. The related loan loss provision is assigned based on the amount
necessary to maintain an allowance for loan losses adequate for each product category. Noninterest income
and expenses directly attributable to a line of business are assigned to that business. Direct expenses incurred
by areas whose services support the overall Corporation are allocated to the business lines as follows: product
processing expenditures are allocated based on standard unit costs applied to actual volume measurements;
administrative expenses are allocated based on estimated time expended; and corporate overhead is assigned
based on the ratio of a line of business’ noninterest expenses to total noninterest expenses incurred by all
business lines. Equity is attributed based on credit, operational and interest rate risks. Most of the equity
attributed relates to credit risk, which is determined based on the credit score and expected life of each loan,
letter of credit and unused commitment recorded in the business unit. Operational risk is allocated based on
the nature and extent of expenses incurred by business units. Virtually all interest rate risk is assigned to
Finance, and is calculated based on the extent of the Corporation’s hedging activities.

The following discussion provides information about the activities of each line of business. A discussion of
the financial results and the factors impacting 2004 performance can be found in the section entitled ‘‘Strategic
Lines of Business’’ in the financial review on page 35.

The Business Bank is primarily comprised of the following business units: middle market, commercial real
estate, national dealer services, global finance, large corporate, leasing, financial services group, and technology
and life sciences. This line of business meets the needs of medium-size businesses, multinational corporations
and governmental entities by offering various products and services, including commercial loans and lines of
credit, deposits, cash management, capital market products, international trade finance, letters of credit, foreign
exchange management services and loan syndication services.

Small Business and Personal Financial Services includes small business banking (entities with annual sales
under $10 million) and personal financial services, consisting of consumer lending, consumer deposit gather-
ing and mortgage loan origination. In addition to a full range of financial services provided to small business
customers, this line of business offers a variety of consumer products, including deposit accounts, installment
loans, credit cards, student loans, home equity lines of credit, and residential mortgage loans.
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Wealth and Institutional Management offers products and services consisting of personal trust, which is
designed to meet the personal financial needs of affluent individuals (as defined by individual net income or
wealth), private lending, institutional trust, retirement services, investment management and advisory services
(including Munder), investment banking and discount securities brokerage services. This line of business also
offers the sale of mutual fund and annuity products, as well as life, disability and long-term care insurance
products.

The Finance segment includes the Corporation’s securities portfolio and asset and liability management
activities. This segment is responsible for managing the Corporation’s funding, liquidity and capital needs,
performing interest sensitivity gap and earnings simulation analysis and executing various strategies to manage
the Corporation’s exposure to liquidity, interest rate risk, and foreign exchange risk.

The Other category includes divested business lines, the income and expense impact of cash and loan loss
reserves not assigned to specific business lines, tax benefits not assigned to specific business lines and miscella-
neous other expenses of a corporate nature. The loan loss reserves include the unallocated allowance for loan
losses and the portion of the allowance allocated based on industry specific and geographic risks.
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Lines of business/segment financial results are as follows:
Years Ended December 31
Small Business and Personal Wealth and Institutional

Business Bank Financial Services Management
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

(dollar amounts in millions)

Earnings Summary:
Net interest income (expense) (FTE) $ 1,363 $ 1,523 $ 1,602 $ 576 $ 611 $ 655 $ 149 $ 148 $ 127

Provision for loan losses ********** 9 262 482 13 33 46 1 23 7

Noninterest income*************** 285 275 244 213 218 207 302 290 293

Noninterest expenses************** 571 592 561 502 518 506 330 325 396

Provision (benefit) for income taxes
(FTE) ************************* 380 338 292 99 100 110 44 33 8

Net income (loss) **************** $ 688 $ 606 $ 511 $ 175 $ 178 $ 200 $ 76 $ 57 $ 9

Net charge-offs ******************* $ 169 $ 321 $ 457 $ 19 $ 34 $ 23 $ 6 $ 10 $ 1

Selected Average Balances:
Assets *************************** $33,152 $35,097 $35,535 $ 6,388 $ 6,390 $ 5,798 $3,440 $3,184 $2,900

Loans *************************** 31,874 33,879 34,271 5,675 5,572 5,256 3,184 2,919 2,564

Deposits************************* 19,616 19,676 15,583 16,752 16,855 16,432 2,537 2,264 1,498

Liabilities************************ 20,303 20,246 16,029 16,745 16,849 16,433 2,546 2,279 1,535

Attributed equity ***************** 2,463 2,704 2,997 782 788 750 415 392 403

Statistical Data:
Return on average

assets (1) ********************** 2.07% 1.73% 1.44% 1.00% 1.01% 1.17% 2.22% 1.79% 0.30%

Return on average attributed equity 27.92 22.40 17.07 22.44 22.62 26.72 18.35 14.50 2.15

Efficiency ratio ******************* 34.57 33.06 30.05 63.59 62.46 58.64 73.16 74.16 94.38

Years Ended December 31

Finance Other Total

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Earnings Summary:
Net interest income (expense) (FTE)**** $ (294) $ (361) $ (223) $ 19 $ 8 $ (25) $ 1,813 $ 1,929 $ 2,136

Provision for loan losses ************** — — — 41 59 100 64 377 635

Noninterest income ****************** 57 104 139 — — 17 857 887 900

Noninterest expenses ***************** 9 8 8 81 40 44 1,493 1,483 1,515

Provision (benefit) for income taxes
(FTE) ***************************** (88) (126) (59) (79) (50) (66) 356 295 285

Net income (loss) ******************** $ (158) $ (139) $ (33) $(24) $(41) $ (86) $ 757 $ 661 $ 601

Net charge-offs*********************** $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 194 $ 365 $ 481

Selected Average Balances:
Assets******************************* $ 7,134 $ 7,516 $ 5,747 $834 $793 $ 1,150 $50,948 $52,980 $51,130

Loans******************************* — — — — — — 40,733 42,370 42,091

Deposits **************************** 1,208 2,687 4,072 32 37 127 40,145 41,519 37,712

Liabilities *************************** 6,022 8,334 17,110 291 239 (4,861) 45,907 47,947 46,246

Attributed equity ********************* 661 841 925 720 308 (191) 5,041 5,033 4,884

Statistical Data:
Return on average

assets (1) ************************* (2.21)% (1.52)% (0.18)% n/m n/m n/m 1.49% 1.25% 1.18%

Return on average attributed equity***** (23.88) (16.57) (3.60) n/m n/m n/m 15.03 13.12 12.31

Efficiency ratio *********************** (3.68) (2.63) (5.98) n/m n/m n/m 55.90 53.64 50.59

(1) Return on average assets is calculated based on the greater of average assets or average liabilities and attributed equity.

n/m-not meaningful

106



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

The Corporation’s management accounting system also produces market segment results for the Corpora-
tion’s four primary geographic regions: Midwest and Other Markets, Western, Texas, and Florida. The following
discussion provides information about the activities of each market segment. A discussion of the financial
results and the factors impacting 2004 performance can be found in the section entitled ‘‘Market Segments’’ in
the financial review on page 36.

Midwest and Other Markets includes all markets in which the Corporation has operations except for the
Western, Texas and Florida regions, as described below. Substantially all of the Corporation’s international
operations are included in the Midwest and Other Markets segment. Currently, Michigan operations represent
the significant majority of this geographic region.

The Western region consists of the states of California, Arizona, Nevada, Colorado and Washington.
Currently, California operations represent the significant majority of the Western region.

The Texas and Florida regions consist of the states of Texas and Florida, respectively.

The Finance and Other Businesses segment includes the Corporation’s securities portfolio, asset and
liability management activities, divested business lines, the income and expense impact of equity, cash and
loan loss reserves not assigned to specific business lines/market segments, tax benefits not assigned to specific
business lines/market segments and miscellaneous other expenses of a corporate nature. This segment includes
responsibility for managing the Corporation’s funding, liquidity and capital needs, performing interest sensi-
tivity gap and earnings simulation analysis and executing various strategies to manage the Corporation’s
exposure to liquidity, interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk.

The Corporation’s total revenues from customers attributed to and long-lived assets (excluding certain
intangible assets) located in foreign countries in which the Corporation holds assets were less than five percent
of the Corporation’s consolidated revenues and long-lived assets (excluding certain intangible assets) in each of
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.
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Market segment financial results are as follows:
Years Ended December 31

Midwest and Other
Markets Western Texas

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

(dollar amounts in millions)

Earnings Summary:
Net interest income (expense) (FTE) $ 1,056 $ 1,164 $ 1,209 $ 757 $ 827 $ 877 $ 236 $ 255 $ 264
Provision for loan losses ********** (16) 204 348 37 96 164 (1) 12 24
Noninterest income*************** 576 564 528 133 131 130 76 74 72
Noninterest expenses************** 855 863 911 350 369 349 173 176 177
Provision (benefit) for income taxes

(FTE) ************************* 257 214 152 208 202 204 49 49 47

Net income (loss) **************** $ 536 $ 447 $ 326 $ 295 $ 291 $ 290 $ 91 $ 92 $ 88

Net charge-offs ******************* $ 95 $ 217 $ 298 $ 90 $ 127 $ 146 $ 9 $ 20 $ 33
Selected Average Balances:
Assets *************************** $24,337 $25,999 $26,028 $12,615 $12,833 $12,267 $4,700 $4,677 $4,823
Loans *************************** 22,956 24,593 24,724 11,926 12,103 11,539 4,535 4,518 4,712
Deposits************************* 19,059 18,764 16,936 15,770 15,680 12,327 3,832 4,156 4,109
Liabilities************************ 19,750 19,352 17,450 15,777 15,679 12,311 3,825 4,148 4,097
Attributed equity ***************** 2,134 2,276 2,452 1,023 1,090 1,149 439 455 478
Statistical Data:
Return on average assets (1) ******* 2.20% 1.72% 1.25% 1.76% 1.73% 2.16% 1.94% 1.98% 1.83%
Return on average attributed equity 25.14 19.62 13.28 28.82 26.65 25.30 20.76 20.33 18.46
Efficiency ratio ******************* 52.38 49.94 52.48 39.37 38.56 34.64 55.30 53.51 52.71

Years Ended December 31

Finance and Other
Florida Businesses Total

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Earnings Summary:
Net interest income (expense) (FTE) *** $ 39 $ 36 $ 34 $ (275) $ (353) $ (248) $ 1,813 $ 1,929 $ 2,136
Provision for loan losses ************** 3 6 (1) 41 59 100 64 377 635
Noninterest income ****************** 15 14 15 57 104 155 857 887 900
Noninterest expenses ***************** 25 27 26 90 48 52 1,493 1,483 1,515
Provision (benefit) for income taxes

(FTE)***************************** 9 6 8 (167) (176) (126) 356 295 285

Net income (loss)******************** $ 17 $ 11 $ 16 $ (182) $ (180) $ (119) $ 757 $ 661 $ 601

Net charge-offs ********************** $ — $ 1 $ 4 $ — $ — $ — $ 194 $ 365 $ 481
Selected Average Balances:
Assets ****************************** $1,328 $1,162 $1,115 $7,968 $8,309 $6,897 $50,948 $52,980 $51,130
Loans ****************************** 1,316 1,156 1,116 — — — 40,733 42,370 42,091
Deposits **************************** 244 195 141 1,240 2,724 4,199 40,145 41,519 37,712
Liabilities *************************** 242 194 138 6,313 8,574 12,250 45,907 47,947 46,246
Attributed equity********************* 64 64 71 1,381 1,148 734 5,041 5,033 4,884
Statistical Data:
Return on average

assets (1) ************************* 1.26% 0.99% 1.44% n/m n/m n/m 1.49% 1.25% 1.18%
Return on average attributed equity **** 26.06 17.84 22.68 n/m n/m n/m 15.03 13.12 12.31
Efficiency ratio ********************** 46.05 53.52 52.37 n/m n/m n/m 55.90 53.64 50.59

(1) Return on average assets is calculated based on the greater of average assets or average liabilities and attributed equity.

n/m-not meaningful
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Note 25 — Parent Company Financial Statements

Balance Sheets — Comerica Incorporated
December 31

2004 2003
(in millions, except

share data)

ASSETS
Cash and due from subsidiary bank*********************************************** $ 1 $ —
Short-term investments with subsidiary bank *************************************** 289 296
Investment in subsidiaries, principally banks *************************************** 5,585 5,599
Premises and equipment********************************************************* 3 3
Other assets******************************************************************** 304 262

Total assets **************************************************************** $6,182 $6,160

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Long-term debt***************************************************************** $ 824 $ 826
Other liabilities***************************************************************** 253 224

Total liabilities ************************************************************* 1,077 1,050
Common stock — $5 par value:

Authorized — 325,000,000 shares
Issued — 178,735,252 at 12/31/04 and 12/31/03 ********************************* 894 894

Capital surplus ***************************************************************** 421 384
Accumulated other comprehensive income ***************************************** (69) 74
Retained earnings *************************************************************** 4,331 3,973
Less cost of common stock in treasury — 8,259,328 shares at 12/31/04

and 3,735,163 shares at 12/31/03 ********************************************** (472) (215)

Total shareholders’ equity**************************************************** 5,105 5,110

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity *************************************** $6,182 $6,160
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Statements of Income — Comerica Incorporated
Years Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002

(in millions)

INCOME
Income from subsidiaries

Dividends from subsidiaries *********************************************** $691 $355 $648
Other interest income ***************************************************** 2 1 1
Intercompany management fees ******************************************** 75 120 149

Other noninterest income *************************************************** 12 2 12

Total income*********************************************************** 780 478 810
EXPENSES
Interest on commercial paper ************************************************ — — 3
Interest on long-term debt *************************************************** 37 22 3
Interest on subordinated debt issued to subsidiaries***************************** — 15 30
Salaries and employee benefits *********************************************** 84 78 82
Occupancy expense ********************************************************* 7 7 6
Equipment expense ********************************************************* 1 1 1
Other noninterest expenses ************************************************** 48 44 34

Total expenses********************************************************** 177 167 159

Income before provision (benefit) of income taxes and equity in undistributed
earnings (losses) of subsidiaries ******************************************** 603 311 651

Provision (benefit) for income taxes ****************************************** (34) (18) (1)

Income before equity in undistributed earnings (losses) of subsidiaries************ 637 329 652
Equity in undistributed earnings (losses) of subsidiaries, principally banks********* 120 332 (51)

NET INCOME************************************************************** $757 $661 $601
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Statements of Cash Flows — Comerica Incorporated
Years Ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
(in millions)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income ************************************************************* $ 757 $ 661 $ 601
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Undistributed (earnings) losses of subsidiaries, principally banks*********** (120) (332) 51
Depreciation and software amortization********************************* 1 1 1
Amortization of stock-based compensation expense ********************** 14 11 22
Net gain on sales of businesses **************************************** — — (12)
Decrease (increase) in dividends receivable from subsidiary *************** — 85 (85)
Other, net*********************************************************** (1) 27 (92)

Total adjustments ************************************************** (106) (208) (115)

Net cash provided by operating activities****************************** 651 453 486
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net decrease (increase) in short-term investments with subsidiary bank ********* 7 (268) (16)
Net decrease (increase) in private equity and venture capital investments******** 8 5 (26)
Proceeds from sales of businesses ****************************************** — — 8
Capital transactions with subsidiaries *************************************** (9) (18) (27)
Fixed assets, net********************************************************** (1) (1) (1)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ********************* 5 (282) (62)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net decrease in subordinated debt issued to and advances from subsidiaries***** — — (7)
Net issuance of long-term debt ******************************************** — 300 —
Net decrease in commercial paper****************************************** — (130) (10)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock *********************************** 72 16 50
Purchase of common stock for treasury and retirement *********************** (370) (27) (210)
Dividends paid ********************************************************** (357) (347) (331)

Net cash used in financing activities ********************************** (655) (188) (508)

Net increase (decrease) in cash on deposit at bank subsidiary ***************** 1 (17) (84)
Cash on deposit at bank subsidiary at beginning of year ********************** — 17 101

Cash on deposit at bank subsidiary at end of year**************************** $ 1 $ — $ 17

Interest paid************************************************************* $ 36 $ 37 $ 37

Income taxes (recovered) paid ********************************************* $ (36) $ (8) $ 12
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Note 26 — Summary of Quarterly Financial Statements

The following quarterly information is unaudited. However, in the opinion of management, the informa-
tion reflects all adjustments, which are necessary for the fair presentation of the results of operations, for the
periods presented.

2004
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

(in millions, except per share data)

Interest income ************************************************ $ 591 $ 558 $ 545 $ 543
Interest expense ************************************************ 125 107 97 98

Net interest income********************************************* 466 451 448 445
Provision for loan losses **************************************** (21) — 20 65
Net securities gains (losses) ************************************** — (6) 1 5
Noninterest income (excluding net securities gains (losses)) ********* 203 212 227 215
Noninterest expenses******************************************** 380 372 372 369
Provision for income taxes*************************************** 103 89 92 69

Net income **************************************************** $ 207 $ 196 $ 192 $ 162

Basic net income per common share ****************************** $1.22 $1.15 $1.11 $0.93
Diluted net income per common share**************************** 1.21 1.13 1.10 0.92

2003
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Interest income ************************************************ $ 560 $ 579 $ 627 $ 646
Interest expense ************************************************ 103 114 134 135

Net interest income********************************************* 457 465 493 511
Provision for loan losses **************************************** 77 83 111 106
Net securities gains ********************************************* 4 4 29 13
Noninterest income (excluding net securities gains)***************** 216 217 197 207
Noninterest expenses******************************************** 379 377 360 367
Provision for income taxes*************************************** 63 69 78 82

Net income **************************************************** $ 158 $ 157 $ 170 $ 176

Basic net income per common share ****************************** $0.90 $0.90 $0.98 $1.01
Diluted net income per common share**************************** 0.89 0.89 0.97 1.00
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Note 27 — Pending Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), ‘‘Share-Based Payment,’’ a revision of SFAS No. 123,
‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.’’ SFAS No. 123(R) requires all stock-based compensation awards
granted to employees be recognized in the financial statements at fair value. SFAS No. 123(R) will allow for two
transition alternatives for public entities: modified-prospective transition or modified-retrospective transition.
Under the modified-prospective transition method, companies would be required to recognize compensation
cost for share-based payments to employees based on their grant-date fair value from the beginning of the fiscal
period in which the recognition provisions are first applied. Measurement and attribution of compensation
cost for awards that were granted prior to, but not vested as of the date SFAS No. 123(R) is adopted would be
based on the same estimate of the grant-date fair value and the same attribution method used previously under
SFAS No. 123. Prior periods would not be restated. Under the modified-retrospective transition method,
companies would be allowed to restate prior periods by recognizing compensation cost in the amounts
previously reported in the pro forma footnote disclosures under the provisions of SFAS No. 123. New awards
and unvested awards would be accounted for in the same manner for both the modified-prospective and
modified-retrospective methods. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective for public companies at the beginning of the first
interim or annual period beginning after June 15, 2005. Early adoption will be permitted in periods in which
financial statements have not yet been issued. In 2002, the Corporation adopted the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123 on a prospective basis. As a result, the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) is not expected
to have a material impact on the Corporation’s financial position or results of operations. However, if the
modified-retrospective transition method is adopted, prior reporting periods will be restated upon adoption,
based on previously reported proforma footnote disclosures. See Note 1 on page 64 for proforma footnote
disclosures reported for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

In March 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF), a standard setting body working under the FASB,
reached a revised consensus on EITF No. 03-01, ‘‘The Meaning of Other-than-Temporary-Impairment and its
Application to Certain Investments.’’ The revised consensus contained a model to be used in determining
whether an investment is other-than-temporarily impaired and guidance on the recognition of other-than-
temporary impairment. The other-than-temporary impairment evaluation and recognition guidance was to be
effective on July 1, 2004. In September 2004, the FASB issued FSP 03-1-1, which delayed the effective date of
the guidance in EITF 03-01 related to the evaluation and recognition of impairment on investments. The FASB
plans to issue final authoritative guidance on this topic in the first half of 2005. When this occurs, the effect of
this guidance on the Corporation’s financial condition and results of operations, if any, will be determined.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

The management of Comerica Incorporated (the Corporation) is responsible for the accompanying
consolidated financial statements and all other financial information in this Annual Report. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and
include amounts which of necessity are based on management’s best estimates and judgments and give due
consideration to materiality. The other financial information herein is consistent with that in the consolidated
financial statements.

In meeting its responsibility for the reliability of the consolidated financial statements, management
develops and maintains effective internal controls, including those over financial reporting, as defined in the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting
includes policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Corporation; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the consolidated
financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Corporation are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the Corporation; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Corporation’s assets that could have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

Management assessed, with participation of the Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as it relates to its consolidated financial
statements presented in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as of December 31,
2004. The assessment was based on criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in
‘‘Internal Control — Integrated Framework’’ issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on this assessment, management determined that internal control over
financial reporting is effective as it relates to the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements presented in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as of December 31, 2004.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2004 have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP,
an independent registered public accounting firm. The audit was conducted in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), which require the independent public
accountants to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting is maintained in all
material respects. In addition, management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, as stated in their report which is
included herein.

The Corporation’s Board of Directors oversees management’s internal control over financial reporting and
financial reporting responsibilities through its Audit and Legal Committee as well as various other committees.
The Audit and Legal Committee (the Committee), which consists of directors who are not officers or employees
of the Corporation, meets periodically with management, internal audit and the independent public account-
ants to assure that the Committee, management, internal auditors and the independent public accountants are
carrying out their responsibilities, and to review auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters.

Ralph W. Babb Jr. Elizabeth S. Acton Marvin J. Elenbaas
Chairman, President and Executive Vice President and Senior Vice President and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Controller
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Comerica Incorporated

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Report of Management, that
Comerica Incorporated maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004,
based on criteria established in ‘‘Internal Control — Integrated Framework’’ issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The Corporation’s management
is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control,
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Corporation;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consoli-
dated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Corporation are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Corporation; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detec-
tion of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Corporation’s assets that could have a material
effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Comerica Incorporated maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the
COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, Comerica Incorporated maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Comerica Incorporated as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004 and our report dated February 18, 2005
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Detroit, Michigan
February 18, 2005
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Board of Directors and Shareholders
Comerica Incorporated

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Comerica Incorporated and subsidiar-
ies as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examin-
ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Comerica Incorporated and subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of Comerica Incorporated’s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in ‘‘Internal Control — Integrated Framework’’ issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 18,
2005, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Detroit, Michigan
February 18, 2005

116



HISTORICAL REVIEW — AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS

Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

December 31
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

(in millions)

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks***********************  $ 1,685 $ 1,811 $ 1,800 $ 1,835 $ 1,842
Short-term investments ************************* 1,921 1,942 602 442 978
Investment securities *************************** 4,321 4,529 4,360 3,909 3,688

Commercial loans ***************************** 22,139 23,764 24,266 25,374 24,441
Real estate construction loans ******************* 3,264 3,540 3,353 3,090 2,554
Commercial mortgage loans********************* 7,991 7,521 6,786 5,695 5,142
Residential mortgage loans ********************** 1,237 1,192 1,101 1,101 1,098
Consumer loans ******************************* 2,668 2,474 2,355 2,200 2,041
Lease financing ******************************** 1,272 1,283 1,242 1,111 870
International loans ***************************** 2,162 2,596 2,988 2,800 2,552

Total loans ******************************** 40,733 42,370 42,091 41,371 38,698
Less allowance for loan losses ******************* (787) (831) (739) (654) (595)

Net loans ********************************* 39,946 41,539 41,352 40,717 38,103
Accrued income and other assets***************** 3,075 3,159 3,016 2,785 2,266

Total assets******************************** $50,948 $52,980 $51,130 $49,688 $46,877

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Noninterest-bearing deposits ******************** $14,122 $13,910 $11,841 $10,253 $ 9,068
Interest-bearing deposits ************************ 26,023 27,609 25,871 25,059 21,272

Total deposits ***************************** 40,145 41,519 37,712 35,312 30,340
Short-term borrowings************************** 275 550 1,962 2,584 3,323
Accrued expenses and other liabilities ************ 947 804 809 823 703
Medium- and long-term debt******************** 4,540 5,074 5,763 6,198 8,298

Total liabilities***************************** 45,907 47,947 46,246 44,917 42,664
Shareholders’ equity**************************** 5,041 5,033 4,884 4,771 4,213

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ****** $50,948 $52,980 $51,130 $49,688 $46,877
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HISTORICAL REVIEW — STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Years Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

(in millions, except per share data)

INTEREST INCOME
Interest and fees on loans *************************************** $2,054 $2,211 $2,524 $3,121 $3,379
Interest on investment securities ********************************* 147 165 246 246 259
Interest on short-term investments ******************************* 36 36 27 26 78

Total interest income ***************************************** 2,237 2,412 2,797 3,393 3,716
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on deposits ******************************************** 315 370 479 888 951
Interest on short-term borrowings ******************************** 4 7 37 105 215
Interest on medium- and long-term debt************************** 108 109 149 298 546

Total interest expense ***************************************** 427 486 665 1,291 1,712

Net interest income ****************************************** 1,810 1,926 2,132 2,102 2,004
Provision for loan losses **************************************** 64 377 635 241 251

Net interest income after provision for loan losses *************** 1,746 1,549 1,497 1,861 1,753
NONINTEREST INCOME
Service charges on deposit accounts ****************************** 231 238 227 211 189
Fiduciary income*********************************************** 171 169 171 180 181
Commercial lending fees **************************************** 55 63 69 67 61
Letter of credit fees ********************************************* 66 65 60 58 52
Foreign exchange income *************************************** 37 36 38 35 27
Brokerage fees ************************************************* 36 34 38 44 44
Investment advisory revenue, net********************************* 35 30 27 12 119
Card fees****************************************************** 32 27 23 27 34
Bank-owned life insurance ************************************** 34 42 53 33 23
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries ****************** 12 6 8 (43) 14
Warrant income************************************************ 7 4 5 5 30
Net securities gains ********************************************* — 50 41 20 16
Net gain on sales of businesses ********************************** 7 — 12 31 50
Other noninterest income *************************************** 134 123 128 157 140

Total noninterest income************************************** 857 887 900 837 980
NONINTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits*********************************** 919 897 844 842 874
Net occupancy expense ***************************************** 125 128 122 115 110
Equipment expense********************************************* 58 61 62 70 76
Outside processing fee expense ********************************** 68 71 65 61 59
Software expense *********************************************** 43 37 33 34 28
Customer services ********************************************** 23 25 26 41 37
Litigation and operational losses ********************************* 24 18 20 16 24
Goodwill impairment******************************************* — — 86 — —
Restructuring charges ******************************************* — — — 152 —
Other noninterest expenses ************************************** 233 246 257 256 303

Total noninterest expenses************************************* 1,493 1,483 1,515 1,587 1,511

Income before income taxes ************************************* 1,110 953 882 1,111 1,222
Provision for income taxes ************************************** 353 292 281 401 431

NET INCOME ************************************************* $ 757 $ 661 $ 601 $ 710 $ 791

Net income applicable to common stock************************** $ 757 $ 661 $ 601 $ 698 $ 774

Basic net income per common share ***************************** $ 4.41 $ 3.78 $ 3.43 $ 3.93 $ 4.38
Diluted net income per common share *************************** 4.36 3.75 3.40 3.88 4.31
Cash dividends declared on common stock************************ 356 350 335 313 250
Cash dividends declared per common share *********************** 2.08 2.00 1.92 1.76 1.60
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HISTORICAL REVIEW — STATISTICAL DATA

Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Years Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

AVERAGE RATES (FULLY TAXABLE EQUIVALENT BASIS)
Short-term investments ************************* 1.88% 1.85% 4.45% 6.02% 7.97%
Investment securities *************************** 3.36 3.65 5.74 6.37 6.99
Commercial loans ***************************** 4.22 4.11 4.67 6.83 8.87
Real estate construction loans ******************* 5.43 5.04 5.74 7.95 10.09
Commercial mortgage loans********************* 5.19 5.35 6.12 7.65 8.80
Residential mortgage loans ********************** 5.68 6.12 6.88 7.57 7.78
Consumer loans ******************************* 4.73 4.94 5.94 8.08 9.06
Lease financing ******************************** 4.06 4.59 5.37 6.25 6.24
International loans ***************************** 4.69 4.44 4.70 7.38 9.21

Total loans ********************************** 5.05 5.22 6.00 7.55 8.74

Interest income as a percentage of earning assets 4.76 4.94 5.96 7.44 8.57
Domestic deposits ***************************** 1.17 1.30 1.81 3.48 4.34
Deposits in foreign offices ********************** 2.60 3.15 3.36 5.97 7.75

Total interest-bearing deposits ***************** 1.21 1.34 1.85 3.54 4.47
Short-term borrowings************************** 1.25 1.20 1.85 4.08 6.48
Medium- and long-term debt******************** 2.39 2.14 2.58 4.80 6.57

Interest expense as a percentage of interest-
bearing sources **************************** 1.38 1.46 1.98 3.82 5.20

Interest rate spread ***************************** 3.38 3.48 3.98 3.62 3.37
Impact of net noninterest-bearing sources of funds 0.48 0.47 0.57 0.99 1.26

Net interest margin as a percentage of earning
assets*************************************** 3.86% 3.95% 4.55% 4.61% 4.63%

RATIOS
Return on average common shareholders’ equity *** 15.03% 13.12% 12.31% 15.16% 19.52%
Return on average assets ************************ 1.49 1.25 1.18 1.43 1.69
Efficiency ratio********************************* 55.90 53.64 50.59 54.30 50.88
Tier 1 common capital as a percentage of risk-

weighted assets ****************************** 8.13 8.04 7.39 7.30 6.80
PER SHARE DATA
Book value at year-end ************************* $ 29.94 $ 29.20 $ 28.31 $ 27.17 $ 23.98
Market value at year-end ************************ 61.02 56.06 43.24 57.30 59.38
Market value for the year

High *************************************** 63.80 56.34 66.09 65.15 61.13
Low **************************************** 50.45 37.10 35.20 44.02 32.94

OTHER DATA
Number of banking offices ********************** 376 360 352 342 354
Number of employees (full-time equivalent) ****** 10,968 11,282 11,358 11,406 11,444
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